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PART |

Preliminary Note Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains statements about the futupeeations, activities and events that constitatevérd-looking statements. Forwalabking
statements express our beliefs, assumptions aret&tipns of our future financial and operatingf@@nance and growth plans, taking i
account information currently available to us. Thasatements are not statements of historical Tawt. words “believe,” “may,” “should,”
“anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “objive,” “seek,” “plan,” “strive” or similar words, or the negatives of these woidentify
forward-looking statements.

Forwardiooking statements involve risks and uncertaintied may cause our actual results to differ matgrieom the expectations of futu
results we expressed or implied in any forwknoking statements. These risks and uncertaintesbe difficult to predict and may be bey
our control. Factors that could contribute to difeces in our results include, but are not limitedieterioration in the financial condition
borrowers resulting in significant increases innldasses and provisions for those losses; chamgéeeiinterest rate environment, which 1
reduce our margins or impact the value of secatitans, deposits and other financial instrumesttanges in loan underwriting, credit rev
or loss reserve policies associated with econominditions, examination conclusions, or regulatogvelopments; general economic
business conditions, either nationally, regionaliyjocally in the communities we serve, may be wdtsn expected, resulting in, among ¢
things, a deterioration in credit quality or a reeld demand for credit; the results of regulatogneixations; any matter that would cause |
conclude that there was impairment of any asseliiding intangible assets; the continued servickeyf management personnel; our abilit
attract, motivate and retain qualified employeastdrs that increase the competitive pressure ardepgsitory and other financial institutic
including product and pricing pressures; the gbiit our competitors with greater financial resagd¢o develop and introduce products
services that enable them to compete more suctlgstfan us; inability to comply with regulatory pigal requirements and to secure
required regulatory approvals for capital actidegjslative or regulatory developments, includifeges in laws concerning taxes, bani
securities, insurance and other aspects of thendiahservices industry; and fiscal and governmeptdicies of the United States fede
government.

Other risks are detailed in Iltem 1A. “Risk Factoof"this Form 10K all of which are difficult to predict and many wfich are beyond o
control.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees iddqmeance or results. A forwaddoking statement may include the assumptions ge:
underlying the forwardeoking statement. We have made our assumption$asess in good faith and believe they are reasen® cautio
you however, that estimates based on such assumpiiobases frequently differ from actual reswdty] the differences can be material.
forwarddooking statements included in this report spealy as of the date of the report. We do not intemdipdate these statements ur
applicable laws require us to do so.

Item 1. Business
Overview

Porter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company§ a bank holding company headquartered in LodégviKentucky. We operate the ninth largest t
domiciled in the Commonwealth of Kentucky basedatal assets through our wholly-owned subsidiary Bénk (the “Bank”).We operate 1
banking offices in twelve counties in Kentucky. Onarkets include metropolitan Louisville in Jeff@msCounty and the surrounding coun
of Henry and Bullitt. We serve south central Kekuand southern Kentucky from banking offices intlBy Green, Hart, Edmonson, Bari
Warren, Ohio, and Daviess Counties. We also havaffare in Lexington, the second largest city inriflecky. The Bank is a community bz
with a wide range of commercial and personal bapkiroducts. As of December 31, 2014, we had tatséts of $1.0 billion, total loans
$625.0 million, total deposits of $926.8 millioncastockholders’ equity of $33.5 million.

History

We were organized in 1988, and historically conddabur banking business through separate commbaitks. On December 31, 2005,
completed a reorganization in which we consolidaied subsidiary banks into a single bank. We remao@ consolidated subsidiary F
Bank to create a single brand name for our bankipgrations throughout our market area. We completedinitial public offering il
September 2006.

On November 21, 2008, we issued to the U.S. Trgg8UIST”), in exchange for cash consideration of $35.0 milli@n35,000 shares of Fix
Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Seriesith a liquidation preference of $1,000 per shigne “Series A Preferred Stockanc
(ii) a warrant to purchase up to 330,561 sharesiotommon stock for $15.88 per share.
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In 2010, we completed a $32.0 million private plaeat to accredited investors. Following completminthe transactions involved, f
Company issued (i) 2,465,569 shares of common stk317,042 shares of Novieting Cumulative Mandatorily Convertible Perpe
Preferred Shares, Series C (“Series C Preferrezk'§tand (iii) warrants to purchase 1,163,045 shafenonvoting common stock at a price
$11.50 per share. See Item 7. Management'’s Disoussid Analysis of Financial Condition and Resaft®©peration — Capital.

On June 24, 2011, the Bank entered into a ConsetérQwith the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporaf#DIC”) and the Kentuck
Department of Financial Institutions (“KDFI"Y.he consent order requires the Bank to improvasset quality, reduce its loan concentrat
and maintain a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of & a minimum total risk based capital ratio of 12%

On September 21, 2011, the Company entered intatmvagreement with the Federal Reserve Bank.af&iis. The Company made forr
commitments to use its resources to serve as @esaifirstrength for the Bank, to assist the Bankddressing weaknesses identified by
FDIC and the KDFI, to pay no dividends without prigritten approval, to pay no interest on subortidadebentures or principal on t1
preferred securities without written approval, amdubmit a plan to maintain sufficient capital.

In October 2012, the Bank entered into a reviseds€ot Order with the FDIC and KDFI again agreemgiintain a minimum Tier 1 levere
ratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based capitdio of 12%. The Bank also agreed that if it skdoé unable to reach the required ca
levels, and if directed in writing by the FDIC, ththe Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt emplement a written plan to sell or me
itself into another federally insured financial titgion or otherwise immediately obtain a capitalestment into the Bank sufficient to fu
meet the capital requirements. We have not beeactdid by the FDIC to implement such a plan. ThesénnOrder also requires the Ban
continue to adhere to the plans implemented inoesp to the June 2011 Consent Order, and inclidesubstantive provisions of the J
2011 Consent Order.

In December 2014, we completed a r@sh equity exchange transaction with the accrditeestors who acquired all of our issued
outstanding Series A Preferred Shares from UST julaic auction. We acquired and cancelled allh#f issued and outstanding Serie
Preferred Shares, the accrued dividends therebaf tide issued and outstanding Series C Prefestetes, and warrants to purchase 79¢
shares of common stock together having an aggrégate value of approximately $45.7 million. In eaclge, we issued common and prefe
shares having a fair value of approximately $9.8ioni The effect of this exchange transaction waicrease common stockholdeesjuity
by approximately $36.1 million and total stockhakleequity by approximately $7.4 million.

In the exchange transaction, we issued 1,821,428 shares, 40,536 mandatorily convertible SeBieBreferred Shares and 64,
mandatorily convertible Series D Preferred Shandsch automatically converted into 4,053,600 comnsbiares and 6,458,000 neating
common shares after shareholder approval on Fgb25ar2015. We also issued 6,198 Series E Pref&hedes and 4,304 Series F Prefe
Shares, both of which series are not convertiliie @mmon shares, have a liquidation preferencl @00 per share, and are entitled to ¢
noncumulative annual dividend if and when declafeties E and Series F Preferred Shares rank geniand have liquidation and divide
preferences over, our common shares and non-votingnon shares.

Our Markets

We operate in markets that include the four largésts in Kentucky — Louisville, Lexington, BowlinGreen and Owensboroand in othe
communities along the 1-65 corridor.

. Louisville/Jefferson, Bullitt and Henry Counties: Our headquarters are in Louisville, the largest icitkentucky. We als
have banking offices in Bullitt County, south ofuisville, and Henry County, east of Louisville. Ggix banking offices i
these counties also serve the contiguous counti8pencer, Shelby and Oldham to the east and remtlod Louisville. Th
area’s major employers are diversified across niatiystries and include the air hub for United PeS=rvice (“UPS”) two
Ford assembly plants, General Electric’'s Consunmer ladustrial division, Humana, Norton HealthcaBgpwn-+orman
YUM! Brands, Papa Jol's Pizza, and Texas Roadhot

= Lexington/Fayette County: Lexington, located in Fayette County, is the seclamgest city in Kentucky. Lexington is 1
financial, educational, retail, healthcare anduralt hub for Central and Eastern Kentucky. It i®Wn worldwide for it
horse farms and Keeneland Race Track, and prowdigtb of itself as “The Horse Capital of the Wdrld.is also the hon
of the University of Kentucky and Transylvania Ugisity. The area major employers include Toyota, Lexmark, |
Global Services and Valvolin

. Southern Kentucky: This market includes Bowling Green, the third latgaty in Kentucky, located about 60 miles nort
Nashville, Tennessee. Bowling Green, located inrédfaICounty, is the home of Western Kentucky Unitgrand is th
economic hub of the area. This market also incldlkieging communities in the contiguous Barren Ciguimcluding the cit
of Glasgow. Major employers in Barren and Warreru@@s include GMs Corvette plant, several other automc
facilities, and R.R. Donnell¢ s regional printing facility
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= Owensboro/Daviess CountyOwensboro, located on the banks of the Ohio Rigafentuckys fourth largest city. The ci
is called a festival city, with over 20 annual coonmity celebrations that attract visitors from arduhe world, including it
world famous Bar-B-Q Festival which attracts ov8ra®0 visitors giving Owensboro recognition as “Be-B-Q Capital o
the World”. It is an industrial, medical, retail and culturaithfor Western Kentucky and the area employersude
Owensboro Medical System, US Bank Home MortgageTanytetsu

. South Central Kentucky: South of the Louisville metropolitan area, we h&aamking offices in Butler, Edmonson, Gre
Hart, and Ohio Counties. This region includes staldmmunity markets comprised primarily of agriatdl and service-
based businesses. Each of our banking officesgetmarkets has a stable customer and core dbpssi

Our Products and Services

We meet our customerdianking needs with a broad range of financial petgland services. Our lending services include esthte
commercial, mortgage and consumer loans to smaligdiumsized businesses, the owners and employees of blusgeesses, as well as o
executives and professionals. We complement owlingnoperations with an array of retail and comnatrdeposit products. In addition,
offer our customers drivihrough banking facilities, automatic teller maasnnight depository, personalized checks, crexils; debit card
internet banking, mobile banking, treasury managermservices, remote deposit services, electroniddutransfers through ACH servic
domestic and foreign wire transfers, cash managgmeault services, lock box services, along withri@and deposit sweep accounts.

Employees

At December 31, 2014, the Company had 264 tile equivalent employees. Our employees are nbfestito a collective bargaini
agreement, and management considers the Compatgt®nship with employees to be good.

Competition

The banking business is highly competitive, andewgerience competition from many other financiatitations. Competition among financ
institutions is based upon interest rates offenedi®posit accounts, interest rates charged on |atinsr credit and service charges relatir
loans, the quality and scope of the services affetlee convenience of banking facilities and, ia tase of loans to commercial borrow
relative lending limits. We compete with commerdianks, credit unions, savings and loan assocmtimortgage banking firms, consul
finance companies, securities brokerage firms,rarsze companies, money market funds and other infitnds, as well as supeegional
national and international financial institutiohst operate offices within our market area and hdyo

Supervision and Regulation

Consent Order and Formal Written Agreement.On June 24, 2011, the Bank entered into a Conseter@ith the FDIC and the KDFI. T
Bank agreed to obtain the written consent of bgeénaies before declaring or paying any future dimids. As a practical matter, the Bank
not be able to pay dividends to Porter Bancorptlier foreseeable future. The Consent Order alsdlestas benchmarks for the Bank
improve its asset quality, reduce its loan coneginins, and maintain a minimum Tier 1 leverageorafi 9% and a minimum total risk ba:
capital ratio of 12%. At December 31, 2014, thelBaier 1 leverage ratio was 5.78% and its tosi-based capital ratio was 10.57%, wt
are below the minimums of 9.0% and 12.0% requinethb Bank’s Consent Order.

On September 21, 2011, we entered into a formatemriagreement with the Federal Reserve Bank ofdtis. The Company made forr
commitments in the agreement to use its finangidlmanagement resources to serve as a sourcendtsifor the Bank and to assist the E
in addressing weaknesses identified by the FDIC thedKDFI, to pay no dividends without prior writteapproval, to pay no interest
principal on subordinated debentures or trust prede securities without written approval, and tdrsit an acceptable plan to maini
sufficient capital.

In October 2012, the Bank entered into a reviseds€ot Order with the FDIC and KDFI again agreemgnintain a minimum Tier 1 levere
ratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based capitdio of 12%. The Bank also agreed that if it skdoé unable to reach the required ca
levels, and if directed in writing by the FDIC, ththe Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt emplement a written plan to sell or me
itself into another federally insured financialtingion or otherwise obtain a capital investmartbithe Bank sufficient to recapitalize the b
We have not been directed by the FDIC to implensenh a plan.
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We continue to work with our regulators toward talpratio compliance. The revised Consent Orden a¢sjuires the Bank to continue
adhere to the plans implemented in response tduhe 2011 Consent Order, and includes the substgmtbvisions of the June 2011 Con:
Order. As of December 31, 2014, the capital ratosiired by the Consent Order were not met.

Bank and Holding Company Laws, Rules and Regulatian The following is a summary description of the relev laws, rules ar
regulations governing banks and bank holding conasamhe descriptions of, and references to, thtutss and regulations below are
summaries and do not purport to be complete. Tkerigitions are qualified in their entirety by refece to the specific statutes and regula
discussed.

The Dodd-Frank Act. On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refarmd Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (“Dodd-Frardt"Awas
signed into law. The DodBrank Act imposed new restrictions and an exparicldework of regulatory oversight for financial fitigtions
including depository institutions. Because the Déddnk Act requires various federal agencies to adoproad range of regulations w
significant discretion, certain of the details loé law and the effects it will have on the Comparg/not known at this time.

The DoddFrank Act represents a comprehensive overhaul efittancial services industry within the United t8%&a There are a number
reform provisions that significantly impact the vgay which banks and bank holding companies, inolydis, do business. For example,
Dodd+rank Act changed the assessment base for fedepabkid insurance premiums by modifying the assessbese calculation to be ba
on a depository institution’ consolidated assets less tangible capital insdéatbposits, and permanently increased the stena@ximun
amount of deposit insurance per customer to $280,00e DoddFrank Act also imposed more stringent capital nenents on bank holdi
companies by, among other things, imposing leverages on bank holding companies and prohibits trewt preferred security issuan
from counting as Tier | capital. The Dodidank Act also repealed the federal prohibitiortlempayment of interest on demand deposits, th
permitting depository institutions to pay inter@st business transaction and other accounts. Thecédified and expanded the Fed
Reserves source of strength doctrine, which requires #flabank holding companies serve as a source ahéial strength for its subsidi:
banks. Other provisions of the Do#idank Act include, but are not limited to: (i) tbeeation of a new financial consumer protectiomageha
is empowered to promulgate new consumer proteagulations and revise existing regulations in mangas of consumer protecti
(i) enhanced regulation of financial markets, utlihg derivatives and securitization markets; (@form related to the regulation of cre
rating agencies; (iv) the elimination of certaiading activities by banks; and (v) new disclosund ather requirements relating to exect
compensation and corporate governance.

Many provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act require iptetation and rulemaking by federal agencies. The Company monitdnekvant sectior
of the Dodd-Frank Act to ensure continued compkamgth laws and regulations. While the ultimateeeffof the Dodd-rank Act on th
Company is not fully known, the law is likely tosrdt in greater compliance costs and higher feéd fmaregulators, along with possi
restrictions on the Company’s operations.

Porter Bancorp. The Company is registered as a bank holding compangr the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as rahed, and
subject to supervision and regulation by the Badr@overnors of the Federal Reserve System. As, suelmust file with the Federal Rese
Board annual and quarterly reports and other inétion regarding our business operations and thmdsss operations of our subsidiaries.
are also subject to examination by the Federal iRed®oard and to operational guidelines establidhethe Federal Reserve Board. We
subject to the Bank Holding Company Act and otleetefal laws on the types of activities in which may engage, and to other supervi:
requirements, including regulatory enforcementaamdifor violations of laws and regulations.

Acquisitions A bank holding company must obtain Federal ResBoard approval before acquiring, directly or indihg, ownership or contr
of more than 5% of the voting stock or all or sabsilly all of the assets of a bank, merging onsmidating with any other bank hold
company and before engaging, or acquiring a complaatyis not a bank but is engaged in certain Imamking activities. Federal law a
prohibits a person or group of persons from acqgificontrol” of a bank holding company without notifying the Eel Reserve Board
advance, and then only if the Federal Reserve Bdaed not object to the proposed transaction. Huefal Reserve Board has establist
rebuttable presumptive standard that the acquisitib 10% or more of the voting stock of a bank haidcompany would constitute
acquisition of control of the bank holding compahyaddition, any company is required to obtain &éipproval of the Federal Reserve B
before acquiring 25% (5% in the case of an acquivat is a bank holding company) or more of ang<laf a bank holding compamsyvoting
securities, or otherwise obtaining control or arfrolling influence” over a bank holding company.

Permissible ActivitiesA bank holding company is generally permitted untther Bank Holding Company Act to engage in or aegdirect o
indirect control of more than 5% of the voting sfsmof any bank, bank holding company or companyged in any activity that the Fede
Reserve Board determines to be so closely relatedriking as to be a proper incident to the businébanking.
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Under current federal law, a bank holding compamy mlect to become a financial holding company,ciwrénables the holding compan!
conduct activities that are “financial in naturéttivities that are “financial in naturefhclude securities underwriting, dealing and me
making; sponsoring mutual funds and investment @mgs; insurance underwriting and agency; merchbanking activities; and activities tl
the Federal Reserve Board has determined to belgloslated to banking. No regulatory approval viaé required for a financial holdi
company to acquire a company, other than a bandawings association, engaged in activities thatfiaancial in nature or incidental
activities that are financial in nature, as deteedi by the Federal Reserve Board. We have not ditedlection to become a financial holc
company.

U.S. Treasury Capital Purchase Progran©On November 21, 2008, pursuant to the WSTapital Purchase Program established undi
Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, trer@any issued and sold to the UST (i) 35,000 shafr&eries A Preferred Stock with
aggregate liquidation preference of $35.0 milliow 4ii) a warrant to purchase 330,561 shares othi@panys common stock, at an exerc
price of $15.88 per share, subject to certain dihiiion and other adjustments, for an aggregatetmase price of $35.0 million in cash. B
the number of shares subject to the warrant amme per share reflect adjustments for stock dividetisitributed after issuance.

On December 4, 2014, the UST sold the Series AeReaf Stock in a public auction. Promptly theraafiee Company acquired and retired
Series A Preferred Stock in a noash equity exchange transaction with the accrbditeestors who purchased the Series A PreferreckSt
the auction, which is described in greater detzdv@ under “History.”

Capital Adequacy Requirement$he Federal Reserve Board has adopted a system rtiskbased capital guidelines to evaluate the ce
adequacy of bank holding companies. Under the ¢jnake specific categories of assets are assigiftstanht risk weights, based generally
the perceived credit risk of the asset. These wisights are multiplied by corresponding asset lxadarto determine a “risk-weighted’sse
base. The guidelines require a minimum total liaked capital ratio of 8.0%. At least half of tb&al capital must be composed of comi
equity, retained earnings, senior perpetual prefestock, qualifying perpetual preferred stock, aedain hybrid capital instruments, |
certain intangible assets (“Tier 1 capitalThe remainder may consist of certain subordinatdd,certain hybrid capital instruments, qualify
preferred stock and a limited amount of the allogeafor loan losses (“Tier 2 capital”yotal capital is the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 calpifc
be considered well-capitalized under the risk-basmultal guidelines, an institution must maintaitotal capital to total riskveighted asse
ratio of at least 10% and a Tier 1 capital to totsk-weighted assets ratio of 6% or greater. We are uadgonsent Order with our primi
regulators as previously discussed, and therefameat be considered well-capitalized. Please sapé®ision and Regulatiorébove for oL
capital requirements.

In addition to the risksased capital guidelines, the Federal Reserve Based a leverage ratio as an additional tool tduatea the capiti
adequacy of bank holding companies. The leverafije ismsa company Tier 1 capital divided by its average total cdinlsted assets. Cert:
highly rated bank holding companies may maintamiaimum leverage ratio of 3.0%, but other bank fr@dcompanies may be requirec
maintain a leverage ratio of 4.0%.

The federal banking agencies’ ribesed and leverage ratios are minimum supervistiysrgenerally applicable to banking organizatithra
meet certain specified criteria, assuming that thaye the highest regulatory rating. Banking orgatidns not meeting these criteria
expected to operate with capital positions wellebtihe minimum ratios. The federal bank regulatiygncies may set capital requirement
a particular banking organization that are higl@ntthe minimum ratios when circumstances wareederal Reserve Board guidelines
provide that banking organizations experiencingrmal growth or making acquisitions will be expelcte maintain strong capital positic
substantially above the minimum supervisory leweithout significant reliance on intangible assets.

Changes to Capital Requirements Resulting from BABE In July 2013, the Federal Reserve Board and theCFapproved final rules tr
substantially amend the regulatory rissed capital rules applicable to Bancorp and Bahk. final rules implement the regulatory caj
reforms of the Basel Committee on Banking Supemwisiflected in Basel Ill: A Global Regulatory Framework for Morestlient Banks ar
Banking Systems” (Basel I1l) and changes requingthe DoddFrank Act. The final rules implementing the Badktégulatory capital reforn
became effective for the Company and Bank on JgnuaR015, and include new minimum risksed capital and leverage ratios. T
rules refine the definition of what constitutesgital” for purposes of calculating those ratios, including definitions of Tier 1 capital and T
2 capital.

The new minimum capital level requirements applieab bank holding companies and banks subjedtdaules are a new common equity
1 capital ratio of 4.5%, a Tier 1 risk-based cdpitdio of 6% (increased from 4%), a total risksed capital ratio of 8% (unchanged f
current rules), and a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 4l institutions.

The rules also establish a “capital conservatidifebuof 2.5%, to be phased in over three yearsyvelthe new regulatory minimum rislase:
capital ratios, and the minimum ratios once thatahponservation buffer is fully phased in arecanenon equity Tier 1 riskased capital rat
of 7.0%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 8.5% a total risk-based capital ratio of 10.5%.
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The capital conservation buffer requirement is ¢éophased in beginning in January 2016 at 0.625%skfweighted assets and will incre
each year until fully implemented in January 202®. institution will be subject to limitations on yiag dividends, engaging in sh
repurchases and paying discretionary bonuses ifatdgvels fall below minimum levels plus the baiffamounts. These limitations establi:
maximum percentage of eligible retained income timatld be utilized for such actions. Under these mgles, Tier 1 capital will genera
consist of common stock (plus related surplus)ratained earnings, limited amounts of minority ietd in the form of additional Tier 1 cap
instruments, and nocumulative preferred stock and related surplusjestitio certain eligibility standards, less goodwihd other specifie
intangible assets and other regulatory deductibns.definition of Tier 2 capital is generally undgad for most banking organizations, suk
to certain new eligibility criteria. Common equityer 1 capital will generally consist of common akto(plus related surplus) and retai
earnings plus limited amounts of minority intergsthe form of common stock, less goodwill and othpecified intangible assets and o
regulatory deductions. Proceeds of trust prefesesdirities are excluded from Tier 1 capital uniessed before 2010 by an institution with
than $15 billion of assets.

The final rules allow banks and their holding comipa with less than $250 billion in assets a onmetopportunity to opbut of a requireme
to include unrealized gains and losses in accumdlather comprehensive income in their capitaludaton. The Company and the B
expect to opt-out of this requirement.

Dividends.Under Federal Reserve policy, bank holding commasiould pay cash dividends on common stock ontyobincome availabl
over the past year and only if prospective earnneggntion is consistent with the organizatoekxpected future needs and financial cond
The policy provides that bank holding companiesusthmot declare a level of cash dividends that amitees the bank holding compasy’
ability to serve as a source of strength to itkbansubsidiaries.

The Company is a legal entity separate and distinot the Bank. Historically, the majority of owgwenue has been from dividends paid 1
by the Bank. The Bank is subject to laws and regna that limit the amount of dividends it can pHyin the opinion of a federal regulat:
agency, an institution under its jurisdiction iggaged in or is about to engage in an unsafe orwmkpractice, the agency may require,
notice and hearing, that the institution cease qreltice. The federal banking agencies have itgticthat paying dividends that deplete
institution’s capital base to an inadequate level would be resafa and unsound banking practice. Under the BedBposit Insuran
Corporation Improvement Act (FDICIA), an insuredtitution may not pay any dividend if payment woua#lise it to become undercapitali
or if it already is undercapitalized. Moreover, thederal Reserve and the FDIC have issued polatersents providing that bank hold
companies and banks should generally pay dividentisout of current operating earnings. A bank idcompany may still declare and |
a dividend if it does not have current operatinghegys if the bank holding company expects prdfitisthe entire year and the bank holc
company obtains the prior consent of the FederaeRe. The Company and the Bank must obtain the pnitten consent of each of th
primary regulators prior to declaring or paying dature dividends.

Under Kentucky law, dividends by Kentucky banks rbaypaid only from current or retained net profdefore any dividend may be decla
for any period (other than with respect to preférstock), a bank must increase its capital surpjuat least 10% of the net profits of the b
for the period until the bank’capital surplus equals the amount of its stasgital attributable to its common stock. Moreowbe KDFI mus
approve the declaration of dividends if the totafidbnds to be declared by a bank for any caleygar would exceed the basktotal ne
profits for such year combined with its retained peofits for the preceding two years, less anyumegl transfers to surplus or a fund for
retirement of preferred stock or debt. We are aldgject to the Kentucky Business Corporation Adticlv generally prohibits dividends to
extent they result in the insolvency of the corgiorafrom a balance sheet perspective or in thpamation becoming unable to pay its deb:
they come due. The Bank did not pay any dividend0il4 or 2013.

With respect to the payment of dividends, Portend®ap’s issued and outstanding Series E and Series ErR@fShares rank senior tao
common shares and non-voting common shares.

Imposition of Liability for Undercapitalized Subwides. Bank regulators are required to take “prompt cdivecaction”to resolve problen
associated with insured depository institutions seéhocapital declines below certain levels. In theenévan institution becom
“undercapitalized,”it must submit a capital restoration plan. The tdpiestoration plan will not be accepted by thguiators unless ea
company having control of the undercapitalizediingbn guarantees the subsidiaytompliance with the capital restoration plan ape
certain specified amount. Any such guarantee fratagository institution’s holding company is emitlto a priority of payment in bankruptcy.

The aggregate liability of the holding company ofumdercapitalized bank is limited to the lesseb%f of the institutiors assets at the time
became undercapitalized or the amount necessaguse the institution to be “adequately capitaliz&tie bank regulators have greater pc
in situations where an institution becomes “sigaifitly” or “critically” undercapitalized or fails to submit a capital restion plan. Fc
example, a bank holding company controlling suchnatitution can be required to obtain prior Feti&aserve Board approval of propo
dividends, or might be required to consent to ssobidation or to divest the troubled institutionather affiliates.
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Source of Financial Strengthinder Federal Reserve policy, a bank holding compsuexpected to act as a source of financial gtreto, an
to commit resources to support, its bank subsigiariThis support may be required at times whererdbsuch a policy, the bank hold
company may not be inclined to provide it. In aihit any capital loans by the bank holding comptanigs bank subsidiaries are subordina
right of payment to deposits and to certain othedebtedness of the bank subsidiary. In the eveath#Enk holding companybankruptcy, ar
commitment by the bank holding company to a fedkealk regulatory agency to maintain the capitadudisidiary banks will be assumed
the bankruptcy trustee and entitled to a prioritypayment. The Federal Reserve’s “Source of Firargirength”policy was codified in tt
Dodd-Frank Act.

PBI Bank. The Bank, a Kentucky chartered commercial bankulgect to regular bank examinations and otherrsigien and regulation t
both the FDIC and the KDFI. Kentucky’'s banking stas contain a “super-parity” provision that pesmit wellrated Kentucky bankir
corporation to engage in any banking activity whaduld be engaged in by a national bank operatingny state; a state bank, a thrif
savings bank operating in any other state; or arfdcchartered thrift or federal savings assoamtieeting the qualified thrift lender test .
operating in any state could engage, provided teeticky bank first obtains a legal opinion specifythe statutory or regulatory provisis
that permit the activity.

Capital RequirementsSimilar to the Federal Reserve Board’s requiremémtsoank holding companies, the FDIC has adopiskHrase:
capital requirements for assessing state non-mefdogrs’ capital adequacy. The FDIC's risised capital guidelines require that all b
maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to totek-weighted assets of 8.0% and a minimum rati@ief 1 capital to total riskveighted asse
of 4.0%. To be well-capitalized, a bank must hawat& of total capital to total riskeighted assets of at least 10.0% and a ratio &f 1
capital to total risk-weighted assets of 6.0%.

The Bank has agreed with its primary regulatorm#intain a ratio of total capital to total rigskeighted assets of at least 12.0% and a 1
leverage ratio of 9%. As of December 31, 2014,Bhak’s ratio of total capital to total riskeighted assets was 10.57% and its Tier | leve
ratio was 5.78%, both under the ratios requirethieyConsent Order.

The FDIC also requires a minimum leverage rati8.086 of Tier 1 capital to total assets for the keigfirated banks and an additional cushir
approximately 100-200 basis points for all othemksa The leverage ratio operates in tandem witH-DEC’s risk-based capital guidelines ¢
places a limit on the amount of leverage a bankuratertake by requiring a minimum level of capitatotal assets.

Prompt Corrective ActiorPursuant to the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (ARIthe FDIC must take prompt corrective action to hesathe
problems of undercapitalized institutions. FDIC utegions define the levels at which an insureditumson would be consideredwell
capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercafized,” “significantly undercapitalized” and “ddelly undercapitalized.” A *“well-
capitalized” bank has a total risk-based capitabraf 10.0% or higher; a Tier 1 riskased capital ratio of 6.0% or higher; a leverag® rol
5.0% or higher; and is not subject to any writtgneament, order or directive requiring it to maiimta specific capital level for any cap
measure. An “adequately capitalized” bank has al tigk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or higher; &rTl riskbased capital ratio of 4.0%
higher; a leverage ratio of 4.0% or higher (3.0%igher if the bank was rated a composite 1 imtst recent examination report and is
experiencing significant growth); and does not nthetcriteria for a well-capitalized bank. A bask‘undercapitalizedif it fails to meet an
one of the ratios required to be adequately capitdl A depository institution may be deemed tdrba capitalization category that is lo\
than is indicated by its actual capital positioiit ifeceives an unsatisfactory examination ratiffie degree of regulatory scrutiny increases
the permissible activities of a bank decreasehadank moves downward through the capital categoblepending on a basidevel of capita
the FDIC's corrective powers include:

* requiring a capital restoration ple

* placing limits on asset growth and restriction otivéies;

 requiring the bank to issue additional voting drestcapital stock or to be acquire
 placing restrictions on transactions with affilist

* restricting the interest rate the bank may pay epodits;

» ordering a new election of the b¢ s board of directors
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* requiring that certain senior executive officerslmectors be dismisse
» prohibiting the bank from accepting deposits frasnrespondent bank
 requiring the bank to divest certain subsidiar

 prohibiting the payment of principal or interestsubordinated debt; ar

 ultimately, appointing a receiver for the ba

If an institution is required to submit a capitabtoration plan, the institution’s holding companyst guarantee the subsidiayomplianc
with the capital restoration plan up to a certgiacified amount. Any such guarantee from a depgsitstitution’s holding company is entitl

to a priority of payment in bankruptcy. The aggtedability of the holding company of an underdapzed bank is limited to the lesser of

of the institution’s assets at the time it becamdeucapitalized or the amount necessary to cagsastitution to be “adequately capitalized.’
The bank regulators have greater power in situatishere an institution becomes “significantly” aritically” undercapitalized or fails
submit a capital restoration plan. For exampleaakbholding company controlling such an institutican be required to obtain prior Fed
Reserve Board approval of proposed dividends, ghtride required to consent to a consolidation ativest the troubled institution or otl
affiliates.

Deposit Insurance AssessmeiThe deposits of the Bank are insured by the Depositrance Fund (DIF) of the FDIC up to the lins&t fortt
under applicable law and are subject to the dejpumitrance premium assessments of the DIF. The kDp©ses a riskased deposit premit
assessment system, which was amended pursuar Eetleral Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 (Beform Act”). Under this syster
as amended, the assessment rates for an insuresitdep institution vary according to the levelrifk incurred in its activities. To arrive at
assessment rate for a banking institution, the FpliEes it in one of four risk categories determdity reference to its capital levels .
supervisory ratings. The assessment rate schednlehange from time to time, at the discretiorhefEDIC, subject to certain limits.

The Dodd-Frank Act imposed additional assessmamiscasts with respect to deposits. Under the Diidohk Act, the FDIC is directed
impose deposit insurance assessments based orassetls rather than total deposits, as well as rpakaanent the increase of deg
insurance to $250,000. Effective April 1, 2011, fRIC revised the deposit insurance assessmergmsyst comply with Doddrrank ani
implemented a revised assessment rate processheithoal of differentiating insured depository ingions who pose greater risk to the [
The first assessments under the new rule were fayathe third quarter of 2011.

Safety and Soundness Standardibe FDIA requires the federal bank regulatory aggnto prescribe standards, by regulations oredjniels
relating to internal controls, information systeaml internal audit systems, loan documentatiorditctederwriting, interest rate risk exposi
asset growth, asset quality, earnings, stock vialuand compensation, fees and benefits, and sihar operational and managerial stand
as the agencies deem appropriate. Guidelines atidpteahe federal bank regulatory agencies estalgesteral standards relating to tr
matters. In general, the guidelines require, amathgr things, appropriate systems and practicédetatify and manage the risk and expos
specified in the guidelines. The guidelines prahéicessive compensation as an unsafe and unseaatice and describe compensatio
excessive when the amounts paid are unreasonablispoportionate to the services performed by>atetive officer, employee, director
principal shareholder. In addition, the agenciespaeld regulations that authorize, but do not reguan agency to order an institution that
been given notice by an agency that it is not fyatig any of such safety and soundness standarsishtimit a compliance plan. If, after being
notified, an institution fails to submit an accdgéacompliance plan or fails in any material respgeémplement an acceptable compliance |
the agency must issue an order directing actiaoteect the deficiency and may issue an order tiivgother actions of the types to whict
undercapitalized institution is subject under tpeompt corrective action” provisions of FDIA. Seerbmpt Corrective Actionsébove. If a
institution fails to comply with such an order, tagency may seek to enforce such order in judmiateedings and to impose civil mo
penalties.

Branching.Kentucky law permits Kentucky chartered banks tal@ish a banking office in any county in KentuckyKentucky bank may al:
establish a banking office outside of Kentucky. Waglpitalized Kentucky banks that have been in afem at least three years and sa
certain criteria relating to, among other thingmit composite and management ratings, may estadblimnking office in Kentucky without 1
approval of the KDFI upon notice to the KDFI ang/arther state bank with its main office locatedhie county where the new banking of
will be located. Branching by all other banks regsithe approval of the KDFI, which must ascertaid determine that the public convenie
and advantage will be served and promoted andthiemé is reasonable probability of the successpdration of the banking office. T
transaction must also be approved by the FDIC, wkimnsiders a number of factors, including finahbiatory, capital adequacy, earnil
prospects, character of management, needs of thmuaaity and consistency with corporate powers.
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Section 613 of the Dodd—Frank Act effectively elivaied the interstate branching restrictions sehfor the RiegleéNeal Interstate Bankit
and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994. Banks locaiadany state may now de novo branch in any otkete sincluding Kentucky. Su
unlimited branching power will likely increase coetiion within the markets in which the Company &nel Bank operate.

Insider Credit TransactionsThe restrictions on loans to directors, executifiicers, principal shareholders and their relateterest
(collectively referred to as “insiders”) containedthe FederaReserve Act and Regulation O apply to all insuregasitory institutions ar
their subsidiaries. These restrictions include ténan loans to one borrower and conditions thattrbasnet before such a loan can be nr
There is also an aggregate limitation on all loengsiders and their related interests, which matyexceed the institutios’total unimpaire
capital and surplus.

Automated Overdraft Payment RegulatiThe Federal Reserve and FDIC have enacted consumigrction regulations related to autom:
overdraft payment programs offered by financiatitnsons. In November 2009, the Federal Reserveratad its Regulation E to prohi
financial institutions from charging consumers fées paying overdrafts on automated teller machind onetime debit card transactiol
unless a consumer consents, or opts in, to thedmferservice for those types of transactions. Regulation E amendments also reg
financial institutions to provide consumers witmatice that explains the financial institutisrdverdraft services, including the fees assoc
with the service and the consumer’s choices.

In November 2010, the FDIC supplemented the Reiguld amendments by requiring FDEDpervised institutions to implement additic
changes relating to automated overdraft paymengrpms by July 1, 2011. One material change requirehcial institutions to monit
overdraft payment programs for “excessive or clowbrmiustomer use and to undertake “meaningful arfdcgé¥e” follow-up action witl
customers that overdraw their accounts more thatireies during a rolling 12onth period. The new guidance also imposes diilitd or
overdraft charges, requires institutions to revéewl modify checlclearing procedures, prominently distinguish actdatances from availak
overdraft coverage amounts and requires increasad tand management oversight regarding overdagfnpnt programs.

Consumer Protection LawsVe are subject to a number of federal and state @gigned to protect borrowers and promote lendingriou:
sectors of the economy and population. These laelade, among others, the Equal Credit Opportuaadi; the Fair Credit Reporting Act, t
Truth in Lending Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosia, and the Real Estate Settlement and Procedwtsnd state law counterparts.

Equal Credit Opportunity Act. This statute prohsbdiscrimination against an applicant in any crédinsaction, whether for consumei
business purposes, on the basis of race, colégia®l national origin, sex, marital status, agecépt in limited circumstances), receip
income from public assistance programs or gooth &iercise of any rights under the Consumer Cieditection Act. Under the Fair Hous
Act, it is unlawful for any lender to discriminabe its housingrelated lending activities against any person beeaf race, color, religio
national origin, sex, handicap or familial statdsnong other things, these laws prohibit a lendemfrdenying or discouraging credit o
discriminatory basis, making excessively low apgaks of property based on racial considerationsharging excessive rates or imposing r
stringent loan terms or conditions on a discrimomatasis. In addition to private actions by agegi borrowers or applicants for actual
punitive damages, the U.S. Department of Justigk @her regulatory agencies can take enforcememnaseeking injunctive and ott
equitable relief or sanctions for alleged violaton

Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA")FCRA requires the Bank to adopt and implement atevriidentity theft prevention program, pay
particular attention to several identified “reddlleevents. The program must assess the validity ofesddchange requests for card issuer:
for users of consumer reports to verify the subjée consumer report in the event of notice oaddress discrepancy. FCRA gives consu
the ability to challenge banks with respect to #rezborting information provided by the bank. FCREso prohibits banks from using cer!
information it may acquire from an affiliate to ®itl the consumer for marketing purposes unlessctisumer has been given notice an
opportunity to opt out of such solicitation for arpd of five years.

Truth in Lending Act (“TILA”). TILA is designed to ensure that credit terms aseldsed in a meaningful way so that consumers rompart
credit terms more readily and knowledgeably. Asiitesf TILA, all creditors must use the same crédiminology and expressions of rates,
disclose the annual percentage rate, the finanagehthe amount financed, the total of paymentsthe payment schedule for each prop
loan. Violations of TILA may result in regulatorarsctions and in the imposition of both civil and,the case of willful violations, crimir
penalties. In certain circumstances, TILA also jfes a consumer with a right of rescission, whickxercised within three business ¢
would require the creditor to reimburse any amaaid by the consumer to the creditor or to a tpady in connection with the loan, includ
finance charges, application fees, commitment fe#s,search fees and appraisal fees. Consumeysaisa seek actual and punitive dam:
for violations of TILA.
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Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (“HMDAHMDA has grown out of public concern over credibghges in certain urban neighborhoods.
purpose of HMDA is to provide public informationathwill help show whether financial institutionseaerving the housing credit needs ol
neighborhoods and communities in which they aratkd. HMDA also includes a “fair lendingdspect that requires the collection
disclosure of data about applicant and borroweratharistics, as a way of identifying possible disinatory lending patterns and enforc
anti-discrimination statutes. HMDA requires institutiotts report data regarding applications for loanstf® purchase or improvement
single family and multfamily dwellings, as well as information concerniagginations and purchases of such loans. Fedbenalt regulatol
rely, in part, upon data provided under HMDA toeatatine whether depository institutions engage strilninatory lending practices. T
appropriate federal banking agency, or in somesc#se Department of Housing and Urban Developmemfgrces compliance with HMC
and implements its regulations. Administrative $@mms, including civil money penalties, may be impd by supervisory agencies
violations of HMDA.

Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (“RESPRBSPA requires lenders to provide borrowers wititldsures regarding the nature and

of real estate settlements. RESPA also prohibitsiceabusive practices, such as kickbacks, ancepléimitations on the amount of esc
accounts. Violations of RESPA may result in impositof penalties, including: (1) civil liability el to three times the amount of any ch
paid for the settlement services or civil liabil@fup to $1,000 per claimant, depending on théatian; (2) awards of court costs and attorney:
fees; and (3) fines of not more than $10,000 orisgmment for not more than one year, or both.

Loans to One Borrower. Under current limits, loansl extensions of credit outstanding at one tima $ingle borrower and not fully secu
generally may not exceed 15% of an instituttonhimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. Loamd extensions of credit fully secured
certain readily marketable collateral may represenadditional 10% of unimpaired capital and uniimgghsurplus.

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”"Yhe DoddFrank Act created a new, independent federal ageatigd the Consum
Financial Protection Bureau, which is granted brnddmaking, supervisory and enforcement powersurdrious federal consumer finan
protection laws. The CFPB has examination and pgireaforcement authority with respect to depositotitutions with $10 billion or mo
in assets. Smaller institutions will be subjectrites promulgated by the CFPB, but will continuebto examined and supervised by fec
banking regulators for consumer compliance purposhe CFPB has authority to prevent unfair, deseptr abusive acts or practices
connection with the offering of consumer finangabducts. The Dodé&rank Act authorizes the CFPB to establish cenaiimimum standarc
for the origination of residential mortgages inéhgla determination of the borrower’s ability tgag. In addition, the Dod8rank Act allow
borrowers to raise certain defenses to forecloguhey receive any loan other than a “qualifiedrtgage” as defined by the CFPB.

The DoddFrank Act also permits states to adopt consumeteption laws and standards that are more strinthent those adopted at
federal level and, in certain circumstances, perretate attorneys general to enforce complianck hdath the state and federal laws
regulations. Federal preemption of state consumetegtion law requirements, traditionally an attitid of the federal savings associa
charter, has also been modified by the Dodd-Frank ahd now requires a case-tgse determination of preemption by the Office h&
Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC’and eliminates preemption for subsidiaries of akb&epending on the implementation of this rev
federal preemption standard, the operations oB#rgk could become subject to additional complidneglens in the states in which it opere

Volcker Rule On December 10, 2013, the final Volcker Rule urthle DoddFrank Act was approved and implemented by the RRBFDIC
the SEC, and the Commodity Futures Trading Comomssihe Volcker Rule attempts to reduce risk andklrey system instability t
restricting U.S. banks from investing in or engagim proprietary trading and speculation and impgs strict framework to justify exemptic
for underwriting, marketnaking and hedging activities. U.S. banks will bstricted from investing in funds with collateraineprised of les
than 100% loans that are not registered with thé 8&d from engaging in hedging activities that dohredge a specific identified risk. We
not believe the Volcker Rule will have a signifitaffect on the Bank’s operations.

Privacy. Federal law currently contains extensive custonmdfapy protection provisions. Under these provisioa financial institution mu
provide to its customers, at the inception of thstemer relationship and annually thereafter, tiséitution’s policies and procedures regart
the handling of customersonpublic personal financial information. Theseyismns also provide that, except for certain lgdiexceptions,
institution may not provide such personal informatito unaffiliated third parties unless the inditin discloses to the customer that ¢
information may be so provided and the customeivien the opportunity to opt out of such disclosifederal law makes it a criminal offer
except in limited circumstances, to obtain or atieto obtain customer information of a financiatura by fraudulent or deceptive means.
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Community Reinvestment Athe Community Reinvestment Act (“CRAfrgquires the FDIC to assess our record in meetiagtedit needs
the communities we serve, including low- and motdenacome neighborhoods and persons. The FDESsessment of our record is
available to the public. The assessment also tsopdne Federal Reserve Boasdonsideration of applications to acquire, mengeomsolidat
with another banking institution or its holding cpamy, to establish a new banking office or to ratean office.

Bank Secrecy AcThe Bank Secrecy Act of 1970 (“BSAWas enacted to deter money laundering, establgliatory reporting standards
currency transactions and improve detection andstigation of criminal, tax and other regulatorglations. BSA and subsequent laws
regulations require us to take steps to preventsigeof the Bank in the flow of illegal or illicthoney, including, without limitation, ensuri
effective management oversight, establishing sqatidies and procedures, developing effective nosiriy and reporting capabilities, ensul
adequate training and establishing a compreherisigenal audit of BSA compliance activities. In eat years, federal regulators h
increased the attention paid to compliance withpitevisions of BSA and related laws, with particid#tention paid to “Know Your Customer”
practices. Banks have been encouraged by regulet@ehance their identification procedures pramtcepting new customers in orde
deter criminal elements from using the bankingesysto move and hide illegal and illicit activities.

USA Patriot Act.The USA Patriot Act of 2001 (the “Patriot Act”) dams antimoney laundering measures affecting insured depg
institutions, brokedealers and certain other financial institutionke TPatriot Act requires financial institutions toplement policies ar
procedures to combat money laundering and the dingrof terrorism. This includes standards for fygmg customer identification at accor
opening, as well as rules to promote cooperatioargniinancial institutions, regulators and law enément entities in identifying parties t
may be involved in terrorism or money launderirigyreints the Secretary of the Treasury broad aityhtor establish regulations and to imp
requirements and restrictions on the operatiorfiancial institutions. In addition, the Patriot Aequires the federal bank regulatory aget
to consider the effectiveness of a financial in§itin’s antimoney laundering activities when reviewing bank gees and bank holdil
company acquisitions.

Effect on Economic Environment.The policies of regulatory authorities, includirgetmonetary policy of the Federal Reserve Boarde fa
significant effect on the operating results of b&okding companies and their subsidiaries. Amorgrtteans available to the Federal Res
Board to affect the money supply are open markeratpns in U.S. government securities, changehendiscount rate on member b
borrowings and changes in reserve requirementsisigaiember bank deposits. These means are usatyiimy combinations to influen
overall growth and distribution of bank loans, istreents and deposits. Their use may affect intea¢ss charged on loans or paid for deposit:

Federal Reserve Board monetary policies have nadliedffected the operating results of commerciahhs in the past and are expecte
continue to do so in the future. The nature ofieitenonetary policies and the effect of such padi@a our business and earnings and tha
our subsidiaries cannot be predicted.

Recently Enacted and Future Legislation.Various laws, regulations and governmental prografiscting financial institutions and 1
financial industry are from time to time introdudedCongress or otherwise promulgated by regulaaggncies. Such measures may chang
operating environment of Porter Bancorp and itssiliéiries in substantial and unpredictable way® fiiture and extent of future legislat
regulatory or other changes affecting financiatitngons is unpredictable at this time.

We cannot predict what other legislation or ecormopulicies of the various regulatory authoritiegghtibe enacted or adopted or what ¢
regulations might be adopted or the effects therBafure legislation, policies and the effects ¢loérmight have a significant influence
overall growth and distribution of loans, investrteeand deposits, as well as affect interest rdtasged on loans or paid on time and sa\
deposits. Such legislation and policies have haigj@ificant effect on the operating results of coencial banks in the past and are expect
continue to do so in the future.

Available Information

We file periodic reports with the SEC including amual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omfr 10Q, current event reports on Fc
8-K and proxy statements. The public may read amy @any materials we file with the SEC at the S&E@Ublic Reference Room at 10
Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The public mataiobinformation on the operation of the Public &ehce Room by calling the SEC at 1
800-SECP330. The SEC maintains an internet site that aomteeports, proxy and information statements athgroinformation regardir
issuers that file electronically with the SEC _atphifwww.sec.qgov. Our SEC reports filed are accessible at no cosbar web site
http://www.pbibank.com under the Investors Relations section, once #reyelectronically filed with or furnished to th&S. A sharehold:
may also request a copy of our Annual Report ommFb@K free of charge upon written request to: Chiefdricial Officer, Porter Bancol
Inc., 2500 Eastpoint Parkway, Louisville, Kentuekyz23.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock involves a nundfetisks. Realization of any of the risks descdilieelow could have a material adve
effect on our business, financial condition, resol operations, cash flow and/or future prospects.

We are subject to a Consent Order with the FDIC andhe KDFI and a formal agreement with the Federal Rserve that restrict the
conduct of our operations and may have a materialdverse effect on our business.

Our good standing with bank regulatory agenciesf ifindamental importance to the continuation of businesses. In June 2011, the E
agreed to a Consent Order with the FDIC and KDFwhich the Bank agreed, among other things, to aw@rasset quality, reduce I
concentrations, and maintain a minimum Tier 1 lagerratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based teapatio of 12%. The Consent Or
was included in our Current Report on 8-K filedJame 30, 2011.

On September 21, 2011, we entered into a Writtereément with the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Lduissuant to the Agreement, we m
formal commitments to, among other things, usefimancial and management resources to serve aaraesof strength for the Bank anc
assist the Bank in addressing weaknesses idenbfjetie FDIC and the KDFI, to pay no dividends wiih prior written approval, to pay
interest or principal on subordinated debenturesust preferred securities without prior writtgppaoval, and to submit an acceptable ple
maintain sufficient capital.

In October 2012, the Bank entered into a reviseds€ot Order with the FDIC and KDFI again agreemghintain a minimum Tier 1 levere
ratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based capittio of 12%. The Bank also agreed that if it skolod unable to reach the required ca
levels, and if directed in writing by the FDIC, ththe Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt mmglement a written plan to sell or me
itself into another federally insured financial tingion or otherwise immediately obtain a capitalestment into the Bank sufficient to ft
meet the capital requirements. The revised CorGeier also requires the Bank to continue to adteetbe plans implemented in respons
the June 2011 Consent Order, and includes the anth& provisions of the June 2011 Consent Ordez. didd not meet the capital rat
required by the Consent Order as of December 314.20

Bank regulatory agencies can exercise discretioenvdn institution does not meet minimum regulatapital levels and the other terms
consent order. The agencies may initiate changesimgement, issue mandatory directives, imposetagnpenalties or refrain from forn
sanctions, depending on individual circumstanceasy Action taken by bank regulatory agencies cowadhabe our reputation and hav
material adverse effect on our business. Compliavite the Consent Order also increases our opgraipense, and adversely affects
financial performance.

We have made commitments to the banking regulator® raise additional capital. Our inability to increase our capital to the levels
required by our bank regulatory agreements could hae a material adverse effect on our business.

We incurred a net loss of $11.2 million and $1.8iam in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Losses, performing loan costs, expenses for @
real estate owned (“OREO”gnd asset impairments have reduced our capitawb#ie levels we agreed to maintain with our ban
regulators. While we believe we have recognizedtiobable losses in our portfolio, further creditatioration could result in additional los
and a reduction in capital levels.

In its consent order with the FDIC and the KDFE Bank has agreed to maintain a ratio of totalteajn total riskweighted assets of at le
12.0% and a ratio of Tier 1 capital to averagetasse9.0%. As of December 31, 2014, the Bank'®rat total capital to total riskveightec
assets was 10.57% and its ratio of Tier 1 capitaiverage assets was 5.78%, both below the ratipsred by the consent order.

We have agreed with the FDIC, the KDFI and the Fadeeserve Bank of St. Louis to restore our capétios to levels that comply with ¢
regulatory agreements. We are evaluating varioesifip initiatives to increase our regulatory capiand reduce our ngperforming asset
Strategic alternatives include divesting of branoffites, selling loans and raising capital by sgjlstock.

Our ability to raise additional capital will depead, among other things, conditions in the capitatkets at that time (which are outside of
control) and our financial performance, includifig thanagement of our revenue, expenses, levelgeohge assets, credit quality, level
OREO, and contingent liability risks. We may novéaccess to capital on acceptable terms or a@all.inability to raise additional capital
acceptable terms when needed could have a materiatse effect on our businesses, financial canditind results of operations. In addit
if we are unable to comply with our regulatory ¢aprequirements, it could result in more stringenforcement actions by the bank regule
agencies, which could damage our reputation and hawaterial adverse effect on our business.
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Regulatory restrictions have prevented us from payig interest on the junior subordinated debentureshat relate to our trust preferred
securities since the fourth quarter of 2011. If wecannot pay accrued and unpaid interest on these sgities for more than twenty
consecutive quarters, we will be in default.

Effective with the fourth quarter of 2011, we begieferring interest payments on the junior subatdid debentures relating to our t
preferred securities. Deferring interest paymentstiee junior subordinated debentures resulted oteferral of distributions on our trt
preferred securities.

If we defer distributions on our trust preferredggties for 20 consecutive quarters, we must phglederred distributions in full or we will
in default. Our deferral period expires in the dhiuarter of 2016. Deferred distributions on owsstrpreferred securities, which totaled ¢
million as of December 31, 2014, are cumulativel anpaid distributions accrue and compound on sabkequent payment date. If as a
of a default we become subject to any liquidatdiesolution or winding up, holders of the trustfpreed securities will be entitled to rece
the liquidation amounts to which they are entitlegtluding all accrued and unpaid distributionsfobe any distribution can be made to
shareholders. In addition, the holders of our Selieand Series F Preferred Shares will be entidegceive liquidation distributions totali
more than $10.5 million before any distribution denmade to the holders of our common shares.

As a bank holding company, we depend on dividendsd distributions paid by our banking subsidiary.

The Company is a legal entity separate and distinat the Bank and our other subsidiaries. Ourgipial source of cash flow, from which
would fund any dividends paid to our shareholdbes historically been dividends the Company recefvem the Bank. Regulations of
FDIC and the KDFI govern the ability of the Bankpay dividends and other distributions to us, agllations of the Federal Reserve go
our ability to pay dividends or make other disttibos to our shareholders. In its consent ordeh wie FDIC and the KDFI, the Bank agr
not to pay dividends to us without the prior consafithose regulators. During 2011, the Companytridmmed $13.1 million to the Bank. T
contribution, which was made to strengthen the Backpital in an effort to help it comply with itapital ratio requirements under the con
order, also substantially decreased the liquidtagsfethe Company. Liquid assets decreased from3%2dlion at December 31, 2010 to $
million at December 31, 2014. Since the Bank iskety to be in a position to pay dividends to thenpany for the foreseeable future, ¢
inflows for the Company are limited to earningsiovestment securities, sales of investment seesriind interest on its deposits held a
Bank. These cash inflows, along with the liquideassheld at December 31, 2014, are needed to @ngwing operating expenses of
Company, which are forecasted at approximately $dilBon for 2015. See the “Supervision-Porter BameDividends”section of Item :
“Business” and the “Dividends” section of Item Bldrket for Registran§ Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters asdds Purchas
of Equity Securities” of this Annual Report on Folf®+-K.

We are effectively precluded from paying any dividads for the forseeable future.

Our agreement with the holders of our trust prefisecurities provides that we cannot pay dividemds we pay all deferred distributions
full and resume paying quarterly distributions. Waeve also agreed with the Federal Reserve to oltsawmritten consent prior to declaring
paying any future dividends. As a practical matteg,cannot pay dividends for the foreseeable futireddition, the dividend preference:
our Series E and Series F Preferred Shares emtitlpreferred shareholders to receive an annuaturoulative 2% dividend before we can
a dividend on our non-voting common shares anchgatbmmon shares.

Our holding company debt could make it difficult to raise capital.

At December 31, 2014, we had an aggregate obligafi®27.2 million relating to the principal andcaged unpaid interest on our four issue
junior subordinated debentures, which has resufted deferral of distributions on our trust preéetrsecurities. Although we are permitte
defer payments on these securities for up to feay (and we commenced doing so in 2011), therdefénterest payments continue to ac
until paid in full.

Our holding company debt could make it difficult tecapitalize or enter into a business combinatransaction because any investo
purchaser would effectively assume the outstantiédlity on the debt in addition to the amountfahds such investors or purchaser wi
need to provide in order to recapitalize the Bamit the Company.
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We are defendants in various legal proceedings.

The Company and the Bank are involved in judici@cpedings and regulatory investigations concermiagters arising from our busin
activities. Although we believe we have a meritasalefense in all significant litigation pendingaast us, we cannot assure you as t
ultimate outcome. Litigation is subject to inheremnicertainties and unfavorable rulings could oce. record contingent liabilities result
from claims against us when a loss is assessed prdbable and the amount of the loss is reasoresignable. Assessing probability of |
and estimating probable losses requires analysisutiiple factors, including in some cases judgreetiout the potential actions of third p.
claimants and courts. Recorded contingent liaeditare based on the best information availableaahaal losses in any future period
inherently uncertain. Accruals are not made in sagkere liability is not probable or the amountrgatnbe reasonably estimated. We pro
disclosure of matters where we believe liabilitygasonably possible and which may be materialtaconsolidated financial statements. If
do not prevail, the ultimate outcome of litigatioratter could have a material adverse effect orfinancial condition, results of operations
cash flows. For more information about ongoing legaceedings, see “Note 24 — Contingencief'the Notes to Consolidated Finan
Statements.

The Bank previously has served as trustee for Empj@e Stock Ownership Plans (‘ESOP”Wwhich engaged in transactions that unde
review are the subject of litigation initiated by he Department of Labor (“DOL"), subjecting us to cetain financial risks.

From 2007 until the first quarter of 2013, the Baekved as trustee for certain ESOPs that purchhsestock of companies from prior owr
in purchase transactions. Stock purchase transactiy ESOPs are subject to regular and routineewesviby the DOL for compliance w
ERISA. Failure to fulfill our fiduciary duties und€&RISA with respect to any such plan would subjestto certain financial risks such
claims for damages as well as fines and penaltisssaable under ERISA. The Bank is a defendamigial proceedings initiated by the D
with respect to two stock purchase transactionE€8®Ps for which the Bank served as trustee. A guliat the Bank failed to fulfill i
fiduciary duties under ERISA with respect to an ES@cluding stock purchases by the ESOP, wouldestitus to certain financial risl
including claims for damages as well as fines amdafties assessable under ERISA. See “Note 24 -tifgencies”of the Notes t
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Investigations into and heightened scrutiny of oupperations could result in additional costs and damge our reputation.

The U.S. Attorneys office for the Eastern District of Virginia is maucting an investigation concerning possible tiotes of federal law
including, among other things, possible violatiortated to false bank entries, bank fraud and #eufraud. The investigation conce
allegations that Bank personnel engaged in practiceended to delay or avoid disclosure of the Bsrdsset quality at the time of :
following the United States Treasusypurchase of preferred stock from the Company avexhber 2008. We are cooperating with
investigation. Heightened scrutiny of the operatiofithe Company and the Bank by federal and sffit@als may subject us to governmel
or regulatory inquiries, investigations, actionsnalties and fines, which could adversely affectreputation and result in costs to us in ex
of current reserves and management’s estimateecddhregate range of possible loss for litigatiattens.

Our business has been and may continue to be advelg affected by conditions in the financial marketsand by economic condition
generally.

Ongoing weakness in business and economic conglienerally or specifically in our markets has et could continue to have one or n
of the following adverse effects on our business:

. A decrease in the demand for loans and other pteduntl services offered by

. A decrease in the value of collateral securingloans;

. An impairment of certain intangible assets, suchae deposit intangibles; a

. An increase in the number of customers who becoslinqlient, file for protection under bankruptcy taar default on the
loans.

Adverse conditions in the general business envimrirhave had an adverse effect on our businesgipdst. Although the general busit
environment has improved, we can give no assurdratesuch improvement can be sustained. In additi@mimprovement of certain econol
indicators, such as real estate asset values, @misunemployment, may vary between geographiketerand may continue to lag bel
improvement in the overall economy. These econdndicators typically affect the real estate andaficial services industries, in which
have a significant number of customers, more sicanitly than other economic sectors. Furthermoeehawe a substantial lending business
depends upon the ability of borrowers to make debvice payments on loans. Should economic comditiworsen, our business, finan
condition or results of operations could be advgraBected.
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A large percentage of our loans are collateralizetly real estate, and prolonged weakness in the reastate market may result in losse
and adversely affect our profitability.

Approximately 84.0% of our loan portfolio as of @eaber 31, 2014, was comprised of commercial andersal loans collateralized by r
estate. Adverse economic conditions could decrdas®nd for real estate and depress real estatesvimwur markets. Persistent weakne
the real estate market could significantly imphe value of our collateral and our ability to bk collateral upon foreclosure. The real e:
collateral in each case provides an alternate sonfrcepayment in the event of default by the beaoand may deteriorate in value during
time the credit is extended. If real estate valledine further, it will become more likely that weuld be required to increase our allowe
for loan losses. If during a period of depressed estate values, we are required to liquidatectikateral securing a loan to satisfy the del
to increase our allowance for loan losses, it coudderially reduce our profitability and adversaffect our financial condition.

We offer real estate construction and developmenbéns, which carry a higher degree of risk than othereal estate loans. Weakness
the residential construction and commercial develoment real estate markets has in the past increaselde non-performing assets in ou
loan portfolio and our provision expense for lossesn loans. These impacts have had, and could in tlieture have a material advers
effect on our capital, financial condition and reslts of operations.

Approximately 5.3% of our loan portfolio as of Dedger 31, 2014 consisted of real estate construetiah development loans, down fr
6.1% at December 31, 2013 and 7.8% at December. Zlese loans generally carry a higher degree séf than longerm financing c
existing properties because repayment dependseoultimate completion of the project and usuallytlom sale of the property. If we are for
to foreclose on a project prior to its completisre may not be able to recover the entire unpaitiggoof the loan or we may be requirec
fund additional money to complete the project, oldhthe property for an indeterminate period ofdimny of these outcomes may resu
losses and adversely affect our profitability aimarficial condition.

Residential construction and commercial developnteat estate activity in our markets were affeddgdchallenging economic conditic
following the financial crisis of 2008. Weaknesstlmese sectors could lead to additional valuatdjnsiments to our loan portfolios and |
estate owned as we continue to reassess the fa@ ohour nonperforming assets, the loss severity of loans faudeand the fair value of re
estate owned. We also may realize additional logse€®nnection with our disposition of ngerforming assets. A weak real estate mi
could further reduce demand for residential houysimgjch, in turn, could adversely affect real estdévelopment and construction activit
Consequently, the longer challenging economic damdi persist, the more likely they are to adversédiect the ability of residential real est
development borrowers to repay these loans andatue of property used as collateral for such lodimese economic conditions and ma
factors have negatively affected some of our lalggns in the past, causing our total okérge offs to increase and requiring us to sigaifily
increase our allowance for loan losses. Any furiherease in our noperforming assets and related increases in ouriggoovexpense f
losses on loans could negatively affect our busirsesl could have a material adverse effect on apita, financial condition and results
operations.

Our decisions regarding credit risk may not be accrate, and our allowance for loan losses may not k&ufficient to cover actual losse
which could adversely affect our business, financi@ondition and results of operations.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses at a lexebelieve is adequate to absorb probable incuogsgks in our loan portfolio based
historical loan loss experience, economic and enwirental factors, specific problem loans, valueiederlying collateral and other relev
factors. If our assessment of these factors imatily inaccurate, the allowance may not be sefficto cover actual future loan losses, w
would adversely affect our operating results. Gastingates are subjective, and their accuracy depemdise outcome of future events. Chai

in economic, operating, and other conditions thhatgenerally beyond our control could cause adtsi losses to increase significantly
addition, bank regulatory agencies, as an intguael of their supervisory functions, periodicalgview the adequacy of our allowance for |
losses. Regulatory agencies have from time to teqeired us to increase our provision for loandsssr to recognize additional loan charge
offs when their judgment has differed from oursy/Aafithese events could have a material negatiyaainon our operating results.
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Our levels of classified loans and nperforming assets may increase in the foreseeahleefif economic conditions cause more borrowe
default. Further, the value of the collateral uhdeg a given loan, and the realizable value oftsaallateral in a foreclosure sale, may dec
making us less likely to realize a full recoveryaifborrower defaults on a loan. Any additional @ases in the level of our ngerforming
assets, loan chargefs or provision for loan losses, or our inabiltty realize the estimated net value of underlyiatiateral in the event of
loan default, could negatively affect our busindis®ncial condition, results of operations andftitagling price of our securities.

If we experience greater credit losses than anticgied, our operating results may be adversely affeet.

As a lender, we are exposed to the risk that ostoooers will be unable to repay their loans acemydd their terms and that any collat
securing the payment of their loans may not bei@afft to assure repayment. Credit losses are émhén the business of making loans
could have a material adverse effect on our opegatsults. Our credit risk with respect to our estate and construction loan portfolio
relate principally to the creditworthiness of baveys and the value of the real estate serving @sisefor the repayment of loans. Our cri
risk with respect to our commercial and consumanl@ortfolio will relate principally to the generateditworthiness of businesses

individuals within our local markets.

We make various assumptions and judgments aboutdifectability of our loan portfolio and provide allowance for estimated loss los
based on a number of factors. We believe that bonvance for loan losses is adequate. Howeveryifassumptions or judgments are wrt
our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficientover our actual loan losses. We may have ¢eease our allowance in the future
response to the request of one of our primary lmankegulators, to adjust for changing conditions assumptions, or as a result of
deterioration in the quality of our loan portfolibhe actual amount of future provisions for loasskes cannot be determined at this time
may vary from the amounts of past provisions.

We continue to hold and acquire a significant amounof OREO properties, which could increase operatig expenses and result in futur
losses to the Company.

During recent years, we have acquired a signifieambunt of real estate as a result of foreclosutgyaleed in lieu of foreclosure that is lis
on our balance sheet as OREO. An increase in olt@portfolio increases the expenses incurred toagarand dispose of these propet
which sometimes includes funding construction resgiito facilitate sale. We expect that our opeatiesults in 2015 will continue to
adversely affected by expenses associated with QRiiding insurance and taxes, completion anairegosts, as well as by the fund
costs associated with OREO assets.

Properties in our OREO portfolio are recorded atltdwer of the recorded investment in the loansafbich the properties previously serve:
collateral or “fair value,'which represents the estimated sales price of ihigepties on the date acquired less estimatedgadtists. Generall
in determining “fair value”an orderly disposition of the property is assumext;ept where a different disposition strategy ipestec
Significant judgment is required in estimating fag value of OREQO, and the period of time withimieh such estimates can be consid
current may change during periods of market vatatil

Any decreases in market prices of real estate immuket areas may lead to additional OREO writerdn with a corresponding expense in
statement of operations. We evaluate OREO propeiiyes periodically and write down the carryingueabf the properties if and when
results of our analysis require it.

In response to market conditions and other econdawiors, we may utilize alternative sale strategither than orderly disposition as pal
our OREO disposition strategy, such as bulk satethis event, as a result of the significant judmts required in estimating fair value and
variables involved in different methods of dispiasit the net proceeds realized from such salesaions could differ significantly fra
appraisals, comparable sales, and other estimagesta determine the fair value of our OREO prapgrin addition, our disposition of ORI
through alternative sales strategies could impgaefdir value of comparable OREO properties remgiim our portfolio.

Our profitability depends significantly on local emnomic conditions.

Because most of our business activities are corduntcentral Kentucky and most of our credit expeds in that region, we are at risk fr
adverse economic or business developments affettisgarea, including declining regional and lobakiness and employment activity
downturn in real estate values and agriculturavaiets and natural disasters. To the extent theraéKentucky economy weakens, the rate
delinquencies, foreclosures, bankruptcies and $o&seour loan portfolio will likely increase. Moreer, the value of real estate or o
collateral that secures our loans could be adwersifécted by the economic downturn or a localinedlural disaster. Events that adver
affect business activity and real estate value€entral Kentucky have had and may continue to havegative impact on our busint
financial condition, results of operations and fatprospects.
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Our small to medium-sized business portfolio may ha fewer resources to weather a downturn in the ecomy.

Our portfolio includes loans to small and mediuedi businesses and other commercial enterpriseall &md mediunsized business
frequently have smaller market shares than theirpaitors, may be more vulnerable to economic domst, often need substantial additic
capital to expand or compete and may experiencstaotial variations in operating results, any ofickhmay impair a borrowes’ ability tc
repay a loan. In addition, the success of a smmathediumsized business often depends on the managementstaled efforts of one or t
persons or a small group of persons. The deathbility or resignation of one or more of these passcould have a material adverse impa
the business and its ability to repay our loan.ohtimued economic downturn may have a more proredimegative impact on our tar
market, causing us to incur substantial creditdeghat could materially harm our operating results

Our profitability is vulnerable to fluctuations in interest rates.

Changes in interest rates could harm our finargabition or results of operations. Our result®pérations depend substantially on net int
income, the difference between interest earnechtardst-earning assets (such as investments and)laad interest paid on interdxaring
liabilities (such as deposits and borrowings). hese rates are highly sensitive to many factorsluting governmental monetary policies
domestic or international economic or political diions. Factors beyond our control, such as iitftatrecession, unemployment and mc
supply may also affect interest rates. If, as altef decreasing interest rates, our inteezstaing assets mature or reprice more quickly tha
interest-bearing liabilities in a given period, met interest income may decrease. Likewise, ouimerest income may decrease if interes
bearing liabilities mature or reprice more quicktian interest-earning assets in a given periodrasidt of increasing interest rates.

Fixed-rate loans increase our exposure to inteegstrisk in a rising rate environment becauseréstdearing liabilities would be subject
repricing before assets become subject to reprididgustablerate loans decrease the risk associated with ckangaterest rates but invol
other risks, such as the inability of borrowersrtake higher payments in an increasing interesteratironment. At the same time, for sect
loans, the marketability of the underlying collalemay be adversely affected by higher intereststain a declining interest rate environm
there may be an increase in prepayments on loatieadsorrowers refinance their loans at lower igérates, which could reduce net inte
income and harm our results of operations.

If we cannot obtain adequate funding, we may not bable to meet the cash flow requirements of our d@gitors and borrowers, or mee
the operating cash needs of the Company.

Our liquidity policies and limits are establishegdthe Board of Directors of the Bank, with opergtlimits set by the Asset Liability Commiti
(“ALCO"), based upon analyses of the ratio of loamsleposits and the percentage of assets fundédnancore or wholesale funding. T
ALCO regularly monitors the overall liquidity poisih of the Bank and the Company to ensure thabuaralternative strategies exist to n
unanticipated events that could affect liquidityquidity is the ability to meet cash flow needs aiimely basis at a reasonable cost. If
liquidity policies and strategies do not work adlves intended, then we may be unable to make laandsto repay deposit liabilities as t
become due or are demanded by customers. The AloB&wE established board approved policies and tomniguidelines to diversify o
wholesale funding sources to avoid concentrationany onemarket source. Wholesale funding sources includgefad funds purchase
securities sold under repurchase agreements, agetdteHome Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances that ardatetalized with mortgageslatec
assets.

We maintain a portfolio of securities that can Bedias a secondary source of liquidity. There #irer@vailable sources of liquidity, includ
additional collateralized borrowings such as FHId¥ances, the issuance of debt securities, andstibamce of preferred or common shar
public or private transactions. If we were unabl@tcess any of these funding sources when neegeahight not be able to meet the neec
our customers, which could adversely impact owarfial condition, our results of operations, cdstv$, and our level of regulatoyualifying
capital.

We may need to raise additional capital in the futte by selling capital stock. Future sales or othedilution of our equity may adversely
affect the market price of our common shares.

We are not restricted from issuing additional commsbares, including securities that are convertiftie or exchangeable for, or that repre
the right to receive, common shares. The issuahegditional shares of common shares or the issuahconvertible securities would dill
the ownership interest of our existing common shaliders. The market price of our common sharesdcdetline as a result of such an offe
as well as other sales of a large block of shafesiocommon shares or similar securities in theketafter such an offering, or the percep
that such sales could occur.

Our common shares have traded from timéitee at a price below our book value per share.ofdiogly, a sale of common shares at or b
our book value would be dilutive to current shatdbrs.

17



Table of Contents

We may not be able to realize the value of our talwsses and deductions.

Due to our losses, we have a net operating losy-t@ward of $32.1 million, credit carrferwards of $900,000, and other net deferrec
assets of $17.6 million. In order to realize thedfi of these tax losses, credits and deductimeswill need to generate substantial tax
income in future periods. We established a 100%atain allowance for all deferred tax assets in12@hould the Company issue a suffic
number of new shares to raise additional capitahange in control could be triggered, as defing&@éction 382 of the Internal Revenue C
which could negatively impact or limit the abilitp utilize our net operating loss carry-forwardegdit loss carnferwards, and other r
deferred tax assets.

Higher FDIC deposit insurance premiums and assessmts could significantly increase our non-interest pense.

Our deposits are insured by the FDIC up to legnaitd and, accordingly, we are subject to FDIC dé@gnsurance premiums and assessm
Pursuant to the DodBErank Act, the FDIC amended its regulations regeydissessment for federal deposit insurance toedeassessme
on the average total consolidated assets of thedaddnstitution during the assessment period, tless@verage tangible equity of the institu
during the assessment period. Prior to this chawgewere assessed only on deposit balances. Th€ BBopted a rule implementing t
change, as well as adopting a revised biaked assessment calculation in February 2011FDh@ has also proposed a rule tying assess
rates of FDIC-insured institutions to the institutis employee compensation programs. The exact natwreumulative effect of these rec
changes are not yet known, but they are expectattioase the amount of premiums we must pay fdCHBsurance. Any such increase r
adversely affect our business, financial condittomesults of operations.

We face strong competition from other financial insitutions and financial service companies, which add adversely affect our results ¢
operations and financial condition.

We compete with other financial institutions inratting deposits and making loans. Our competitioattracting deposits comes principi
from other commercial banks, credit unions, saviagd loan associations, securities brokerage fifnsjrance companies, money ma
funds, and other mutual funds. Our competition eiking loans comes principally from other commerbihks, credit unions, savings and |
associations, mortgage banking firms, and consdimance companies. In addition, competition foribass in the Louisville and Lexingt
metropolitan area has grown in recent years asgasaim banking law have allowed several banks terehe market by establishing r
branches.

Competition in the banking industry may also limitr ability to attract and retain banking clienfée maintain smaller staffs of associates
have fewer financial and other resources than tangitutions with which we compete. Financialtingions that have far greater resources
greater efficiencies than we do may have severdtetiglace advantages resulting from their ability t

« offer higher interest rates on deposits and lowgarest rates on loans than we ¢
» offer a broader range of services than we
* maintain more branch locations than we do;

e mount extensive promotional and advertising campa

In addition, banks and other financial institutiongh larger capitalization and other financialemediaries may not be subject to the ¢
regulatory restrictions as we are and may havestalending limits than we do. Some of our curremmercial banking clients may st
alternative banking sources as they develop nemdsrédit facilities larger than we can accommodéHteve are unable to attract and re
customers, we may not be able to maintain growthan results of operations and financial conditioey otherwise be negatively impacted.

We depend on our senior management team, and the expected loss of one or more of our senior executiv could impair oul
relationship with customers and adversely affect aubusiness and financial results.

Our future success significantly depends on thdimoad services and performance of our key managepersonnel. Our future performa
will depend on our ability to motivate and retaire$e and other key officers. The Ddeldink Act, and the policies of bank regulatory aes
have placed restrictions on our executive comp@rsg@tractices. Such restrictions and standards fondlyer impact our Company’ability tc
compete for talent with other businesses and filahtstitutions that are not subject to the sanmétations as we are. The loss of the sen
of members of our senior management or other kigen$ or our inability to attract additional qad personnel as needed could mater
harm our business.
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Our reported financial results depend on managemerg selection of accounting methods and certain assyptions and estimates.

Our accounting policies and assumptions are fundéahéo our reported financial condition and reswf operations. Our management r
exercise judgment in selecting and applying manghese accounting policies and methods so they yowith generally accepted account
principles and reflect managemenjudgment of the most appropriate manner in whicheport our financial condition and results. bnms
cases, management must select the accounting molicyethod to apply from two or more alternativesy of which may be reasonable ur
the circumstances, yet may result in our repomiragerially different results than would have begported under a different alternative.

Certain accounting policies are critical to presenbur reported financial condition and resultbey require management to make diffic
subjective or complex judgments about matters dnatuncertain. Materially different amounts couddrbported under different conditions
using different assumptions or estimates. Thesiealriaccounting policies include the allowance Ifman losses, valuation of OREO, valua
of securities and valuation of deferred income sax@ecause of the uncertainty of estimates invoinethese matters, we may be requi
among other things, to significantly increase thewaance for credit losses, sustain credit lossas are significantly higher than the res:
provided, recognize significant impairment on olRED, or permanently impair deferred tax assets.

While management continually monitors and improvesour system of internal controls, data processing syems, and corporate wid
processes and procedures, we may suffer losses froperational risk in the future.

Management maintains internal operational contraig] we have invested in technology to help us ge®darge volumes of transactic
However, we may not be able to continue processirige same or higher levels of transactions. tfsygtems of internal controls should fai
work as expected, if our systems were to be usethionauthorized manner, or if employees were bvesti the system of internal contr
significant losses could occur.

We process large volumes of transactions on a @iaidys and are exposed to numerous types of opeahtisk, which could cause us to in
substantial losses. Operational risk resulting fioadequate or failed internal processes, peopid, systems includes the risk of fraud
employees or persons outside of our company, teeution of unauthorized transactions by employegsys relating to transaction proces:
and systems, and breaches of the internal contstés and compliance requirements. This risk of lso includes potential legal actions
could arise as a result of the operational defiyjesr as a result of noncompliance with applicablgulatory standards.

We establish and maintain systems of internal djmeval controls that provide management with timahd accurate information about
level of operational risk. While not foolproof, geesystems have been designed to manage operatsgknat appropriate, cost effective lev
We have also established procedures that are @esignensure that policies relating to conducticethnd business practices are follov
Nevertheless, we experience loss from operatideklfrom time to time, including the effects of optonal errors, and these losses ma
substantial.

Our information systems may experience an interrugbn or security breach.

Failure in or breach of our operational or secusiggtems or infrastructure, or those of our thiadty vendors and other service provid
including as a result of cyber attacks, could gisur businesses, result in the disclosure or seigf confidential or proprietary informati
damage our reputation, increase our costs and dasses. As a large financial institution, we depem our ability to process, record |
monitor a large number of customer transactions @ontinuous basis. As customer, public and regulaxpectations regarding operatic
and information security have increased, our opmrat systems and infrastructure must continueetsdfeguarded and monitored for pote
failures, disruptions, and breakdowns. Our businf@sancial, accounting, data processing systenutloer operating systems and facilities |
stop operating properly or become disabled or dahag a result of a number of factors includingnhess¢hat are wholly or partially beya
our control. For example, there could be suddereames in customer transaction volume, electricaélecommunications outages, nat
disasters such as earthquakes, tornadoes, andamnasi disease pandemics, events arising from ¢wdakger scale political or social matt
including terrorist acts, and, as described beloyber attacks. Although we have business contimléps and other safeguards in place
business operations may be adversely affecteddmyfisiant and widespread disruption to our physinflastructure or operating systems
support our businesses and customers.
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Information security risks for financial institutie have generally increased in recent years in Ipacause of the proliferation of n
technologies, the use of the Internet and telecomirations technologies to conduct financial tratisas, and the increased sophistication
activities of organized crime, hackers, terrorisistivists, and other external parties. As notedvap our operations rely on the set
processing, transmission and storage of confideinfiarmation in our computer systems and netwotksaddition, to access our products
services, our customers may use personal smartphtaidet PGS, and other mobile devices that are beyond outr@osystems. Although v
believe we have robust information security proceduand controls, our technologies, systems, n&ty@nd our customerslevices ma
become the target of cyber attacks or informatesusty breaches. These events could result intia@ithorized release, gathering, monitol
misuse, loss or destruction of our customemsifidential, proprietary and other informationtbat of our customers, or otherwise disrupi
business operations of ourselves, our customesther third parties.

Third parties with which we do business or thailiiate our business activities, could also be searof operational and information sect
risk to us, including from breakdowns or failurédstleir own systems or capacity constraints. Aldjotio date we have not experienced
material losses relating to cyber attacks or othfarmation security breaches, we can give no assga that we will not suffer such losse
the future. Our risk and exposure to these mat@mrains heightened because of, among other thihgsvolving nature of these threats
the prevalence of Internet and mobile banking. #bec threats continue to evolve, we may be requice@éxpend significant additior
resources to continue to modify or enhance ourepti'e measures or to investigate and remediateirdagymation security vulnerabilitie
Disruptions or failures in the physical infrasturet or operating systems that support our busisemsg customers, or cyber attacks or sec
breaches of the networks, systems or devices tlmatwstomers use to access our products and sereardd result in customer attritic
regulatory fines, penalties or intervention, regioteal damage, reimbursement or other compensatsts, and/or additional compliance cc
any of which could materially adversely affect business, results of operations or financial coorlit

We operate in a highly regulated environment and, 1a result, are subject to extensive regulation ansupervision that could adversel
affect our financial performance and our ability to implement our growth and operating strategies.

We are subject to examination, supervision and cehemsive regulation by federal and state reguaagencies, which is described ur
“ltem 1 — Business—Supervision and RegulatidRegulatory oversight of banks is primarily intendedcprotect depositors, the federal dey
insurance funds, and the banking system as a whotegur shareholders. Compliance with these réiguls is costly and may make it m
difficult to operate profitably.

Federal and state banking laws and regulationsrgauemerous matters including the payment of divitke the acquisition of other banks,
the establishment of new banking offices. We mist aneet specific regulatory capital requiremefitsr failure to comply with these lav
regulations, and policies or to maintain our cdpigguirements could affect our ability to pay diehds on common shares, our ability to ¢
through the development of new offices, our abiliiymake acquisitions, and our ability to remaidependent. These limitations may pre’
us from successfully implementing our growth andrating strategies.

In addition, the laws and regulations applicablebtmks could change at any time, which could sicgiftly impact our business &
profitability. For example, new legislation or régtion could limit the manner in which we may contlour business, including our ability
attract deposits and make loans. Events that mayhane a direct impact on us, such as the bankrumtdnsolvency of a prominent U
corporation, can cause legislators and bankinglatans and other agencies such as the Financiabting Standards Board, the SEC,
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and uasitaxing authorities to respond by adopting angroposing substantive revisions
laws, regulations, rules, standards, policies, imberpretations. The nature, extent, and timingh&f adoption of significant new laws ¢
regulations, or changes in or repeal of existingsland regulations may have a material impact anboginess and results of operati
Changes in regulation may cause us to devote sulmtadditional financial resources and managentien¢ to compliance, which m
negatively affect our operating results.

Changes in banking laws could have a material advee effect on us.

We are subject to changes in federal and state #smsell as changes in banking and credit reguiatiand governmental economic
monetary policies. We cannot predict whether anthe$e changes could adversely and materiallytaffecThe current regulatory environrr
for financial institutions entails significant pot&al increases in compliance requirements andcéssal costs. Federal and state bar
regulators also possess broad powers to take sspgnactions as they deem appropriate. These gigpey actions may result in higher cag
requirements, higher insurance premiums and lifoitat on our activities that could have a materdvesise effect on our business
profitability.
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Recent legislation regarding the financial servicemdustry may have a significant adverse effect oaur operations.

The Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law on July 2010. The Dodd-rank Act has had a significant impact the U.Sarficial systen
including among other things:

* new requirements on banking, derivative and investractivities, including the repeal of the protids on the payment of interest
business demand accounts, and debit card interetfargequirement:

* the creation of the Consumer Financial ProtectianeBu with supervisory authority, including the @owo conduct examinations ¢
take enforcement actions with respect to finanicisfitutions with assets of $10 billion or more antpblement regulations that w
affect all financial institutions

» provisions affecting corporate governance and ekeziwcompensation of all companies subject to #orting requirements of t
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amendet

» a provision that would require bank regulators ¢b reinimum capital levels for bank holding companikat are as strong as th
required for their insured depository subsidiar@shject to a grandfather clause for holding congsmawith less than $15 billion
assets as of December 31, 2C

Many provisions in the Dodd-Frank Act remain subjecregulatory rulenaking, implementation, and interpretation, theeef§ of which a1
not yet known. As a result, it is difficult to gaathe ultimate impact of certain provisions of Bedd+rank Act because the implementatio
many concepts is left to regulatory agencies. kanple, the CFPB is given the power to adopt negulegions to protect consumers an
given control over existing consumer protectionutaions adopted by federal banking regulators. Tké’B has begun the rubeaking
process but it is not known at this time when alés will be finalized and implemented.

The provisions of the DodHrank Act and any rules adopted to implement thpysgisions, as well as any additional legislativeregulaton
changes may impact the profitability of our busgastivities and costs of operations, require thathange certain of our business pract
materially affect our business model or affect mdts of key personnel, require us to raise additiaegulatory capital, including additio
Tier 1 capital, and could expose us to additiomsts (including increased compliance costs). Tl@skother changes may also require |
invest significant management attention and ressuto make any necessary changes and may advaffaty our ability to conduct o
business as previously conducted or our resultpefations or financial condition.
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ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

Item 2. Properties

The Bank operates 17 banking offices located intkgky. The following table shows the location, sguéootage and ownership of e
property. We believe that each of these locatisrediequately insured. Support operations are lddatthe Main office in Louisville and tl
Glasgow office building on Columbia Avenue.

Owned/
Markets Square Footag Leased
Louisville/Jefferson, Bullitt and Henry Counties
Main Office: 2500 Eastpoint Parkway, Louisvi 30,00( Ownec
Eminence Office: 645 Elm Street, Eminel 1,50( Ownec
Hillview Office: 11998 Preston Highway, Hillvie' 3,50( Ownec
Pleasureville Office: 5440 Castle Highway, Pleasille 10,00( Ownec
Shepherdsville Office: 340 South Buckman StreegpBlerdsville 10,00( Ownec
Conestoga Office: 155 Conestoga Parkway, Shephied 3,90( Ownec
Lexington/Fayette County
Lexington Office: 2424 Harrodsburg Road, Suite 1G$xington 8,50( Lease!
South Central Kentucky
Brownsville Office: 113 East Main, Brownsvil 8,50( Ownec
Greensburg Office: 2(-04 North Main Street, Greensbt 11,00( Ownec
Horse Cave Office: 210 East Main Street, Horse ( 5,00( Ownec
Morgantown Office: 112 West Logan Street, Morgarmic 7,50( Ownec
Munfordville Office: 949 South Dixie Highway, Munfaville 9,00( Ownec
Beaver Dam Office: 1300 North Main Street, Beavani 3,20( Ownec
Wal-Mart Office: 1701 North Main Street, Beaver D. 50C Lease!
Owensboro/Daviess County
Owensboro Office: 1819 Frederica Street, Owens 3,00(¢ Ownec
Southern Kentucky
Campbell Lane Office: 751 Campbell Lane, Bowlinge&n 7,50( Ownec
Glasgow Office: 1006 West Main Street, Glas¢ 12,00( Ownec
Other Properties
Office Building: 701 Columbia Avenue, Glasgt 19,00( Ownec

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are defendants in various legal proceedingsgdtibn is subject to inherent uncertainties anfhworable outcomes could occur. .
Note 24,“Contingencies” in the Notes to our consolidatethficial statements for detail regarding ongoingllegoceedings and other matters.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable

22



Table of Contents
PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie
Market Information

Our common shares are traded on the NASDAQ Cadiéaket under the ticker symbol “PBIBThe following table presents the high and
sales prices for our common shares reported oNA®DAQ Capital Market for the periods indicated.

2014
Market Value
Quarter Ende High Low Dividend
Fourth Quarter $1.0z $0.4¢ $ 0.0C
Third Quartel 1.0¢ 0.9t 0.0cC
Second Quarte 1.1¢ 0.9C 0.0cC
First Quarte! 1.24 0.94 0.0cC
2013
Market Value
Quarter Ende High Low Dividend
Fourth Quarter $1.24 $0.97 $ 0.0C
Third Quartel 2.2¢ 0.8C 0.0cC
Second Quarte 0.9C 0.7¢ 0.0cC
First Quarte 1.5¢ 0.6¢€ 0.0c

As of January 31, 2015, we had approximately 1gt@¥eholders, including 360 shareholders of re@d approximately 844 benefic
owners whose shares are held in “street” name ¢yrisies broker-dealers or other nominees.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Amaong Porter Bancorp, Ing, the NASDAQ Composite Index
and the NASDAQ Bank Index
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“$100 invested on 12/31/09 in stock or index, including reimestmant of dvidends
Fiscal year ending December 31
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Dividends

We will not be able to pay dividends on our comnstvares for the foreseeable future. We historigadlid quarterly cash dividends on
common shares until we suspended dividend paynier@stober 2011. As a bank holding company, oulitglib declare and pay divider
depends on certain federal regulatory considerstimetiuding the guidelines of the Federal Reseegarding capital adequacy and divide
We have agreed with the Federal Reserve to oltaiaritten consent prior to declaring or paying &myre dividends.

Our principal source of revenue with which to payidends on our common shares is the dividendsttieaBank may declare and pay to us
of funds legally available for payment of dividen@urrently, the Bank must obtain the prior writ@ansent of its primary regulators prio
declaring or paying any dividends. In additionhestcurrent restriction, various laws applicablétte Bank also limit its payment of dividel
to us. A Kentucky chartered bank may declare addivil of an amount of the baskiet profits as the board deems appropriate. pheaal o
the KDFI is required if the total of all dividendieclared by the bank in any calendar year excdezldotal of its net profits for that ye
combined with its retained net profits for the @ding two years, less any required transfers tplgsior a fund for the retirement of prefel
stock or debt. As a practical matter, the Bank mdit be able to pay dividends to us for the forablsefuture.

Effective with the fourth quarter of 2011, we beghaferring interest payments on the junior subaidid notes relating to our trust prefe
securities. Deferring interest payments on thegusibordinated notes resulted in the deferralsifidutions on our trust preferred securitie
we defer interest payments on our trust preferegdisties for 20 consecutive quarters, we mustglageferred interest or we will be in defal

We will not be able to pay cash dividends on ouncmn shares until we have paid all deferred digtidms on our trust preferred securit
Deferred distributions on our trust preferred sii@s are cumulative, and distributions accrue emghpound on each subsequent payment
If we become subject to any liquidation, dissolntimr winding up of affairs, holders of the trusefarred securities and then holders of
preferred stock will be entitled to receive theul@ption amounts to which they are entitled inahgdthe amount of any accrued and un
distributions and dividends, before any distribot@an be made to the holders of our common shanesterred stock. Our Series E and St
F preferred shares have priority over our commamreshand non-voting common shares with respectytgpayment of dividends.

Purchase of Equity Securities by Issuer

Except for the exchange transaction in December 28&scribed in greater detail in “ltem 1 — BustesHistory”,the Company did n
repurchase any of its issued and outstanding eqaityrities in 2014 or 2013.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The following table summarizes our selected histrconsolidated financial data from 2010 to 20Ydu should read this information
conjunction with Item 7. “Management’s Discussiardanalysis of Financial Condition and Results gieations” and Item 8.Financia
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

As of and for the Years Ended December 3.

(Dollars in thousands except per share dat 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Income Statement Data:
Interest incom: $ 3951¢ $ 43228 $ 57,72¢ $ 7355 $ 86,40
Interest expens 9,79t 11,14 15,77¢ 22,03¢ 28,84
Net interest incom 29,71¢ 32,08¢ 41,95¢ 51,51¢ 57,56¢
Provision for loan losse 7,10( 70C 40,25( 62,60( 30,10(
Nor-interest incoms 4,07¢ 5,91¢ 9,59( 7,83: 11,58:
Nor-interest expens 39,43t 38,89( 44,29: 104,27: 46,47¢
Loss before income tax (12,739 (1,586 (32,99 (107,524 (7,430
Income tax benefi (1,587%) — (65) (21¢) (3,04¢€)
Net loss (11,15 (1,58¢) (32,93) (107,30) (4,389
Less:
Dividends and accretion on preferred st 2,36: 2,07¢ 1,92¢ 1,925 1,987
Effect of exchange of preferred stock for commartk (36,10¢) — — — —
Earnings (loss) allocated to participating seces 3,15¢ (267) (1,429 (4,080 (189
Net income (loss) attributable to commr $ 1942¢ $ (3,39) $ (3343) $(10515) $ (6,18))
Common Share Data (1):
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 15¢ $ (0.29 $ (2.85) $ (8.9¢) $ (0.60)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh 1.5¢ (0.29 (2.85) (8.99 (0.60)
Cash dividends declared per common sl 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0zZ 0.4¢
Book value per common share 1.67 (0.18) 0.74 3.74 12.7¢
Tangible book value per common share 1.61 (0.29 0.5¢ 3.54 10.3:
Balance Sheet Data (at period end
Total asset $1,017,98° $1,076,12.  $1,162,63  $1,455,42. $1,723,95
Debt obligations
FHLB advance! 15,75: 4,49; 5,60¢ 7,11¢€ 15,02:
Junior subordinated debentul 25,00( 25,00( 25,00( 25,00( 25,00(
Subordinated capital no 4,95( 5,85( 6,97¢ 7,65( 8,55(
Average Balance Data:
Average asse! $1,049,23. $1,098,401 $1,341,56! $1,659,95  $1,747,64
Average loan: 662,44 788,17t 1,033,32 1,243,47. 1,353,29!
Average deposit 961,67: 1,004,05. 1,217,08 1,434,46. 1,459,04.
Average FHLB advance 447 4,99( 6,32¢ 15,31 47,80(
Average junior subordinated debentu 25,00( 25,00( 25,00( 25,00( 25,00(
Average subordinated capital ne 5,50¢ 6,40¢ 7,30¢ 8,20¢ 8,941
Average stockholde’ equity 33,88: 42,63 75,67¢ 159,43« 188,01!

(1) Common share data has been adjusted to reflectstd® dividend effective December 14, 20

(2) After shareholder approval on February 25, 201%, thandatorily convertible Series B preferred shamasverted into 4,053,6!
common shares and the mandatorily convertible S&igreferred shares converted into 6,458,000 vatimg common share
Assuming conversion as of December 31, 2014, tbéopna book value per common share would have Bdedl per share and
proforma tangible book value per common share whalte been $1.17 per she
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operation

Managemens discussion and analysis of financial conditiod egsults of operations analyzes the consolidateah€ial condition and resu
of operations of Porter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Compgamnd its wholly owned subsidiary, PBI Bank (thgahk”). The Company is a Louisvill
Kentucky-based bank holding company which operbteking offices in twelve counties through its wiadwned subsidiary, the Bank. C
markets include metropolitan Louisville in JeffengBounty and the surrounding counties of Henry Bliitt. We serve south central Kentuc
and southern Kentucky from banking offices in Butléreen, Hart, Edmonson, Barren, Warren, Ohio, Radiess Counties. We also have
office in Lexington, the second largest city in Kigrky. The Bank is a community bank with a widegaf commercial and personal bani
products.

Historically, we have focused on commercial and em@rcial real estate lending, both in markets whveeehave banking offices and ot
growing markets in our region. Commercial, commedrceal estate and real estate construction loaosuated for 55.5% of our total Ic
portfolio as of December 31, 2014, and 56.3% aBexfember 31, 2013. Commercial lending generallylpeces higher yields than resider
lending, but involves greater risk and requiresemigorous underwriting standards and credit quafionitoring.

The following discussion should be read in conjiorcivith our consolidated financial statements andompanying notes and other schec
presented elsewhere in the report.

Overview

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we reporteet doss of $11.2 million compared with net logs$a.6 million for the year end
December 31, 2013 and $32.9 million for the yeateenDecember 31, 2012. After deductions for divitieand accretion on preferred st
allocating losses to participating securities, #mel effect of the exchange of preferred stock fmmmon stock, net income attributable
common shareholders was $19.4 million for the yeated December 31, 2014, compared with a net todsugable to common sharehold
of $3.4 million for the year ended December 31,2®asic and diluted income per common share wergd¥or the year ended Decembet
2014, compared with loss per common share of ${0di22013.

Our financial performance in 2014 continued to legatively impacted by the Bank’s high level of mmerforming assets. Asset qua
remediation, capital restoration, and loweringrikk profile of the Company remain our major objees for 2015.

Non-performing loans were 7.57% of total loans and-performing assets were 9.19% of total assets, aember 31, 2014. We rem
diligent in the management of our loan portfolicdaare striving to improve credit quality by workitgroughout our markets to bala
selective new customer acquisition, customer serfagc our existing clients and prudent risk manageim

The following significant items are of note for thear ended December 31, 2014:

* In December 2014, we completed a maish equity exchange transaction with the accréditeestors who acquired all of our iss
and outstanding Series A preferred shares from I0ST public auction. We acquired and cancelledbhthe issued and outstand
Series A Preferred Stock, the accrued dividendeedre all of the issued and outstanding Seriese@eRed Stock, and warrants
purchase 798,915 shares of common stock togethvimchan aggregate book value of approximately $4llion. In exchange, w
issued common and preferred shares having a faievaf approximately $9.6 million. The effect ofetexchange was to incre
common shareholde equity by approximately $36.1 milliol
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» In the exchange transaction, we issued 1,821,428mm shares, 40,536 mandatorily convertible S&ifseferred Shares and 64,
mandatorily convertible Series D Preferred Shandsch automatically converted into 4,053,600 commsbares and 6,458,000 non:
voting common shares after shareholder approvateiruary 25, 2015. We also issued 6,198 SerieskefPed Shares and 4,:
Series F Preferred Shares, both of which seriematre€onvertible into common shares, have a lidiodapreference of $1,000 ¢
share, and are entitled to a 2% noncumulative drdividend if and when declared. Series E and Sdti€referred Shares rank se
to, and have liquidation and dividend preferences,cour common shares and -voting common share

» The net effect of the exchange transaction andegutent conversion of mandatorily convertible SeBd3referred and mandatol
convertible Series D Preferred shares was an isergatotal shareholders’ equity of $7.4 milliomdaan increase in voting and non
voting common shares issued and outstanding oBBA)28 share:

* We have reduced the size of our balance sheetcor@dance with our capital plan. Average assets \8&r849 billion for the ye
ended December 31, 2014, compared with $1.098®millor the year ended December 31, 2013. This temuevas accomplisht
primarily by reducing our commercial real estatel @onstruction and development loans within ounlpartfolio and through tt
redemption of higher cost certificates of deposdaaints.

* Net interest margin decreased one basis poin0@?8 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compeitbd3.10% for the year end
December 31, 2013. Average loans decreased 16.0$662.4 million in 2014, compared with $788.2 roifli in 2013. Net loal
decreased 11.1% to $605.6 million at December 314 2compared with $681.2 million at December 3,2

» Provision for loan losses expense increased to ifillibn for 2014, compared with $700,000 for theay ended December 31, 2(
Net charg-offs were $15.9 million in 2014, compared with $#nillion in 2013 and $36.1 million in 201

* We continued to execute on our strategy to reduceegposure to commercial real estate and congirueind development loal
Construction and development loans totaled $33lomj or 45% of total riskbased capital, at December 31, 2014, comparec
$43.3 million, or 52% of total risk-based capita,December 31, 2013. Nawner occupied commercial real estate loans, coctsir
and development loans, and multi-family residentil estate loans as a group totaled $193.0 milliw 262% of total rislase:
capital, at December 31, 2014 compared with $28ilibn, or 284% of total ris-based capital, at December 31, 2C

» Loan proceeds received from the repayment of ommeercial real estate and construction and developioans were used primat
to redeem maturing certificates of deposit durifig4£ Deposits decreased 6.2% to $926.8 million @retg with $987.7 million .
December 31, 2013. Certificate of deposit balamisetined $105.3 million during 2014 to $574.7 moitliat December 31, 2014, fr
$680.0 million at December 31, 20!

» Total loans past due and nonaccrual loans decréasksP.3 million at December 31, 2014 from $118iBion at December 31, 201

» Non-performing loans decreased $54.7 million to $47ilBan at December 31, 2014, compared with $102illion at December 3.
2013. The decrease in non-performing loans wastdu&e migration of nomerforming loans to the OREO portfolio, as wel
$27.5 million in paydowns. Net char-offs were $15.9 million for the year ended Decenier2014

» Loans past due 389 days decreased from $10.7 million at Decembg@13 to $4.0 million at December 31, 2014 and$ogast di
6C-89 days increased from $775,000 at December 38 20$980,000 at December 31, 20

» Foreclosed properties increased to $46.2 millioDedtember 31, 2014, compared with $30.9 millioDatember 31, 2013. During 1
year ended December 31, 2014, the Company acg®82® million and sold $13.1 million of OREO. Indiiibn, we recorded fe
value writedowns of $4.3 million during the year reflectingctiees in appraisal valuations and changes in misitrategies. Our ra
of nor-performing assets to total assets decreased t&Gat®ecember 31, 2014, compared with 12.35% aeDber 31, 201:

These items are discussed in further detail througlthis “Management’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord d&esults ¢
Operations” Section.
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Going Concern Considerations and Future Plans

Our consolidated financial statements have beepapeel on a going concern basis, which contemplgtesrealization of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course lfsiness for the foreseeable future. However etrents and circumstances described ir
discussion create substantial doubt about the Coypability to continue as a going concern.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we reponted ss of $11.2 million. The net loss was prifgaattributable to loan loss provision
$7.1 million, OREO expense of $5.8 million resudtiftom fair value writedowns driven by new appraisals and reduced markgtiices, an
ongoing operating expense, along with $3.0 milliorioan collection expenses. We also had lowerimerest margin due to lower aver.
loans outstanding, loans re-pricing at lower ratas] the level of noperforming loans in our portfolio. After deductiofe dividends an
accretion on preferred stock of $2.4 million, a#lting losses to participating securities of $3.2liom, and the effect of the exchange
preferred stock for common stock of $36.1 millieret income attributable to common shareholders $42s4 million for the year end
December 31, 2014, compared with a net loss at#iithel to common shareholders of $3.4 million f@ ylear ended December 31, 2013.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we reporedbss attributable to common shareholders of &8ldon. This loss was attributak
primarily to loan collection expenses of $4.7 mitliand OREO expense of $4.5 million resulting fri@in value writeelowns driven by ne
appraisals and reduced marketing prices, net losales, and ongoing operating expenses. We atbtohar net interest margin due to loy
average loans outstanding, loans re-pricing at lomées, and the level of ngrerforming loans in our portfolio. Net loss to com
shareholders of $3.4 million for the year ended ddelger 31, 2013, compares with net loss to commarekblders of $33.4 million for ye
ended December 31, 2012.

In June 2011, the Bank entered into a Consent Qvitkrthe FDIC and KDFI in which the Bank agreethamg other things, to improve as
quality, reduce loan concentrations, and maintamirdmum Tier 1 leverage ratio of 9% and a minimtatal risk based capital ratio of 12
The Consent Order was included in our Current RepoBK filed on June 30, 2011. In October 2012, the Bantered into a revised Cons
Order with the FDIC and KDFI, again agreeing to m&in a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of 9% andiaimum total risk based capital ra
of 12%. The Bank also agreed that if it should hahle to reach the required capital levels, artirdcted in writing by the FDIC, then 1
Bank would within 30 days develop, adopt and immata written plan to sell or merge itself into #ew federally insured financial instituti
or otherwise immediately obtain a capital investieto the Bank sufficient to fully meet the capitaquirements.

We continue to work with our regulators toward talpratio compliance. The revised Consent Orden a¢sjuires the Bank to continue
adhere to the plans implemented in response tduhe 2011 Consent Order, and includes the substgmtbvisions of the June 2011 Con:
Order. The revised Consent Order was included imCaurent Report on 8-fled on September 19, 2012. As of December 3142t capite
ratios required by the Consent Order were not met.

In order to meet these capital requirements, thar@mf Directors and management are continuingvaluate strategies to achieve
following objectives:

 Increasing capital through a possible public offgror private placement of common stock to new exidting shareholders. We h:
engaged a financial advisor to assist our BoatHimevaluation

» Continuing to operate the Company and Bank in @ safd sound manner. This strategy will require augeduce our lendir
concentrations, remediate r-performing loans, and reduce other noninterestmsg@éhrough the disposition of ORE

» Evaluating and implementing improvements to aterinal processes and procedures, distributionhtmir], and worklow to ensure w
have adequately and appropriately deployed ressumcan efficient manner in the current environm

» Executing on our commitment to improve credit dyadind reduce loan concentrations and balance skke
» We have reduced our loan portfolio significantlgrfr $1.3 billion at December 31, 2010 to $625.0iomillat December 31, 201

» We have reduced our construction and developioent to less than 75% of total risksed capital at December 31, 2014,
have now been in compliance with the Consent Ciategleven quarter:
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* We have reduced our non-owner occupied commere#lestate loans, construction and developmaertsioand multfamily
residential real estate loans. Compliance with@oinsent Order requires those loans representiaas250% of total riskase:
capital. These loans represented 262% of tote-based capital at December 31, 2014, down from 284Becember 31, 201

» Executing on our commitment to sell OREO and reshyre quality income producing asse

» Our acquisition of real estate assets throughdha femediation process increased during 2014 gagoquired $32.3 million
OREO in 2014 compared with $20.6 million during 20IThis coincides with the reduction of nonaccri@dns fron
$101.8 million at the end of 2013, to $47.2 millianthe end of 2014, as many of these loans wemdved by foreclosure

* We incurred OREO losses totaling $3.9 millionidgrthe 2014, comprised of $4.3 million in fair walwritedowns to reflec
declines in appraisal valuations and changes irpoaing strategies, offset by $306,000 in net gairsales

* We continually evaluate opportunities to maximibe tvalue we receive from the sale of OREO. We punswltiple sale
channels with focus primarily on internal marketamgyd the use of brokel

» Real estate construction represents 40% of the OREfiolio at December 31, 2014 compared with 62%ecember 31, 201
Commercial real estate represents 31% of the OR&@ofio at December 31, 2014 compared with 19%atember 31, 201
and 14 family residential properties represent 17% &f plortfolio at December 31, 2014 compared with I%ecember 3
2013.

Bank regulatory agencies can exercise discretioenwan institution does not meet the terms of a emnsrder. Based on individt
circumstances, the agencies may issue mandatagtigies, impose monetary penalties, initiate changenanagement, or take more ser
adverse actions such as require an institutioeltas merge itself into another institution or ubg the Bank to be taken into receivership.

Liquid assets were $1.9 million at December 31,2@&ince the Bank is unlikely to be in a positiorpay dividends to the parent company
the foreseeable future, cash inflows for the paagatlimited to earnings on investment securiases of investment securities, and intere
deposits with the Bank. These cash inflows alonth whe liquid assets held at December 31, 2014 nhassled to cover ongoing opera
expenses of the parent company which are forecagteghproximately $1.0 million for 2015. Parent gamy liquidity could be improve
through a sale of common or preferred shares.

Effective with the fourth quarter of 2011, we begdeferring interest payments on the junior subatdid debentures relating to our t
preferred securities. Deferring interest paymentstiee junior subordinated debentures resulted oteferral of distributions on our trt
preferred securities.

If we defer distributions on our trust preferredggties for 20 consecutive quarters, we must paglederred distributions in full or we will
in default. Our deferral period expires in the dhjuarter of 2016. Deferred distributions on owstrpreferred securities, which totaled ¢
million as of December 31, 2014, are cumulativel anpaid distributions accrue and compound on sablequent payment date. Ifas an
of a default we become subject to any liquidatdissolution or winding up, holders of the trustfpreed securities will be entitled to rece
the liquidation amounts to which they are entitlegtluding all accrued and unpaid distributionsfobe any distribution can be made to
shareholders. In addition, the holders of our Selieand Series F Preferred Shares will be entide@ceive liquidation distributions totali
$10.5 million before any distribution can be madl¢hie holders of our common shares.

Our consolidated financial statements do not inelady adjustments that may result should the Coynpanunable to continue as a gc
concern.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Our accounting and reporting policies comply witA&ZR and conform to general practices within thekiag industry. We believe that of ¢
significant accounting policies, the following mawolve a higher degree of management assumptiadsjidgments that could result
materially different amounts to be reported if citiods or underlying circumstances were to change.

Allowance for Loan Losses- The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losseeWwed to be sufficient to absorb probable incurcegdit
losses existing in the loan portfolio. The BoardDifectors evaluates the adequacy of the allowdocéoan losses on a quarterly basis.
evaluate the adequacy of the allowance using, anotimgr things, historical loan loss experience,vim@nd inherent risks in the portfo
adverse situations that may affect the borrosvability to repay, estimated value of the undedycollateral and current economic condit
and trends. The allowance may be allocated foriSpdoans or loan categories, but the entire allowee is available for any loan that
managemens$ judgment, should be charged off. The allowancaesists of specific and general components. Theifspeomponent relates
loans that are individually evaluated and meastwedmpairment. The general component is basedistoiiical loss experience adjusted
gualitative environmental factors. We develop aioee estimates based on actual loss experiencgtedljfior current economic conditions
trends. Allowance estimates are a prudent measuteshéhe risk in the loan portfolio which we apptyindividual loans based on loan type
the mix and amount of future chargf- percentages differ significantly from those wsptions used by management in making
determination, we may be required to materiallyréase our allowance for loan losses and provisioridan losses, which could adver:
affect our results.
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Other Real Estate Owned- OREO is real estate acquired as a result of fosectoor by deed in lieu of foreclosure. It is cifisd as real esta
owned until such time as it is sold. When propé&tscquired as a result of foreclosure or by dedieiu of foreclosure, it is recorded at its
market value less estimated cost to sell. Any wdite/n of the property at the time of acquisitioncizarged to the allowance for Ic
losses. Subsequent reductions in fair value amrded as nommterest expense. To determine the fair value oEORor smaller dollar sing
family homes, we consult with internal real estsdites staff and external realtors, investors, amtagsers. If the internally evaluated ma
price is below our underlying investment in thegmuy, appropriate writdowns are recorded. For larger dollar residentidl @mmercial re
estate properties, we obtain a new appraisal obtitgect property or have staff from our specialess group or in our centralized apprz
department evaluate the latestfile- appraisal in connection with the transfer tRED. We typically obtain updated appraisals witfiue
quarters or the anniversary date of ownership srdesale is imminent.

Intangible Assets— We evaluate intangible assets for impairment atleanually and more frequently if circumstancedate their value m:
not be recoverable. Identifiable intangible asHws are subject to amortization are amortizedroaaelerated basis over the years expec
be benefited, which we believe is 10 years. Weemgwihese amortizable intangible assets for impaitrifecircumstances indicate their va
may not be recoverable based on a comparison ofdhie to carrying value. Based on our annualeswyimanagement does not believe
intangible assets are impaired at December 31,.2014

Stock-based Compensatior Compensation cost is recognized for restrictedkséveards issued to employees, based on the faievalthes
awards at the date of grant. The market price ef @ompanys common shares at the date of grant is used &riated stock awarc
Compensation cost is recognized over the requieedice period, generally defined as the vestingoperFor awards with graded vesti
compensation cost is recognized on a straightHass over the requisite service period for thegematward.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Asset— We evaluate deferred tax assets for impairment quaaterly basis. We established a 100% deferre
valuation allowance of $31.7 million in Decemberl2(ased upon the analysis of our past performandeour expected future performat
When evaluating our deferred tax assets for rdailigaduring 2014 and 2013, we concluded that lavfaluation allowance was still necess
at December 31, 2014 and 2013, due to the additiosses incurred during those years. A returnradifability would enable us to reduce
valuation allowance and thereby offset income tapease that would otherwise be recognized. Exaioimatof our income tax returns
changes in tax law may impact our deferred taxtass® liabilities as well as our provision for dmee taxes.

Contingencies— We are defendants in various legal proceedingsratferd contingent liabilities resulting from clairagainst us when a los:
assessed to be probable and the amount of théslosasonably estimable. Assessing probabilityos$ land estimating probable losses req
analysis of multiple factors, including in some emgudgments about the potential actions of thiadtypclaimants and courts. Recor
contingent liabilities are based on the best infation available and actual losses in any futuréogeare inherently uncertain.

Results of Operations
The following table summarizes components of incameé expense and the change in those componert®Xdrcompared with 2013:

For the Years Ended Change from

December 31, Prior Period
2014 2013 Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

Gross interest incomr $ 39,51 $43,22¢ $ (3,715 (8.6)%
Gross interest expen 9,79¢ 11,14 (1,349 (12.7)
Net interest incom 29,71¢ 32,08¢ (2,367%) (7.4
Provision for credit losse 7,10( 70C 6,40( 914.:
Nor-interest incom 3,98 5,19¢ (1,209 (23.9)
Gains on sale of securities, 1 92 723 (631) (87.9)
Nor-interest expens 39,43t 38,89( 54t 1.4
Net loss before taxe (22,739 (1,586 (11,159 703.2
Income tax benefi (1,589 — (1,587) —
Net loss (11,15% (1,58¢) (9,56¢) 603.:
Dividends and accretion on preferred st (2,362) (2,079 (289) 13.€
Effect of exchange of preferred stock for commartls 36,10 — 36,10« 100.C
Losses (earnings) attributable to participatingisées (3,159 267 (3,42¢) (1283.)
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehs| 19,42¢ (3,399 22,82¢ (671.%)
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Net loss of $11.2 million for the year ended Decenti, 2014 increased by $9.6 million from net lo§sp1.6 million for 2013. This wi
primarily due to a $2.4 million decrease in neeiest income driven by lower average earning asaptscrease of $6.4 million in provis
for loan losses expense, and reductions inintarest income from our exit of trust service013 and lower gains on the sale of secur
Net income attributable to common shareholdersl® 4million for the year ended December 31, 20ivroved $22.8 million from net lo
to common shareholders of $3.4 million for 2013isTimcrease was primarily attributable to the $3gillion effect of the exchange
preferred stock for common stock.

The following table summarizes components of incameé expense and the change in those componer®X8rcompared with 2012:

For the Years Ended Change from
December 31 Prior Period
2013 2012 Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)
Gross interest incomr $43,22¢ $ 57,72¢ $(14,507) (25.1%
Gross interest expen 11,14 15,77« (4,637) (29.9
Net interest incom 32,08t 41,95¢ (9,870 (23.5)
Provision for credit losse 70C 40,25( (39,55() (98.9)
Nor-interest incom 5,19¢ 6,35¢ (1,15¢) (18.9)
Gains on sale of securities, 1 723 3,23¢ (2,519 (77.7)
Nor-interest expens 38,89( 44,29: (5,402) (12.2)
Net loss before taxe (1,586 (32,99 31,41 (95.9
Income tax benefi — (65) 65 (200.0
Net loss (1,586 (32,93) 31,34¢ (95.2)
Dividends on and accretion on preferred st (2,079 (1,929 (150) 7.€
Losses attributable to participating securi 267 1,42¢ (1,162) (81.9)
Net loss attributable to common shareholc (3,399 (33,43) 30,03« (89.9)

Net loss before taxes of $1.6 million for the yeaded December 31, 2013, improved by $31.4 mifiiom net loss of $33.0 million for 201
Net loss to common shareholders of $3.4 million tfeg year ended December 31, 2013, decreased $80dh from net loss to commt
shareholders of $33.4 million for 2012. This desee@n net loss was attributable primarily to lovpeovision for loan losses expense
decreased non-interest expense associated witDRHO, partially offset by lower net gain on salésecurities and lower net interest income.

Net Interest Income— Our net interest income was $29.7 million for tlealyended December 31, 2014, a decrease of $2idmar 7.4%
compared with $32.1 million for the same period2Bl3. Net interest spread and margin were 2.98% 3a0@%, respectively, for 201
compared with 2.97% and 3.10%, respectively, fatRAverage nonaccrual loans were $63.1 million &h@7.3 million in 2014 and 20!
respectively. The decrease in net interest incoras primarily the result of lower average earningets coupled with lower rates on th
assets. In addition, net interest income and rterest margin were adversely affected by $3.3 amlland $5.6 million of interest lost
nonaccrual loans during 2014 and 2013, respectively

Our average interegtarning assets were $979.2 million for 2014, comegbavith $1.05 billion for 2013, a 6.8% decreasanprily attributabli
to lower average loans and partially offset by bighverage investment securities and interest rigeateposits with financial institutior
Average loans were $662.4 million for 2014, comgdaréth $788.2 million for 2013, a 16.0% decreaseerage interest bearing deposits \
financial institutions were $87.0 million in 201dompared with $65.1 million in 2013, a 33.7% inceaAverage investment securities v
$220.5 million for 2014, compared with $184.2 naiflifor 2013, a 19.7% increase. Our total intenesbine decreased 8.6% to $39.5 mil
for 2014, compared with $43.2 million for 2013.

Our average intere$tearing liabilities decreased by 5.5% to $885.8ionilfor 2014, compared with $937.4 million for Z010ur total intere
expense decreased by 12.1% to $9.8 million for 2@dmpared with $11.1 million during 2013, due ity to lower interest rates paid
and lower volume of certificates of deposit. Ouerge volume of certificates of deposit decrea€ep% to $632.0 million for 2014, compa
with $704.0 million for 2013. The average intereste paid on certificates of deposit decreased26% for 2014, compared with 1.35%
2013, as the result of continuedpeeing of certificates of deposit at maturity taler interest rates. Our average volume of NOW rande)
market deposit accounts increased 16.1% to $17Bidmfor 2014, compared with $154.8 million fof23. The average interest rate pai
NOW and money market deposit accounts increas8dB&% for 2014, compared with 0.35% for 20
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Our net interest income was $32.1 million for theay ended December 31, 2013, a decrease of $9i8mnibr 23.5%, compared wi
$42.0 million for the same period in 2012. Net iet&t spread and margin were 2.97% and 3.10%, riagglgc for 2013, compared with 3.1¢
and 3.31%, respectively, for 2012. Average nonadcloans were $107.3 million and $90.8 million 1613 and 2012, respectively. 1
decrease in net interest income was primarily dseilt of lower average earning assets. In additiehjnterest income and net interest me
were adversely affected by $5.6 million and $4.8iom of interest lost on nonaccrual loans durif@i2 and 2012, respectively.

Our average interegtarning assets were $1.05 billion for 2013, congbarith $1.28 billion for 2012, an 18.1% decreas@narily attributabls
to lower average loans and partially offset by bighverage investment securities and interest fpatéposits with financial institutior
Average loans were $788.2 million for 2013, comdanéth $1.03 billion for 2012, a 23.7% decreaseefage interest bearing deposits \
financial institutions were $65.1 million in 2018ympared with $62.1 million in 2012, a 4.7% inceealverage investment securities
$184.2 million for 2013, compared with $173.1 noiflifor 2012, a 6.4% increase. Our total interespime decreased 25.1% to $43.2 mil
for 2013, compared with $57.7 million for 2012. T¢teange was due primarily to lower interest ratefans, lower volume of loans and lo
interest rates on investment securities.

Our average interestearing liabilities decreased by 18.1% to $937 Mionifor 2013, compared with $1.14 billion for 2010ur total intere
expense decreased by 29.4% to $11.1 million foB208&mpared with $15.8 million during 2011, duenmtiily to lower interest rates paid
and lower volume of certificates of deposit, NOWl anoney market deposits. Our average volume officates of deposit decreased 22.8¢
$704.0 million for 2013, compared with $912.1 noitlifor 2012. The average interest rate paid orificates of deposit decreased to 1.35%
2013, compared with 1.52% for 2012, as the redultomtinued repricing of certificates of deposit at maturity towler interest rates. C
average volume of NOW and money market depositwatsoincreased 1.1% to $154.8 million for 2013, pared with $153.0 million f
2012. The average interest rate paid on NOW andegnorarket deposit accounts decreased to 0.35%98, Zompared with 0.42% for 2012.
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Average Balance Sheets

The following table sets forth the average daillabees, the interest earned or paid on such amoamisthe weighted average yield on interes
earning assets and weighted average cost of itdeeasing liabilities for the periods indicated. @irig income or expense by the average
balance of assets or liabilities, respectivelyjwder such yields and costs for the periods predente

For the Years Ended December 3]

2014 2013
Average Average
Interest Interest
Average Earned/ Yield/ Average Earned/ Yield/
Balance Paid Cost Balance Paid Cost

(dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Interes-earning asset:
Loans receivables (1)(:

Real estat $ 562,82¢ $27,65¢ 491% $ 696,78" $32,59: 4.68%
Commercial 60,41¢ 3,002 4.97 50,99( 2,772 5.44
Consume 12,78¢ 1,087 8.5(C 16,98: 1,40z 8.2¢
Agriculture 25,80¢ 1,321 5.1Z 22,63¢ 1,22¢ 5.4:
Other 60z 2€ 4.3z 78C 21 2.6¢
U.S. Treasury and agenci 32,45¢ 75k 2.3% 23,68t 54¢ 2.31
Mortgagebacked securitie 114,10: 2,78( 2.44 83,16( 1,552 1.87
State and political subdivision securities 30,42¢ 93¢ 4.7: 30,29: 93¢ 4.74
State and political subdivision securit 24,87: 757 3.04 24,86 787 3.17
Corporate bond 18,04: 607 3.3¢ 20,86« 745 3.57
FHLB stock 7,76( 337 4.3¢ 10,07: 421 4.1¢
Other debt securitie 572 46 8.04 572 46 8.04
Other equity securitie 21 — — 744 30 4.02
Federal funds sol 1,50z 2 0.1: 2,64( 3 0.11
Interes-bearing deposits in other financial institutic 86,98¢ 203 0.2: 65,07¢ 15C 0.2:
Total interest-earning assets 979,18 39,51 4.09%  1,050,14. 43,22¢ 4.16%
Less: Allowance for loan loss (25,390 (40,349
Nonr-interes-earning asse! 95,43¢ 88,60:
Total assets $1,049,23. $1,098,40!

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Interes-bearing liabilities

Certificates of deposit and other time depc $ 632,02 $ 8,12¢ 1.2%9% $ 703,98: $ 9,48: 1.35%
NOW and money market depos 179,69¢ 653 0.3¢ 154,75¢ 541 0.3t
Savings account 36,80: 8¢ 0.2¢ 39,15¢ 114 0.2¢€
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agree 2,25¢ 3 0.1: 3,11z 6 0.1¢
FHLB advance: 4,47 124 2.7 4,99( 157 3.1t
Junior subordinated debentu 30,50¢ 801 2.6: 31,40 842 2.6¢
Total interest-bearing liabilities 885,75 9,79¢ 1.11% 937,40¢ 11,14 1.1%%
Nonr-interes-bearing liabilities
Nor-interes-bearing deposit 113,15( 106,15:
Other liabilities 16,44« 12,21(
Total liabilities 1,015,35. 1,055,76!
Stockholder equity 33,88: 42,63
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,049,23; $1,098,40!
Net interest income $29,71¢ $32,08¢
Net interest spread 2.98% 2.91%
Net interest margin 3.0¢% 3.1(%
Ratio of average interes-earning assets to average intere-
bearing liabilities 110.5% 112.09%

(1) Includes loan fees in both interest income andc#tleulation of yield on loan:
(2) Calculations include ne-accruing loans of $63.1 million and $107.3 millioraverage loan amounts outstandi
(3) Taxable equivalent yields are calculated assumidgéa federal income tax raf
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ASSETS
Interes-earning asset:
Loans receivables (1)(:
Real estat
Commercial
Consume
Agriculture
Other
U.S. Treasury and agenci
Mortgagebacked securitie
State and political subdivision securities
State and political subdivision securit
Corporate bond
FHLB stock
Other debt securitie
Other equity securitie
Federal funds sol
Interes-bearing deposits in other financial institutic
Total interest-earning asset:s
Less: Allowance for loan loss
Nonr-interes-earning asse!
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ’ EQUITY
Interes-bearing liabilities
Certificates of deposit and other time depc
NOW and money market depos
Savings account
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agree
FHLB advance:
Junior subordinated debentu

Total interest-bearing liabilities
Nonr-interes-bearing liabilities
Nor-interes-bearing deposit
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Net interest income
Net interest spread
Net interest margin

Ratio of average interes-earning assets to average intere-

bearing liabilities

For the Years Ended December 3]

2013 2012
Average Average
Interest Interest
Average Earned/ Yield/ Average Earned/ Yield/
Balance Paid Cost Balance Paid Cost
(dollars in thousands)
$ 696,78" $32,59: 468 $ 921,31 $46,17¢ 5.01%
50,99( 2,772 5.44 64,25: 3,51( 5.4¢
16,98: 1,402 8.2¢ 22,72( 1,90: 8.3¢
22,63¢ 1,22¢ 5.4: 24,19¢ 1,304 5.3¢
78( 21 2.6¢ 83¢ 22 2.6:%
23,68¢ 54¢ 2.31] 6,58¢ 19¢ 3.0z
83,16( 1,552 1.87 111,63 1,98¢ 1.7¢
30,29: 93: 4.7¢4 26,63 887 5.1z
24,86. 787 3.17 17,36: 568 3.2¢4
20,86¢ 74~ 3.57 8,951 482 5.3¢
10,07: 421 4.1¢ 10,07: 447 4.44
572 4€ 8.0 572 46 8.04
744 3C 4.0 1,35¢ 57 4.1¢
2,64( 3 0.11 3,10¢ 2 0.0¢
65,07¢ 15C 0.2¢ 62,12° 14z 0.2
1,050,14. 43,22¢ 4.1% 1,281,73 57,72¢ 4.54%
(40,349 (53,48
88,60 113,31
$1,098,40! $1,341,56!
$ 703,98. $ 9,48: 1.3% $ 912,06: $13,82¢ 1.52%
154,75¢ 541 0.3t 153,03 641 0.4z
39,15¢ 114 0.2¢ 38,66¢ 154 0.4C
3,11 6 0.1¢ 2,08¢ 7 0.34
4,99( 157 3.1t 6,32¢ 207 3.27
31,40¢ 84: 2.6¢ 32,30¢ 937 2.9C
937,40t 11,14 1.1% 1,144,48 15,77« 1.3&%
106,15: 113,32!
12,21( 8,081
1,055,76! 1,265,88!
42,63 75,67¢
$1,098,40 $1,341 56
$32,08! $41,95¢
2.91% 3.1€%
3.1(% 3.31%
112.09% 111.9%

(1) Includes loan fees in both interest income and#tleulation of yield on loan:

(2) Calculations include ne-accruing loans of $107.3 million and $90.8 millioraverage loan amounts outstandi

(3) Taxable equivalent yields are calculated assumidgéa federal income tax raf
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Rate/VVolume Analysis

The table below sets forth information regardingrades in interest income and interest expensééoperiods indicated. For each categol
interest-earning assets and intefgstring liabilities, information is provided on clyes attributable to (1) changes in rate (changesit:
multiplied by old volume); (2) changes in volumédages in volume multiplied by old rate); and (Baieges in rateolume (change in ra
multiplied by change in volume). Changes in ratete are proportionately allocated between ratevarhgime variance.

Year Ended December 31, 2014 vs. 20 Year Ended December 31, 2013 vs. 20
Increase (decrease Increase (decrease
due to change in due to change in
Rate Volume Net Change Rate Volume Net Change

(in thousands)
Interest-earning assets

Loan receivable $ 1,316 $ (6,24) $ (4,92f) $(2,93) $(11,967) $ (14,909
U.S. Treasury and agenci 5 204 20¢ (35 382 347
Mortgage-backed securitie 554 674 1,22¢ 93 (528) (435)
State and political subdivision securit (32 5 (27) (82) 351 27C
Corporate bond (41) (97 (138 (20€) 46¢ 263
FHLB stock 16 (100) (84) (26) — (26)
Other equity securitie (15 (15 (30 2 (25) (27
Federal funds sol 0 (@D} (@D} 1 — 1
Interes-bearing deposits in other financial institutic 1 52 53 1 7 8
Total increase (decrease) in interest income 1,80¢ (5,519 (3,719 (3,190 (11,31) (14,509
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Certificates of deposit and other time depc (41¢) (939 (1,357 (1,427 (2,919 (4,34¢€)
NOW and money market accoul 22 a0 112 (107) 7 (200
Savings account (18 (7) (25) (42 2 (40
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agree (@D} 2 3 3 2 Q)
FHLB advance: (18 (15 (33 (8 (42) (50
Junior subordinated debentu (18) (24) (42 (69) (25) (949)
Total increase (decrease) in interest expen (457) (897) (1,349 (1,656 (2,979 (4,63])
Increase (decrease) in net interest income $ 2,258 $ (4629 $ (2,367) $(1539 $ (8,336 $ (9,870

Non-interest Income— The following table presents for the periods éatled the major categories of non-interest income:

For the Years Ended
December 31

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Service charges on deposit accol $1,98¢ $2,05¢ $2,23¢
Income from fiduciary activitie — 517 1,175
Bank card interchange fe 765 71€ 727
Other real estate owned rental incc 25€ 39¢ 42C
Net gain on sales of securiti 92 723 3,23¢
Income from bank owned life insuran 27¢€ 534 31z
Other 70z 97C 1,47¢

Total nor-interest incomt $4,07¢ $5,91¢ $9,59(

Nor-interest income decreased by $1.8 million to $4illian for 2014 compared with $5.9 million for 2013 his was due primarily
decreased gain on sales of investment securiti€g681,000, or 87.3%, due to lower volume of saldss decrease was also caused
reduction in income from fiduciary activities as wansitioned away from providing trust servicesluding ESOP and employee benefit |
services throughout our markets in 2013.
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Non-interest income decreased by $3.7 million to $5ifian for 2013 compared with $9.6 million for 201Zhis was due primarily
decreased gain on sales of investment securiti@& &f million, or 77.7%, due to lower volume ofesal This decrease was also caused
reduction in income from fiduciary activities as wansitioned away from providing trust servicesluding ESOP and employee benefit |
services throughout our markets. This decreaseoffest partially by an increase in income from bamkned life insurance, which increasec
71.2% from 2012.

Non-interest Expense -The following table presents the major categorfasom-interest expense:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Salary and employee benel $15,65¢ $15,50: $16,64¢
Other real estate owned expe 5,83¢ 4,51¢ 10,54¢
Occupancy and equipme 3,49 3,58: 3,64
Loan collection expens 2,99/ 4,707 2,447
Professional fee 2,771 1,89: 1,98¢
FDIC insurance 2,27 2,37¢ 2,83t
State franchise ta 1,44t 1,94¢ 2,17¢
Data processing expen 1,10¢ 184 96
Communication 752 711 71C
Postage and delive 407 42: 454
Insurance expen: 57t 64¢ 37%
Advertising 563 30¢ 154
Other 1,55¢ 2,09t 2,23(

Total nor-interest expens $39,43¢ $38,89( $44,29:

Nor-interest expense for the year ended December 34, @0$39.4 million represented a 1.4% increasmf$38.9 million for the same peri
last year. The increase in narterest expense was attributable primarily togases in OREO expenses, professional fees anghbatassin
expenses, offset by decreases in loan collectigerses and state franchise tax. In late 2013, warbeutsourcing out data proces:
functions, leading to an increase in expense year year. Expenses related to OREO include:

2014 2013
(in thousands)

Net (gain) loss on salt $ (306) $ 132

Provision to allowance for declining market vali 4,25k 2,46¢

Operating expens 1,89( 1,91¢

Total $5,83¢ $4,51¢

During 2014, we recorded approximately $4.3 millafrprovision to OREO allowance related to fairuewritedowns resulting from declir
in the fair value of the real estate based uporatgadappraisals and reduced marketing prices. ddngpares with $2.5 million of provisi
related to new appraisals received for propertighé portfolio during 2013.

Loan collection expenses declined by $2.7 million36.4%, but this improvement was offset by a $iilion increase in OREO expen:
primarily as a result of fair value writedowns ritislg from declines in the fair value of the reatate based upon updated appraisals
reduced marketing prices.
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Non-interest Expense Comparison — 2013 to 2012

Nor-interest expense for the year ended December 3B 80%$38.9 million represented a 12.2% decreasen f44.3 million for the sar
period last year. The decrease in moi@rest expense was attributable primarily to dased other real estate owned expense due to los¢
on sales of OREO and lower valuation write-downgdnses related to other real estate owned include:

2013 2012
(in thousands)
Net loss on sale $ 132 $ 1,672
Provision to allowanc 2,46¢ 7,15¢
Operating expens 1,91¢ 1,72
Total $4,51¢ $10,54¢

During 2013, we recorded approximately $2.5 mill@frprovision to OREO allowance related to new ajgals received for properties in
portfolio during the year. This compares with $mlion of provision related to new appraisals riged for properties in the portfolio duri
2012.

FDIC insurance assessments decreased $457,008,186,1to $2.4 million in 2013 from $2.8 million 2012 due to decreased average
consolidated assets, less the average tangibldyeduiing the assessment period. Salary and empldanefit expenses decreasec
$1.1 million, or 6.9% to $15.5 million from $16.6lhon in 2012.

These improvements were offset partially by anaase in loan collection expense of $2.3 million,9@t8%, due primarily to continu
remediation of problem loans.

Income Tax Expense- No income tax expense was recorded for 2014 or ,201tB an income tax benefit of $1.6 million receddfor 2014
The December 31, 2014 tax benefit is entirely dugdins in other comprehensive income that arespted in current operations in accords
with the applicable accounting standards. Our defetax valuation allowance increased to $50.6onilat December 31, 2014. Our statu
federal tax rate was 35% in both 2014 and 2013.éffeztive tax rate for 2014 and 2013 is not megiuihdue to the reduction of income
benefit as the result of the establishment of #ferded tax valuation allowance.

The valuation allowance for our deferred tax asdets not have any impact on our liquidity, norsdiigoreclude us from using the tax los
tax credits or other timing differences in the fetuTo the extent we generate taxable income inengjuarter, the valuation allowance ma
reduced to offset fully or partially the corresporglincome tax expense. Any remaining deferredasset valuation allowance may be reve
through income tax expense once we can demonstisustainable return to profitability and conclitde more likely than not the deferred
asset will be utilized.

See Note 14, “Income Taxes”, for additional disaus®f our income taxes.

No income tax benefit was recorded for 2013, comgavith $65,000 for 2012. Our deferred tax valuatidlowance increased to $47.8 mill
at December 31, 2013. Our statutory federal taxwnats 35% in both 2013 and 2012. The effectivaasefor 2013 and 2012 is not meanin
due to the reduction of income tax benefit as ésailit of the establishment of the deferred taxatin allowance.
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Analysis of Financial Condition

Total assets at December 31, 2014 were $1.018itlompared with $1.076 billion at December 31,2 @ldecrease of $58.1 million or 5.
This decrease was attributable primarily to a deseeof $75.6 million in net loans and a decreasmsh and cash equivalents of $3hilion,
which were offset by increases in investment séesrbf $26.1 million and OREO of $15.3 million. §ldecrease in loans was attributab
principal reductions by customers outpacing lodgiwations and advances, as well as $15.9 millioloan chargeffs and the transfer of lo
balances totaling $32.3 million to OREO.

The Bank’s total risk-based capital was $73.2 onillat December 31, 2014. The Bankobnsent order with its primary regulators requite
Board of Directors to adopt and implement a plametduce its construction and development loansotamore than 75% of total ridkase:
capital. These loans totaled $33.2 million, or 46%4otal riskbased capital, at December 31, 2014. The conseet atso required a plan
reduce norewner occupied commercial real estate loans, cactddn and development loans, and multifamily restthl real estate loans &
group, to not more than 250% of total risk-basequtal These loans totaled $193.0 million, or 26@Ptotal riskbased capital, at December
2014,

Total assets at December 31, 2013 were $1.076tidompared with $1.163 billion at December 31,2@ldecrease of $86.5 million or 7.
This decrease was attributable primarily to a desgeof $189.8 million in loans. The decrease imdoaas attributable to principal reducti
by customers outpacing loan originations and adesnas well as $32.6 million in loan chafés and the transfer of loan balances tote
$20.6 million to OREO.

Loans Receivable -Loans receivable decreased $84.3 million, or 11.8@6ing the year ended December 31, 2014, to $628ldn. Oul
commercial, commercial real estate and real estatstruction portfolios decreased by an aggrega®5.4 million, or 13.1%, during 20
and comprised 55.5% of the total loan portfoli®@atember 31, 2014.

Loans receivable decreased $189.8 million, or 21.t4ring the year ended December 31, 2013, to $740dlion. Our commercia
commercial real estate and real estate construptiotiolios decreased by an aggregate of $126.8omilor 24.1%, during 2013, compris
56.3% of the total loan portfolio at December 3012

Loan Portfolio Composition —The following table presents a summary of the Iparifolio at the dates indicated, net of defermaahl fees, t
type. There are no foreign loans in our portfolal ather than the categories noted, there is noesdration of loans in any industry exceet
10% of total loans, with the exception of loans fetail facilities (included in other commercialateestate below). Those loans toti
$71.1 million at December 31, 2014 and $98.5 mill& December 31, 2013.

As of December 31

2014 2013
Amount Percen Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

Commercia $ 60,93¢ 9.7%% $ 52,87¢ 7.45%
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 33,17: 5.31 43,32¢ 6.11

Farmland 77,41¢ 12.3¢ 71,18¢ 10.04

Other 175,45: 28.07% 232,02¢ 32.71
Residential Real Estat

Multi -family 41,89 6.7C 46,85¢ 6.61

1-4 Family 197,27¢ 31.5¢ 228,50! 32.21
Consume 11,347 1.82 14,36¢ 2.0z
Agriculture 26,96¢ 4.31 19,19¢ 2.71
Other 537 0.0¢ 98C 0.1z

Total loans $624,99¢ 100.(%  $709,32¢ 100.0(%
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As of December 31

2012 2011 2010
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)
Commercia $ 52,567 5852% $ 71,21¢ 6.27% $ 90,29( 6.9%
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior 70,28¢ 7.82 101,47 8.9¢ 199,52: 15.32
Farmland 80,82t 8.9¢ 90,95¢ 8.01 85,52 6.5¢€
Other 322,68 35.8¢ 423,84 37.31 441,84 33.92
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family 50,98¢ 5.67 60,41( 5.31 74,91¢ 5.7¢
1-4 Family 278,27 30.9¢ 337,35( 29.7( 353,41¢ 27.1:
Consume 20,38t 2.21 26,01: 2.2¢ 31,91: 2.4k
Agriculture 22,31, 2.4¢ 23,77( 2.0¢ 24,17 1.8¢
Other 77C 0.0¢ 998 0.0¢ 1,06( 0.0¢
Total loans $899,09: 100.0% $1,136,02. 100.006 $1,302,66! 100.0(%

Our lending activities are subject to a varietylefding limits imposed by state and federal lawe Banks secured legal lending limit tc
single borrower was approximately $18.1 milliorDe&tcember 31, 2014.

At December 31, 2014, we had three loan relatiggssbach with aggregate extensions of credit in exoé $10.0 million, all of which we
classified as pass by the Baslkniternal loan review process. In 2013, we had koan relationships each with aggregate extensibrsedit ir
excess of $10.0 million. At December 31, 2013, wiahe four relationships included loans that haerb classified as substandard by
Bank’s internal loan review process. For furthescdssion of classified loans refer to the asselitgudiscussion in our Allowance for Loal
Losses” section.

Our real estate construction portfolio declined ragpnately $10.2 million from 2013 to 2014. Thiscdease was the result of construc
projects being completed and sold to end usersefinanced under permanent financing arrangemerdsi@ms in this category bei
transferred to OREO through the normal progressfarollection, workout, and ultimate disposition.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $7.0 million ofigrarticipations purchased from, and $28.0 millafnioan participations sold to, otl
banks. As of December 31, 2013, we had $7.2 milibioan participations purchased from, and $38lan of loan participations sold t
other banks.
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Loan Maturity Schedule — The following table sets forth information at Ded®#mn 31, 2014, regarding the dollar amount of loaret, o
deferred loan fees, maturing in the loan portfblised on their contractual terms to maturity:

As of December 31, 201

Maturing
Within Maturing Maturing
One 1 through Over 5 Total
Year 5 Years Years Loans
(dollars in thousands)

Loans with fixed rates:
Commercia $ 4,02¢ $ 19,54¢ $ 681 $ 24,25¢
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 5,837 11,52t 402 17,76¢

Farmland 10,06¢ 15,96¢ 6,257 32,29(

Other 48,08¢ 60,30¢ 20,69: 129,08!
Residential Real Estat

Multi-family 757 26,11¢ 7,03(C 33,90¢

1-4 Family 19,607 83,56! 45,30: 148,47
Consume 1,51¢ 8,16¢ 1,33¢ 11,01z
Agriculture 2,40¢ 2,431 294 5,13:
Other 74 20€ 237 517

Total fixed rate loan $92,37¢ $227,82° $ 82,22 $402,43.
Loans with floating rates:
Commercia $11,60: $ 16,28¢ $ 8,79 $ 36,68(
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 4,26¢ 10,56: 58C 15,40¢

Farmland 3,221 3,67¢ 38,23: 45,12¢

Other 2,68( 22,44 21,24: 46,36
Residential Real Estat

Multi -family 46 6,21¢ 1,72¢ 7,98¢

1-4 Family 5,38 6,63( 36,79¢ 48,807
Consume 17¢€ 10¢ 49 334
Agriculture 8,17 13,56( 96 21,83
Other — — 20 20

Total floating rate loan $35,55( $ 79,48¢ $107,53: $222,56°

Loan Portfolio by Risk Category— The following table presents a summary of the Iparifolio at the dates indicated, by risk category.

As of December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Pass $461,12¢ $369,52¢ $437,88¢ $ 713,82 $ 984,63t
Watch 68,20( 144,31t 177,41¢ 143,24° 130,33!
Special Mentior 4,18¢ 5,86¢ 34,70( 48,92: 18,98¢
Substandar 91,48 189,61t 248,69: 229,64 168,69:
Doubtful — — 39¢€ 391 18
Total $624,99¢ $709,32¢ $899,09. $1,136,02. $1,302,66!

Our loans receivable decreased $84.3 million, d®%] during the year ended December 31, 201404l Irisk categories have decreased :
December 31, 2013, with the exception of pass grddens. The pass category increased approxim&&ly6 million, the watch categc
declined approximately $76.2 million, the speciamntion category declined approximately $1.7 milliand the substandard category decl
approximately $98.1 million. During the first quartof 2014, management instituted a new risk cagjegathin its pass classification. T
purpose was to better identify certain loans whleeeborrowers sustained satisfactory repayment history was ddearmore relevant predic
of future loss than certain underwriting critertacgigination. The establishment of this new pask category helps to ensure the watch
category remains transitory and event driven inurgatA total of $24.2 million in commercial, $8.5llon in residential, and $2.2 million
agriculture loans were reclassified from watchhie mew pass risk category during the first quart&014.

40



Table of Contents

In December 2014, the Company identified and temaél certain substandard accruing loans to loaltsfhr sale. The loans were transfe
to held for sale at the lower of cost or fair valliee Company identified $10.7 million of loansskll and recorded a $1.8 million charge tc
allowance for loan losses to reduce the loan bakmne the estimated fair value. Loans held for sati@ $8.9 million at December 31, 20
comprised of $6.0 million in commercial real est&®.9 million in 1-4 family residential real estaand $1.0 million in multiamily real estat
These loans were not past due at December 31, 2014.

Loan Delinquency— The following table presents a summary of loanmdglencies at the dates indicated.

As of December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)

Past Due Loan:

30-59 Days $ 396 $ 10,69¢ $ 38,21¢ $ 17,34t $20,95¢
60-89 Days 98C 77E 20,30¢ 3,947 6,14¢

90 Days and Ove 151 232 86 1,35( 594
Total Loans Past Due -90+ Days 5,091 11,708 58,60¢ 22,64 27,69¢
Nonaccrual Loan 47,17°¢ 101,76° 94,517 92,02( 59,79¢
Total Past Due and Nonaccrual Lo $52,26¢ $113,47( $153,12! $114,66. $87,49:

Loans past due 30-59 days decreased from $10.iomdt December 31, 2013 to $4.0 million at Decen3de 2014, and loans past due 6C
89 days increased from $775,000 at December 313 201$980,000 at December 31, 2014. This represer6.5 million decrease frc
December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2014, in loastscue 3089 days. We considered this trend in delinquenegléeduring the evaluation
qualitative trends in the portfolio when establighthe general component of our allowance for loases.

Loans more than 90 days past due decreased $8h00Monaccrual loans decreased $54.6 millioneaisely, from December 31, 2013
December 31, 2014. The $47.2 million in no@forming loans at December 31, 2014, and $103l®m at December 31, 2013, wx
primarily construction, land development, otherdanommercial real estate, and residential reatedbans. Weakness in housing unit ¢
and loss of tenants or inability to lease vacafit@fand retail space placed inordinate stressheset borrowers and their ability to re
according to the contractual terms of the loansséach, we have placed these credits on nonacondahave begun the appropriate collec
actions to resolve them. Management believes ieltablished adequate loan loss reserves for thedgs.

Non-Performing Assets— Nonjperforming assets consist of certain restructumahd for which interest rate or other terms haver
renegotiated, loans past due 90 days or moreastilaccrual, loans on which interest is no longesriaed, real estate acquired thro
foreclosure and repossessed assets. Loans, ingludpaired loans, are placed on nonaccrual stahenwhey become past due 90 days or
as to principal or interest, unless they are adefuaecured and in the process of collection. Isoame considered impaired if full principa
interest payments are not anticipated in accordaittethe contractual loan terms. Impaired loare @arried at the present value of expe
future cash flows discounted at the lcaeffective interest rate or at the fair value lué tollateral less cost to sell if the loan is atia
dependent. Loans are reviewed on a regular badisi@mal collection procedures are implemented whéorrower fails to make a requi
payment on a loan. If the delinquency on a mortgaga exceeds 120 days and is not cured througmalocollection procedures or
acceptable arrangement is not worked out with threolwer, we institute measures to remedy the defandluding commencing a foreclos
action. Consumer loans generally are charged offrwdn loan is deemed uncollectible by managementaagdavailable collateral has b
disposed of. Commercial business and real estatedelinquencies are handled on an individual Hasimanagement with the advice of le
counsel.

Interest income on loans is recognized on the atdrasis except for those loans placed on nonakstatus. The accrual of interest
impaired loans is discontinued when managemeng\esi after consideration of economic and busioesditions and collection efforts, tl
the borrowers’financial condition is such that collection of irgst is doubtful, which typically occurs after thean becomes 90 de
delinquent. When interest accrual is discontingadsting accrued interest is reversed and inténesime is subsequently recognized only tc
extent cash payments are received on well-secoeat!
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Real estate acquired as a result of foreclosuby @eed in lieu of foreclosure is classified ad eséate owned until such time as it is sold. |
and used automobiles and other motor vehicles sedjais a result of foreclosure are classified pesgessed assets until they are sold. \
such property is acquired it is recorded at its faarket value less cost to sell. Any writewn of the property at the time of acquisitio
charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subseégaéms and losses are included in non-interestese.

The following table sets forth information with pext to non-performing assets as of the datesatetic

As of December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Past due 90 days or more still on acc $ 151 $ 232 $ 86 $ 1,35( $ 594
Loans on nonaccrual stat 47,178 101,76° 94,51, 92,02( 59,79¢

Total nor-performing loan: 47,32¢ 101,99¢ 94,60 93,37( 60,39
Real estate acquired through foreclos 46,19° 30,89: 43,67 41,44¢ 67,63t
Other repossessed ass — — — 5 52

Total nor-performing asset $93,52: $132,89: $138,27: $134,82: $128,08(
Non-performing loans to total loai 7.51% 14.3t% 10.52% 8.272% 4.6%
Non-performing assets to total ass 9.1¢% 12.35% 11.8% 9.2¢% 7.4%%
Allowance for nor-performing loan: $ 1,25¢ $ 2,28t $ 13,25( $ 11,38: $ 7,977
Allowance for no-performing loans to nc-performing loan: 2.7% 2.2% 14.(% 12.2% 13.2%

Troubled Debt Restructuring — A troubled debt restructuring (TDR) occurs when @mmpany has agreed to a loan modification in ¢
of a concession to a borrower who is experiendingnicial difficulty. The majority of the ComparsyTDRs involve a reduction in interest r
a deferral of principal for a stated period of tjme an interest only period. All TDRs are consatkimpaired, and the Company has alloc
reserves for these loans to reflect the presentevaf the concessionary terms granted to the bamoif the loan is considered collate
dependent, it is reported net of allocated resertethe fair value of the collateral less costed.

We do not have a formal loan modification progr&tather, we work with individual borrower on a cdgeease basis to facilitate the orde
collection of our principal and interest beforenart becomes a ngrerforming loan. If a borrower is unable to makatcactual payments, \
review the particular circumstances of that bornogsituation and negotiate a revised payment streaother words, we identify performi
borrowers experiencing financial difficulties, attlough negotiations, we lower their interest ratest typically on a shoterm basis for thre
to six months. Our goal when restructuring a credto afford the borrower a reasonable periodroétto remedy the issue causing cash
constraints within their business so that theyrednrn to performing status over time.

Our loan modifications have taken the form of rdaturcin interest rate and/or curtailment of scheduprincipal payments for a shaetr
period, usually three to six months, but in soms&esauntil maturity of the loan. In some circumsenwe restructure real estate secured loe
a bifurcated fashion whereby we have a fully anzorg “A” loan at a market interest rate and anriese-only “B” loan at a reduced inter
rate. The majority of our restructured loans artateral secured loans. If a borrower fails to perf under the modified terms, we place
loan(s) on nonaccrual status and begin the praxfeserking with the borrower to liquidate the unlyérg collateral to satisfy the debt.

At December 31, 2014, we had 52 restructured ltatasing $42.5 million with borrowers who experiedcdeterioration in financial conditi
compared with 98 loans totaling $91.3 million atcBmber 31, 2013. In general, these loans were egtanterest rate reductions to pro\
cash flow relief to borrowers experiencing cashwfldifficulties. Of these restructured loans for 20%our loans totaling approximat:
$3.9 million were also granted principal paymenrfedals until maturity. There were no concessiorslento forgive principal relative to th
loans, although we have recorded partial charge-oif certain restructured loans. In general, tHeaes are secured by first liens o 1-
residential or commercial real estate propertiesfaomland. Restructured loans also included $883,6f commercial loans for 2014.
December 31, 2014, $22.0 million of TDRs were perniag according to their modified terms.
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The following table sets forth information with pest to TDRs, nomerforming loans, real estate acquired throughcfosere, and oth
repossessed assets.

As of December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Total nor-performing loan: $ 47,32¢ $101,99¢ $ 94,60 $ 93,37( $ 60,39!
TDRs on accrue 21,98t 44,34¢ 77,34« 74,14« 25,54

Total nor-performing loans and TDRs on accr $ 69,31: $146,34! $171,94° $167,51- $ 85,93¢
Real estate acquired through foreclos 46,19° 30,89: 43,67 41,44¢ 67,63t
Other repossessed ass — — — 5 52

Total nor-performing assets and TDRs on acci $115,50¢ $177,23 $215,61 $208,96¢ $153,62:
Total nor-performing loans and TDRs on accrual to total Ic 11.09% 20.6% 19.12% 14.7%% 6.6(%
Total nor-performing assets and TDRs on accrual to totaks 11.3% 16.47% 18.55% 14.36% 8.91%

We consider any loan that is restructured for adweer experiencing financial difficulties due tobarrowers potential inability to pay
accordance with contractual terms of the loan ta b®ubled debt restructure. Specifically, we édesa concession involving a modificat
of the loan terms, such as (i) a reduction of tiaged interest rate, (ii) reduction or deferrapdhcipal, or (jii) reduction or deferral of accd
interest at a stated interest rate lower than thieent market rate for new debt with similar rigkta be troubled debt restructurings. Whe
modification of terms is made for a competitives@a we do not consider that to be a troubled detttucturing. A primary example o
competitive modification would be an interest naduction for a performing customsifoan to a market rate as the result of a maneiree ir
rates.

Management periodically reviews renewals/modifimasi of previously identified TDRs for which thereasvno principal forgiveness,
consider if it is appropriate to remove the TDRsslfication. If the borrower is no longer experigmgc financial difficulty and th
renewal/modification did not contain a concessignaterest rate or other concessionary terms, mamagt considers the potential removz
the TDR classification. If deemed appropriate, TRER classification is removed as the borrower hamplied with the terms of the loan at
date of renewal/modification and there was a reaislenexpectation that the borrower would contirmedmply with the terms of the loan a
the date of the renewal/modification. In this imet®, the TDR was originally considered a restriietuiin a prior year as a result o
modification with an interest rate that was not coemsurate with the risk of the underlying loan. Aiddally, TDR classification can |
removed in circumstances in which the Company per$oa non-concessionary meadification of the loan at terms that were consdeo b
at market for loans with comparable risk. Managenespects the borrower will continue to perform enthe remodified terms based on 1
borrower’s past history of performance.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, TDRs totaled $42l®omand $91.3 million, respectively. During theelve months ended December
2014, TDRs were reduced as a result of $17.1 millio payments, the transfer of $4.5 million to Isdmeld for sale, and the transfe
$16.7 million to OREO. In addition, the TDR clagsition was removed from two loans that met theuregnents discussed above in
second quarter of 2014. These two loans totale@ ifllion at December 31, 2013. These loans ardonger evaluated individually f
impairment.

If the borrower fails to perform, we place the laannonaccrual status and seek to liquidate thenlyidg collateral. Our nonaccrual policy
restructured loans is identical to our nonaccradicp for all loans. Our policy calls for a loan be reported as nonaccrual if it is maintaine
a cash basis because of deterioration in the finhaondition of the borrower, payment in full ofipcipal and interest is not expected
principal or interest is past due 90 days or maress the assets are both well secured and inrduess of collection. Changes in value
impairment, including the amount attributed to thassage of time, are recorded entirely within thevigion for loan losses. Up
determination that a loan is collateral depend#etjoan is charged down to the fair value of d¢eHal less estimated costs to sell.
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See Footnote 4, “Loans”, to the financial statersént additional disclosure related to troubledtdeltructuring.

Interest income that would have been earned onpeoforming loans was $3.3 million, $5.6 million,das4.9 million for the years enc
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectivelgrdst income recognized on accruing pemforming loans was $785,000, $895,000,
$460,000 for the years ended December 31, 20148, 20 2012, respectively.

Allowance for Loan Losses -The allowance for loan losses is based on manag&nemntinuing review and evaluation of individuahihs
loss experience, current economic conditions, cisiracteristics of various categories of loans such other factors that, in management
judgment, require current recognition in estimalivan losses

Management has established loan grading procedatsesult in specific allowance allocations fory sestimated inherent risk of loss.
loans not individually evaluated, a general alloemrallocation is computed using factors developedr dime based on actual I
experience. The specific and general allocations pbnsideration of qualitative factors represeahagemens$ estimate of probable los
contained in the loan portfolio at the evaluati@ted Although the allowance for loan losses is aigep of specific and general allocations,
entire allowance is available to absorb any credies.

The following table sets forth an analysis of ldass experience as of and for the periods indicated

As of December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)
Balances at beginning of peri $ 28,12« $ 56,68( $ 52,57¢ $ 34,28t $ 26,39
Loans charge-off:
Real estat 17,94 28,87¢ 31,431 38,53¢ 19,26:
Commercia 1,09¢ 2,82¢ 3,78¢ 4,197 2,67¢
Consume 354 778 1,13( 1,07( 49€
Agriculture 30 12¢ 1,16¢ 841 29
Total charg-offs 19,42¢ 32,60¢ 37,51¢ 44,64¢ 22,46
Recoveries
Real estat 2,72¢ 1,622 1,04( 184 114
Commercia 614 1,217 12¢ 69 28
Consume 213 26¢€ 12E 87 104
Agriculture 13 252 72 — 8
Total recoverie: 3,56¢ 3,352 1,36¢ 34C 254
Net charg-offs 15,86( 29,25¢ 36,14¢ 44,30¢ 22,20"
Provision for loan losse 7,10( 70C 40,25( 62,60( 30,10(
Balance at end of peric $ 19,36¢ $ 28,12« $ 56,68( $ 52,57¢ $ 34,28t
Allowance for loan losses to per-end loan: 3.1(% 3.96% 6.3(% 4.6% 2.65%
Net charg-offs to average loar 2.3%% 3.71% 3.5(% 3.5€% 1.64%
Allowance for loan losses to n-performing loan: 40.92% 27.51% 59.91% 56.31% 56.771%
Allowance for loan losses for loans individuallyadvated fol
impairment $ 75z $ 3,471 $ 21,03¢ $ 12,31« $ 5,11¢
Loans individually evaluated for impairme 71,99: 149,88: 188,80¢ 150,72 71,72¢
Allowance for loan losses to loans individually kxded for
impairment 1.04% 2.32% 11.10% 8.17% 7.14%
Allowance for loan losses for loans collectivelyabiated for
impairment $ 18,61: $ 24,65! $ 35,64¢ $ 40,26¢ $ 29,16¢
Loans collectively evaluated for impairme 553,00t 559,44 710,28: 985,29t 1,230,94.
Allowance for loan losses to loans collectively lexaded for
impairment 3.31™% 4.41% 5.02% 4.09% 2.31%
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Our allowance for loan losses is a reserve estalishrough charges to earnings in the form ofowipion for loan losses. The allowance
loan losses is comprised of general reserves agdfigpreserves. Our loan loss reserve, as a ptrgerof total loans at December 31, 2
decreased to 3.10% from 3.96% at December 31, A0k8change in our loan loss reserve as a percemtfatptal loans between period:
attributable to the decline in historical loss ex@ece, qualitative factors, fewer loans migrattdayvnward in risk grade classifications, charge
off levels, and provision expense. Our allowanceldéan losses to noperforming loans was 40.92% at December 31, 204rhpared wit
27.57% at December 31, 2013. Net chawffe-in 2014 totaled $15.9 million of which $13.7llion were the result of charging off t
allowance for individually evaluated loans deemedé collateral dependent during the period. Téssilted in the decline in our allowance
loan losses for loans individually evaluated fopairment.

The following table sets forth the net charge-¢fécoveries) for the periods indicated:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands

Commercia $ 48t $ 1,61¢ $ 3,65t
Commercial Real Esta 11,87¢ 20,04t 21,53
Residential Real Esta 3,33¢ 7,212 8,86¢
Consume 167 507 1,00¢
Agriculture 17 (129 1,092
Other (26) — —
Total net charc-offs $ 15,86( $ 29,25¢ $ 36,14¢

We maintain a general reserve for each loan typleeardoan portfolio. In determining the amount loé general reserve portion of our allowe
for loan losses, management considers factorsasiclur historical loan loss experience, the groatimposition and diversification of our Ic
portfolio, current delinquency levels, loan qualisades, the results of recent regulatory exanunatand general economic conditions. B
on these factors, we apply estimated percentagis tearious categories of loans, not including lxay that has a specific allowance alloc
to it, based on our historical experience, portfaiends and economic and industry trends. Thisrination is used by management to se
general reserve portion of the allowance for laezsés at a level it deems prudent.

Generally, all loans that have been identifiednagaired are reviewed on a quarterly basis in otaleletermine whether a specific allowanc
required. A loan is considered impaired when, basedurrent information, it is probable that welwibt receive all amounts due in accordz
with the contractual terms of the loan agreementeCa loan has been identified as impaired, managemeasures impairment in accord:
with ASC 310.10;Impairment of a Loan."When managemert’measured value of the impaired loan is less tiinecorded investment in
loan, the amount of the impairment is recorded apexific reserve or chargedf if the loan is deemed collateral dependent.sehspecifi
reserves are determined on an individual loan Hzessed on managementturrent evaluation of our loss exposure for eaeldit given th
payment status, financial condition of the borrowed value of any underlying collateral. Loansvidiich specific reserves have been prov
are excluded from the general reserve calculatii@ssribed below. Changes in specific reserves freriod to period are the result of char
in the circumstances of individual loans such asg#-offs, pay-offs, changes in collateral valuestber factors.

The allowance for loan losses represents manag&nestimate of the amount necessary to provideruvgble losses in the loan portfolic
the normal course of business. Due to the unceytaifrisks in the loan portfolio, managemenjudgment of the amount of the allowa
necessary to absorb loan losses is approximatealldv@ance for loan losses is also subject to gy examinations and may be adjuste
response to a determination by the regulatory dgeras to its adequacy in comparison with peeiturtisins.

We make specific allowances for each impaired |lbased on its type and risk classification as disedsabove. At yeaend 2014, ot
allowance for loan losses to total non-performiognls increased to 40.9% from 27.6% at yevat-2013. It is important to look more closel
this ratio as a significant portion of our impaidedns are collateral dependent and have been edhalgwn to the estimated fair value of
underlying collateral less cost to sell. Pleasetiseaext table for comparison and disclosure ofreaorded investment less allocated allow.
relative to the unpaid principal balance. We hasseased these impaired loans for collectability emsidered, among other things,
borrowers ability to repay, the value of the underlyinglatdral, and other market conditions to ensure thatallowance for loan losse
adequate to absorb probable incurred losses.
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The following table presents the unpaid principallabce, recorded investment and allocated allowagle¢ed to loans individually evalua
for impairment in the commercial real estate arsidential real estate portfolios as of December2B14 and 2013.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Commercial Residential Commercial Residential
Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate
(in thousands)

Unpaid principal balanc $ 65,89¢ $ 24,63 $ 116,74 $ 56,66¢
Prior charg-offs (17,759 (3,249 (22,410) (7,153
Recorded investmel 48,14 21,38¢ 94,33( 49,51:
Allocated allowanci (491 (227) (2,345 (827)
Recorded investment, less allocated allow: $ 47,65( $ 21,157 $ 91,98¢ $ 48,68t
Recorded investment, less allocated allowance/ ldmréncipal balanci 72.31% 85.8% 78.7% 85.92%

Based on previous chargéfs, our current recorded investment in the conuiatrreal estate and residential real estate setgmar
significantly below the unpaid principal balance fbe loans. Consideration of the recorded investnamd allocated allowance furtl
indicated, we are at 72.31% and 85.89% of the whpancipal balance in the commercial real estatd r@sidential real estate segments o
portfolio, respectively, at December 31, 2014.

The following table illustrates recent trends iafs collectively evaluated for impairment and thkated allowance for loan losses by portt
segment:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
% to % to
Loans Allowance Total Loans Allowance Total
(dollars in thousands)
Commercia $5891« $ 2,01 342% $ 47,880 $ 2,931 6.12%
Commercial real esta 237,90: 10,44(  4.3¢ 252,21 14,06¢  5.5¢
Residential real esta 217,78" 5,56( 2.5t 225,85: 6,93t  3.07
Consume 11,28¢ 278 2.42 14,27: 407 2.8t
Agriculture 26,70: 31¢ 1.1¢ 18,87 30t 1.62
Other 41E 7 1.6¢ 34¢ 6 1.72
Total $553,00¢ $18,61: 3.31% $559,44. $ 24,65 4.41%

Loans collectively evaluated for impairment and tekated allowance for loan losses trended downvram 4.41% at December 31, 201!
3.37% at December 31, 2014 as a result of declihistprical chargeff levels and improving trends in loan categorgkriratings. Th
residential real estate segment constitutes appedrly 39% of total loans collectively evaluated ifopairment. The related allowance for
residential real estate segment trended downward 3.07% at December 31, 2013 to 2.55% at DeceBhe?014 as our net chargés
declined from approximately $7.2 million in 2013%8.3 million in 2014. The commercial real estagraent constitutes approximately 439
total loans collectively evaluated for impairmehte related allowance for the commercial real estagment trended downward from 5.58'
December 31, 2013 to 4.39% at December 31, 201i4.iFlconsistent with our net chargé-experience in the commercial real estate seg
of the portfolio which totaled approximately $2@nillion in 2013 and $11.9 million in 2014. The deasing allowance also reflects impro\
past due trends, nonaccrual trends, and loan fitadgin trends within the portfolio.

A significant portion of our portfolio is comprised loans secured by real estate. A decline invilee of the real estate serving as collater:
our loans may impact our ability to collect thosmns. In general, we obtain updated appraisalsropepy securing our loans wt
circumstances are warranted such as at the timenefwal or when market conditions have signifigactianged. We use qualified licen
appraisers approved by our Board of Directors. &heygpraisers possess prerequisite certificatiodskaowledge of the local and regio
marketplace.

Based on an evaluation of the loan portfolio, managnt presents a quarterly review of the allowdacéan losses to our Board of Directt
indicating any change in the allowance for loarsésssince the last review and any recommendat®tsadjustments in the allowance for |
losses.
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This evaluation is inherently subjective as it rieggi estimates that are susceptible to significavision as more information becomes avail
or as events change. We decreased the allowandeaforiosses as a percentage of loans outstandiBgl0% at December 31, 2014 fi
3.96% at December 31, 2013. This decline is thelres declining historical chargeff levels and improving trends in loan categorgk
ratings. The level of the allowance is based oimadés and the ultimate losses may vary from tiestenates.

We follow a loan grading program designed to evalile credit risk in our loan portfolio. Througdtis loan grading process, we maintait
internally classified watch list which helps managat assess the overgliality of the loan portfolio and the adequacy lué allowance fc
loan losses. Loans categorized as watch list Ishnos warning elements where the present statubiéxioine or more deficiencies that req
attention in the shotierm or where pertinent ratios of the loan accdavie weakened to a point where more frequent mamitds warrantec
These loans do not have all of the characterisfiesclassified loan (substandard or doubtful)dmshow weakened elements as comparec
those of a satisfactory credit. We review thesadda assist in assessing the adequacy of thealloafor loan losses.

In establishing the appropriate classificationdpecific assets, management considers, among fattters, the borrowes’ ability to repay, tr
borrowers repayment history, the current delinquent statnd,the estimated value of the underlying coliteks a result of this process, lo
are categorized as special mention, substandatdudatful.

Loans classified as “special mentiaih3 not have all of the characteristics of substeshda doubtful loans. They have one or more deficie:
which warrant special attention and which corrextietion, such as accelerated collection practinayg,remedy.

Loans classified as “substandam®e those loans with clear and defined weaknesss#sas a highly leveraged position, unfavorablarfoia
ratios, uncertain repayment sources or poor firsmcindition which may jeopardize the repaymerthefdebt as contractually agreed. They
characterized by the distinct possibility that wi# sustain some losses if the deficiencies arecootected.

Loans classified as “doubtfuire those loans which have characteristics sirtolaubstandard loans but with an increased riskcihlection o
liquidation in full is highly questionable and ingirable.

Specific reserves may be carried for accruing TRsompliance with restructured terms. Once a lisasheemed impaired or uncollectible
contractually agreed (other than performing TDR®,loan is charged-off either partially orfudt against the allowance for loan losses, b
upon the expected future cash flows discountetieatdans effective interest rate, or the fair value ofl@i@ral less estimated cost to sell \
respect to collateral-based loans if collateralehei@nt.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $91.5 million afne classified as substandard, $4.2 million cleskds special mention and none class
as doubtful or loss. This compares with $189.6iarillof loans classified as substandard, $5.9 millitassified as special mention and r
classified as doubtful or loss as of December 81,32 The $98.1 million decrease in loans classiisdsubstandard was primarily driver
$40.7 in principal payments received, $30.6 in wmtign to OREO, and $19.1 in charg#s. In addition, the Company transferred $8.9iomn
in substandard accruing loans to loans held for BalDecember 2014. Substandard loans are primesifcentrated in the commercial |
estate portfolio. As of December 31, 2014, we Haatations of $4.0 million in the allowance for loéosses related to these substandard |
This compares to allocations of $12.5 million ie tillowance for loan losses related to substaridarss at December 31, 2013.
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The following table depicts managemearallocation of the allowance for loan losses anloype. Allowance funding and allocation is bass
managemens$' current evaluation of risk in each category, eooic conditions, past loss experience, loan volupast due history and otl
factors. Since these factors and managemma#sumptions are subject to change, the allocaioot necessarily predictive of future portfi
performance. The allocation is made by analyticeppses and is not necessarily indicative of thegmaies in which future losses may oc
The total allowance is available to absorb losem® fany segment of loans.

As of December 31

2014 2013
Percent o Percent o
Amount of Loans to Amount of Loans to
Total Total
Allowance Loans Allowance Loans
(dollars in thousands)
Commercia $ 2,04¢ 9.7%% $ 3,221 7.45%
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior 73¢ 5.31 2,14¢ 6.11
Farmland 1,09¢ 12.3¢ 1,62: 10.0<
Other 9,09¢ 28.07 12,64: 32.71
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family 88¢ 6.7C 1,44¢ 6.61
1-4 Family 4,901 31.5¢ 6,31: 32.21
Consume 274 1.82 41¢€ 2.0<
Agriculture 31¢ 4.31 30¢ 2.71
Other 7 0.0¢ 6 0.1z
Total $ 19,36 100.(% $ 28,12¢ 100.0%
As of December 31
2012 2011 2010
Percent o Percent o Percent o
Amount of Loans to Amount Loans to Amount Loans to
Total of Total of Total
Allowance Loans Allowance Loans Allowance Loans
(dollars in thousands)
Commercia $ 4,402 5850 $ 4,207 6.21% $ 2,147 6.9%
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior 5,98¢ 7.82 13,92( 8.9< 11,16¢ 15.32
Farmland 2,60( 8.9¢ 2,02: 8.01 70z 6.5¢€
Other 26,17¢ 35.8¢ 17,08: 37.31 12,20¢ 33.92
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family 2,46¢ 5.67 1,79 5.31 517 SNE
1-4 Family 13,77: 30.9¢ 12,42( 29.7( 6,707 27.1:
Consume 857 2.21 792 2.2¢ 701 2.4~
Agriculture 403 2.4¢ 32t 2.0¢ 134 1.8¢
Other 15 0.0¢ 14 0.0¢ 4 0.0¢
Unallocatec — — — — — —
Total $ 56,68( 100.(% $52,57¢ 100.(% $ 34,28¢ 100.0(%

Provision for Loan Losse— Provision expense of $7.1 million was recordedtf@ year ended December 31, 2014, compared with,$@(
for 2013 and $40.3 million for 2012. The total allnce for loan losses was $19.4 million, or 3.10R4otal loans, at December 31, 2C
compared with $28.1 million, or 3.96% of total Isaat December 31, 2013, and $56.7 million, or %30 total loans, at December 31, 2(
The decreased allowance is consistent with theedserin our classified loans of $175.9 million frdecember 31, 2013 to December 31, :
and loan charge-off trends. Net chanfts were $15.9 million for the year ended Decen8fer2014, compared with $29.3 million for 2
and $36.1 million for 2012. Charg#fs for 2014 were concentrated in the loans setbsereal estate category of the portfolio. Re¢dtesne
charge-offs represent 95.95% of our net chargefoff2014. These net chargéfs consisted of $10.9 million of commercial reatate loan
$3.3 million of residential real estate loans, &1id0 million of construction and land developmewaris. During the first quarter of 20
management instituted a new risk category withérpaiss classification. The purpose was to bettattify certain loans where the borroner’
sustained satisfactory repayment history was deesmembre relevant predictor of future loss thanaierunderwriting criteria at originatic
The establishment of this new pass risk categolpgstte ensure the watch risk category remains iti@ysand event driven in nature. A tota
$24.2 million in commercial, $8.5 million in resiutéal, and $2.2 million in agriculture loans weeglassified from watch to the new pass
category during the first quarter. We considerdize and volume of our portfolio as well as thed@rguality of our loan portfolio based ug
risk category classification when determining tbar loss provision for each period and the allowdnc loan losses at period end.
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Foreclosed Properties- Foreclosed properties at December 31, 2014 were2$dflion compared with $30.9 million at Decemigdr, 2013
See Footnote 6, “Other Real Estate Owné¢al'the financial statements. During 2014, we aegu$32.3 million of OREO properties and ¢
properties totaling approximately $13.1 million. Walue foreclosed properties at fair value lessreged cost to sell when acquired and ex
to liquidate these properties to recover our inwesit in the due course of business.

OREO is recorded at fair market value less estichatsst to sell at time of acquisition. Any wridewn of the property at the time of acquisi
is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Sulss#qeductions in fair value are recorded as intarest expense. To determine the fair v
of OREO for smaller dollar single family homes, aansult with internal real estate sales staff artdraal realtors, investors, and appraise
the internally evaluated market price is below woderlying investment in the property, appropriatge-downs are recorded.

For larger dollar commercial real estate properties obtain a new appraisal of the subject propertyave staff in our special assets grot
centralized appraisal department evaluate thetlatde appraisal in connection with the transfer tRED. In some of these circumstance:
appraisal is in process at quarter end and we make our best estimate of the fair value of theeulythg collateral based on our inter
evaluation of the property, our review of the miestent appraisal, and discussions with the cugreatbaged appraiser. We typically ob
updated appraisals within five quarters of the @ansiary date of ownership unless a sale is imminent

The following table presents the major categorfe@REO at the year-ends indicated:

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Commercial Real Estat

Construction, land development, and other | $18,32¢ $19,04¢ $22,32!

Farmland 654 69C 602

Other 14,52¢ 4,88¢ 15,17¢
Residential Real Estat

Multi -family 4,87¢ 24¢ 19t

1-4 Family 7,81¢ 6,01¢ 5,37¢

$46,19: $30,89: $43,67:

Net activity relating to other real estate ownedrythe years indicated is as follov

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

OREQ Activity

OREO as of January $ 30,89: $ 43,67: $ 41,44¢
Real estate acquire 32,33¢ 20,60¢ 33,52¢
Valuation adjustments for declining market val (4,255 (2,466 (7,159
Improvements — — 1
Net gain (loss) on sa 30¢€ (132) (1,672
Proceeds from sale of propert (13,089 (30,787 (22,48))
OREO as of December ! $46,19° $ 30,89: $ 43,67

Net loss on sales, wr-downs, and operating expenses for OREO totaled r$i8li®n for the year ended December 31, 2014, camag witt
$4.5 million for the same period of 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, fair valtite-downs of $4.3 million were recorded to reflect ddolg values evidenced by n
appraisals and our reduction of marketing priceconnection with our sales strategies compared $&t5 million for the year end
December 31, 2013. We were successful in sellingeORotaling $13.1 million and $30.9 million durirgp14 and 2013, respectively. '
continue to have an elevated level of real eseteared non-performing loans. We expect to resolsigmificant level of these ngmerforming
loans through the acquisition and sale of the Uyithey real estate collateral.
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Investment Securities— The securities portfolio serves as a source ofdiuand earnings and contributes to the managéiofeinterest rat
risk. We have the authority to invest in varioupdy of liquid assets, including shéerm United States Treasury obligations and seesrd
various federal agencies, obligations of statespatitical subdivisions, corporate bonds, certifésaof deposit at insured savings and loan:
banks, bankersacceptances and federal funds. We may also invesirtéon of our assets in certain commercial pagredt corporate de
securities. We are also authorized to invest inualufunds and stocks whose assets conform to trestments that we are authorized to n
directly. The investment portfolio increased by $2#illion, or 12.6%, to $233.1 million at Decemi&r, 2014, compared with $207.0 mill
at December 31, 2013.

The following table sets forth the carrying valdeoar securities portfolio at the dates indicated.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized
Fair Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value

(dollars in thousands)
Securities available for sa
U.S. Government and federal agenc $ 35,72¢ $ 30¢ $ (590) $ 35,44! $31,02¢ $ 284 $ (1,449 $ 29,86¢
Agency mortgac-backed:

residentia 121,98! 1,97¢ (357) 123,59¢ 102,43 45¢ (1,950 100,94:
State and municipi 11,69( 722 (8 12,40« 12,96¢ 60¢ (28) 13,54¢
Corporate 18,08’ 85:% (252) 18,68¢ 18,00z 76¢ (610 18,16:
Other deb 572 86 — 65¢ 572 6C — 632
Equity — — — — 13¢5 62 — 197
Total available for sal $188,05¢ $ 3,93¢ $ (1,207 $190,79. $165,13 $ 2,241 $ (4,03) $163,34-
Securities held to maturit
State and municip: $42328 $ 217 $ — $4449t §$4361: $ 3 $ (666 $ 42,94
Total held to maturit $42328 $ 2177 $§ — $4449¢ §$ 4361 $ 3 $ (666 $ 42,94

The following table sets forth the contractual midites, fair values and weighteslserage yields for our available for sale secugitield ¢
December 31, 2014:

After One Year After Five Years
Due Within But Within But Within
One Year Five Years Ten Years After Ten Years Total
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

Available for sale
U.S. Government and federalagenc $ 90 527 $ 97¢ 1.92% $14,67: 2.44% $ 19,70 2.21% $ 35,44! 2.3(%
Agency mortgag-backed:

residentia — — 21z 5.1¢ 1,87C 2.5¢ 121,51¢ 2.47 123,59¢ 2.4¢
State and municip: 1,23t 5.44 2,07t 5.0C 8,711 5.0t 38 6.1¢ 12,40¢ 5.1z
Corporate bond — — 5,53: 5.77 1,131 5.1« 12,02¢ 2.1¢ 18,68¢ 3.3t
Other deb — — — — — — 65€ 6.5C 65¢ 6.5C

Total available for sal $1,32F 5439% $8,79¢ 5.11% $26,388 3.3%% $154,28: 2.44% $190,79. 2.7(%

The following table sets forth the contractual miéies, amortized cost and weightaderage yields for our held to maturity securitietd a
December 31, 2014:

After One Year After Five Years
Due Within But Within But Within
One Year Five Years Ten Years After Ten Years Total
Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

Held to maturity
State and municip:
Total held to maturit

©
|
|
O\o

$ 44€ 1.7¢% $24,98: 3.62% $19,06¢ 4.52% $44,49¢ 4.0(%
$ 44€ 1.7¢% $24,98: 3.62% $19,06¢ 4.52% $44,49¢ 4.0(%

&
|
|
S

Average yields in the table above were calculated tax equivalent basis using a federal incomeasx of 35%. Mortgagbacked securiti¢
are securities that have been developed by poalingmber of real estate mortgages. These secuaitieissued by federal agencies suc
Government National Mortgage Association (“GinniadV), Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, as well as aggncy company issuers. Th
securities are deemed to have high credit ratiagd, minimum regular monthly cash flows of principald interest. Cash flows from age
backed mortgage-backed securities are guarantetttbbysuing agencies.
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Unlike U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencyr#tézs, which have a lump sum payment at matunitgrtgagebacked securities provi
cash flows from regular principal and interest payts and principal prepayments throughout the liviethe securities. Mortgagdaacket
securities that are purchased at a premium willegadly return decreasing net yields as interestsralrop because home owners ter
refinance their mortgages. Thus, the premium paidtrhe amortized over a shorter period. Thereftwase securities purchased at a disc
will obtain higher net yields in a decreasing istdrrate environment. As interest rates rise, gposite will generally be true. During a pel
of increasing interest rates, fixed rate mortghgeked securities do not tend to experience heesyagments of principal and conseque
average life will not be shortened. If interestembegin to fall, prepayments will generally ing@aNon-agency issuer mortgaggeke:
securities do not carry a government guaranteeliMieour purchases of these securities to banKifigad issues with high credit ratings. \
regularly monitor the performance and credit ragiof these securities and evaluate these secuidisese do all of our securities, for other
than-temporary impairment on a quarterly basis.D&tcember 31, 2014, 98.3% of the agency mortdmpied securities we held |
contractual final maturities of more than ten yeaith a weighted average life of 23.7 years.

Deposits— We attract both short-term and lotegm deposits from the general public by offeringiide range of deposit accounts and inte
rates. In recent years, we have been required bganheonditions to rely increasingly on short tadrérm certificate accounts and other dej
alternatives, including brokered and wholesale dipowhich are more responsive to market intenasis. We use forecasts based on int
rate risk simulations to assist management in rodnig our use of certificates of deposit and ottheposit products as funding sources an
impact of their use on interest income and netr@stemargin in various rate environments. Our ramgi brokered deposits matured du
2013. We are currently restricted from acceptiegewing, or rolling-over brokered deposits withthé prior receipt of a waiver on a case-by
case basis from our regulators.

We primarily rely on our banking office network &ttract and retain deposits in our local markets laserage our online Ascencia divisiol
attract out-ofmarket deposits. Market interest rates and ratedemosit products offered by competing financiatiimtions can significant
affect our ability to attract and retain deposidsiring 2014, total deposits decreased $60.9 miliompared with 2013. During 2013, t
deposits decreased $77.4 million compared with 2012 decrease in deposits for 2014 and 2013 wiazaply in certificates of depo:
balances.

To evaluate our funding needs in light of deposhdls resulting from continually changing condipwe evaluate simulated performs
reports that forecast changes in margins along ether pertinent economic data. We continue torafeactively priced deposit products al
our product line to allow us to retain deposit custrs and reduce interest rate risk during vanisirsg and falling interest rate cycles.

We offer savings accounts, NOW accounts, money etak&counts and fixed rate certificates with vagymnaturities. The flow of deposits
influenced significantly by general economic coiudis, changes in interest rates and competition. i@anagement adjusts interest re
maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal peesaltin our deposit products periodically. The varadtdeposit products allows us to comj
more effectively in obtaining funds and to respamith more flexibility to the flow of funds away fre depository institutions into outsi
investment alternatives. However, our ability toraadt and maintain deposits and the costs of thasds has been, and will continue to
significantly affected by market conditions.

The following table sets forth the average daillahees and weighted average rates paid for oursitsffor the periods indicated:

For the Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Average Average Average
Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
(dollars in thousands)
Demanc $113,15( $ 106,15: $ 113,32
Interest Checkin 83,50« 0.15% 84,91° 0.22% 89,82( 0.3%
Money Marketl 96,19¢ 0.5t 69,84 0.5C 63,21: 0.4¢
Savings 36,80: 0.2¢ 39,15¢ 0.2¢ 38,66¢ 0.4C
Certificates of Depos 632,02 1.2¢€ 703,98. 1.3¢% 912,06: 1.52
Total Deposits $961,67: $1,004,05: $1,217,08;
Weighted Average Ra 0.92% 1.01% 1.2(%
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The following table sets forth the average daillabhees and weighted average rates paid for ouficates of deposit for the periods indicated:

For the Years Ended December 3]

2014 2013 2012
Average Average Average
Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

(dollars in thousands)
Certificates of Depos

Less than $100,0C $354,25( 1.22% $405,75¢ 1.2€% $478,50: 1.4%
$100,000 or mor 277,71( 1.37 298,22 1.44 433,55¢ 1.64
Total $632,02( 1.2¢% $703,98: 1.3% $912,06: 1.52%

The following table shows at December 31, 2014atimeunt of our time deposits of $100,000 or mor¢ifog remaining until maturity:

Maturity Period
(in thousands)

Three months or les $ 50,81:
Three months through six mont 41,83¢
Six months through twelve mont 93,65¢
Over twelve month 66,767

Total $253,07.

We strive to maintain competitive pricing on oupdsit products which we believe allows us to retaBubstantial percentage of our custol
when their time deposits mature.

Borrowing — Deposits are the primary source of funds for ondieg and investment activities and for our genbtaliness purposes. We
also use advances (borrowings) from the FHLB ofciinati to supplement our pool of lendable fundeetrdeposit withdrawal requireme
and manage the terms of our liabilities. Advangesnfthe FHLB are secured by our stock in the FHBBd substantially all of our fii
mortgage residential loans. At December 31, 20%kthad $15.8 million in advances outstanding from LB and the capacity to incre
our borrowings an additional $13.0 million. The ABlbf Cincinnati functions as a central reserve bprdviding credit for savings banks ¢
other member financial institutions. As a membeg,ate required to own capital stock in the FHLB arelauthorized to apply for advance:
the security of such stock and certain of our honoetgages and other assets (principally, secunitt@sh are obligations of, or guaranteed
the United States) provided that we meet certaindstrds related to creditworthiness.

The following table sets forth information about &HLB advances as of and for the periods indicated

December 31

2014 2013 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Average balance outstandi $ 4,47: $4,99( $6,32¢
Maximum amount outstanding at any mc-end during the perio 16,94( 5,511 7,01t
End of period balanc 15,75: 4,49; 5,60¢
Weighted average interest ra

At end of perioc 1.02% 3.0™% 3.21%

During the perioc 2.71% 3.15% 3.27%

Subordinated Capital Note— At December 31, 2014, the Bank had a subordinapdat note outstanding in the amount of $5.0 wmilli The
note is unsecured, bears interest at the BBA threeth LIBOR floating rate plus 300 basis points] galifies as Tier 2 capital. Interest c
was due quarterly through September 30, 2010, athwime quarterly principal payments of $225,000spinterest commenced. The r
matures July 1, 2020. At December 31, 2014, thexést rate on this note was 3.24%.
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Junior Subordinated Debentures— At December 31, 2014, we had four issues of jursiobordinated debentures outstanding tot
$25.0 million as shown in the table below.

Liquidation Junior
Subordinated
Amount End of 20
Trust Quarter Debt and
Preferred Issuance Deferral Investment Maturity
Description Securities Date Period (1) Interest Rate (2) in Trust Date
(dollars in thousands) (dollars in thousands)
Porter Statutory Trust $ 5,00( 2/13/200<  9/19/201¢  3-month LIBOR +2.8% $ 5,158  2/13/203-
Porter Statutory Trust II 3,00( 4/15/200:  9/18/201t  3-month LIBOR + 2.7% 3,09  4/15/203:
Porter Statutory Trust I 14,000  12/14/200! 9/1/201¢  3-month LIBOR + 1.6% 14,43¢ 3/1/203"
Ascencia Statutory Trusl 3,00( 2/13/200«  9/19/201t  3-month LIBOR + 2.8% 3,09:  2/13/203:
$ 25,00( $ 25,77¢

(1) Accrued and unpaid interest totaled $2.2 millioDatember 31, 201.
(2) As of December 31, 2014, th-month LIBOR was 0.26%

The trust preferred securities are subject to mangaedemption, in whole or in part, upon repaymehthe subordinated debenture:
maturity or their earlier redemption at the liquida preference. The subordinated debentures, whiture February 13, 2034, April 15, 2C
and March 1, 2037, are redeemable before the matlate at our option at their principal amountspaccrued interest.

We have the option to defer interest payments enstibordinated debentures from time to time foedod not to exceed 20 consecu
quarters. After such period, we must pay all def¢rinterest or we will be in default. Effective Withe fourth quarter of 2011, we be
deferring interest payments on our junior suborgidadebentures. The deferral period ends SepteBihe2016 at which time we will |
required to pay all accrued interest or be in défau

Deferring interest payments on our junior subordidanotes resulted in the deferral of distributiemsour trust preferred securities. We
prohibited from paying cash dividends on our preferand common shares until such time as we hadeapjaleferred distributions on our tr
preferred securities.

The trust preferred securities issued by our sidngidrusts are currently included in our Tier Jpital for regulatory purposes. On Marcl
2005, the Federal Reserve Board adopted final thkgscontinue to allow trust preferred securitiede included in Tier 1 capital, subjec
guantitative and qualitative limits. Currently, nwore than 25% of our Tier 1 capital can consistro$t preferred securities and qualify
perpetual preferred stock. To the extent the amotiatrr trust preferred securities exceeds the BB#g the excess would be includable in ~
2 capital. The new quantitative limits were effeetMarch 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2014, the (@owy’s trust preferred securities tote
25% of its Tier 1 capital and 49% of its Tier 2 italp

Each of the trusts issuing the trust preferred sesi holds junior subordinated debentures weeadsuith a 30year maturity. The final ruli
provide that in the last five years before the qursiubordinated debentures mature, the associaistdpreferred securities will be excluded fi
Tier 1 capital and included in Tier 2 capital. bidéion, the trust preferred securities during fhie-year period would be amortized out of
2 capital by one-fifth each year and excluded fiier 2 capital completely during the year befordumgy.

Liquidity

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility we mawgtrbe able to satisfy current or future financiaenitments, or may become unduly relian
alternative funding sources. The objective of litityi risk management is to ensure that we meet#sé flow requirements of depositors
borrowers, as well as our operating cash needsigakto account all on- and oHalance sheet funding demands. Liquidity risk managn
also involves ensuring that we meet our cash fleeds at a reasonable cost. We maintain an investmerfunds management policy, wt
identifies the primary sources of liquidity, esfabks procedures for monitoring and measuring didyi and establishes minimum liquic
requirements in compliance with regulatory guidar@er Asset Liability Committee continually monisoaind reviews our liquidity position.
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Funds are available from a number of sources, diotuthe sale of securities in the available fde gaortion of the investment portfol
principal pay-downs on loans and mortgdigeked securities, customer deposit inflows, brettedeposits and other wholesale func
Historically, we have utilized brokered and wholes@eposits to supplement our funding strategy.afecurrently restricted from accepti
renewing, or rolling-over brokered deposits withtha prior receipt of a waiver on a casedage basis from our regulators. At Decembe
2014, we had no brokered deposits.

Traditionally, we have borrowed from the FHLB tgpplement our funding requirements. At December2®14, we had an unused borrow
capacity with the FHLB of $13.0 million. Our borrow capacity is under a detailed loan listing reguient and is based on the market vall
the underlying pledged loans rather than the unpsittipal balance of the pledged loans. The Igstiaquirement also increases the lev
collateral required for borrowings.

We also have available on a secured basis fedardsfborrowing lines from correspondent banks ittge$5.0 million. Management beliey
our sources of liquidity are adequate to meet eggecash needs for the foreseeable future, howéweravailability of these lines could
affected by our financial position. We are alsojsabto FDIC interest rate restrictions for depasfts such, we are permitted to offer up tc
“national rate” plus 75 basis points as publishegkly by the FDIC.

We have used cash to pay dividends on common shfeesd when declared by the Board of Directorg] o service debt. The Compasay’
main sources of funding include dividends paid bg Bank and financing obtained in the capital m@kBuring 2011, Porter Bancc
contributed $13.1 million to its subsidiary, therBawhich substantially decreased its liquid asSEtg contribution was made to strengther
Bank’s capital in an effort to help it comply with it@pital ratio requirements under the consent orte&uid assets decreased fr
$20.3 million at December 31, 2010 to $1.9 millmrDecember 31, 2014. Since the Bank is unlikelgetan a position to pay dividends to
parent company for the foreseeable future, cadbvisffor the parent are limited to earnings on streent securities, sales of investn
securities, and interest on deposits with the Bamilese cash inflows along with the liquid assetsl la¢ December 31, 2014, are neede
cover ongoing operating expenses of the parent angnwvhich are forecasted at $1.0 million for 20Parent company liquidity could
improved through a sale of common or preferredesheee the “Supervision-Porter Bancorp-Dividersgstion of Item 1. “Businessind thi
“Dividends” section of Item 5. “Market for Registtds Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arslids Purchases of EqL
Securities” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Capital

In the fourth quarter of 2011, we began deferrimtgriest payments on our junior subordinated netb&h resulted in a deferral of distributic
on our trust preferred securities. Therefore, wémat be able to pay cash dividends on our comstwares until such time that we have pai
deferred distributions on our trust preferred sities: If we defer interest payments on our trusffgrred securities for 20 consecutive qua
(through September 30, 2016), we must pay all dedeinterest or we will be in default. At DecemBér 2014, cumulative accrued and un
interest on our junior subordinated notes tota2@ $nillion.

Stockholders’equity decreased $2.5 million to $33.5 million adember 31, 2014, compared with $35.9 million atddeber 31, 2013. T
decrease was due to the current year net losstdffs the conversion of a $7.4 million dividendbiidy into stockholders’equity in th
exchange transaction and an increase in the fhiea our securities portfolio of $3.1 million.

In 2010, we completed a $32.0 million private plaeat to accredited investors. In the transactiomslved, the Company issued (i) 2,465,
common shares, (ii) 317,042 Series C PreferredeSheamd (iii) warrants to purchase 1,163,045 woting common shares at a price of $1.
per share.

The Series C Preferred Shares had no voting rigixsept when required by law), had a liquidatioaf@rence over our common shares,
dividend rights equivalent to our common shareghEzeries C Preferred Share would have automaticaiiverted into 1.05 common share
transferred by the holder in certain transactionadcordance with the policy of the Federal Reserve

On November 21, 2008, we issued to the UST 35,0@0es of our Series A Preferred Stock and a wattpturchase up to 330,561 of
common shares for $15.88 per share for aggregat@dmyation of $35.0 million.

In December 2014, we completed a m@sh equity exchange transaction with the accrditeestors who acquired all of our issued
outstanding Series A Preferred Shares from UST jpulelic auction. We acquired and cancelled allhed issued and outstanding Serie
Preferred Shares, the accrued dividends theredmfahe issued and outstanding Series C Prefe8kdres, and warrants to purct
798,915 shares of common stock together havingggregate book value of approximately $45.7 milliomexchange, we issued common
preferred shares having a fair value of approxiigat@.6 million. The effect of this exchange tractsan was to increase common stockholder:
equity by approximately $36.1 million, and totadatholders’ equity by $7.4 million.
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In the exchange transaction, we issued 1,821,428nun shares, 40,536 mandatorily convertible S&idxeferred Shares and 64,
mandatorily convertible Series D Preferred Shandsch automatically converted into 4,053,600 comnstiares and 6,458,000 neating
common shares after shareholder approval on FgbRiar2015. We also issued 6,198 Series E Pref@hedes and 4,304 Series F Prefe
Shares, both of which series are not convertitiie @mmon shares, have a liquidation preferenc&l @00 per share, and are entitled to ¢
noncumulative annual dividend if and when declafegties E and Series F Preferred Shares rank seniand have liquidation and divide
preferences over, our common shares and non-votingnon shares.

Kentucky banking laws limit the amount of divideritiat may be paid to a holding company by its sliasy banks without prior approv
These laws limit the amount of dividends that mayphid in any calendar year to current ygawet income, as defined in the laws, comt
with the retained net income of the preceding twarg, less any dividends declared during thoseggrDuring 2015, the amount availabl
be paid by the Bank to the Company would be equa&(5 earnings to date. However, the Bank hasedgngth its primary regulators
obtain their written consent prior to declaringpaying any future dividends.

Each of the federal bank regulatory agencies h@ableshed risk-based capital requirements for bagnkirganizations. See Item 1. Business
Supervision and Regulation — Porter Bancorp — @hpitlequacy Requirements and PBl Baniapital Requirements. In addition, the B
has agreed with its primary regulators to maintainatio of total capital to total risk-weighted eiss(“total risk-based capital ratiodf at leas
12.0%, and a ratio of Tier 1 capital to average@sgleverage ratio”) of 9.0%.

The following table shows the ratios of Tier 1 ¢apand total capital to riskdjusted assets and the leverage ratios for thep@mynand th
Bank at December 31, 2014:

Minimum
Capital
Well- Ratios
Regulatory Capitalized Under
Consent Porter PBI

Minimums Minimums Order Bancorp Bank
Tier 1 Capital 4.C% 6.C% N/A 6.7(% 8.5%
Total risk-based capite 8.C 10.C 12.(% 10.61 10.57
Tier 1 leverage rati 4.C 5.C 9.C 4.51 5.7¢

At December 31, 2014, the Bank’s Tier 1 leveragm naas 5.78% and its total riddkased capital ratio was 10.57%, which are bothvioeiha
9% minimum leverage ratio and the 12% minimum bslsed capital ratio required by the Consent Ortews in the table above. Be
regulatory agencies can exercise discretion wheimstitution does not maintain minimum capital lesver meet the other terms of a con
order. The agencies may initiate changes in managgnissue mandatory directives, impose monetanaljes or refrain from form
sanctions, depending on individual circumstanceasy Action taken by bank regulatory agencies cowadhabe our reputation and hav
material adverse effect on our business.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we enter int@ouartransactions, which, in accordance with GAAR not included in our consolida
balance sheets. We enter into these transactiangét thdinancing needs of our customers. These transactmmiude commitments to exte
credit and standby letters of credit, which involt@ varying degrees, elements of credit risk antdrest rate risk in excess of the ama
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.

55



Table of Contents

Our commitments associated with outstanding starndhgrs of credit and commitments to extend creditof December 31, 2014
summarized below. Since commitments associated leitbrs of credit and commitments to extend creuity expire unused, the amot
shown do not necessarily reflect our actual futagh funding requirements:

More than 1
3 years or
One yeat year but les: more but les:
5 years
or less than 3 years than 5 years or more Total
(dollars in thousands)
Commitments to extend cret $22,75¢ $ 18,62: $ 5,48¢ $21,40¢ $68,27(
Standby letters of crec 2,32( — — — 2,32(
Total $25,07¢ $ 18,62: $ 5,484 $21,40¢ $70,59(

Standby Letters of Credit —Standby letters of credit are written conditionaienitments we issue to guarantee the performanaebofrowe
to a third party. If the borrower does not perfamaccordance with the terms of the agreement thighthird party, we may be required to f
the commitment. The maximum potential amount ofifeitpayments we could be required to make is repted by the contractual amoun
the commitment. If the commitment is funded, we idobe entitled to seek recovery from the borrow@ur policies generally require tl
standby letter of credit arrangements contain $gcaind debt covenants similar to those containddan agreements.

Commitments to Extend Credit—We enter into contractual commitments to extenditraormally with fixed expiration dates or terratior
clauses, at specified rates and for specific pepoSubstantially all of our commitments to extemedit are contingent upon borrow
maintaining specific credit standards at the tirhkvan funding. We minimize our exposure to lossl@mthese commitments by subjecting t
to credit approval and monitoring procedures.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions and other commitments to make future paysresnhof December 31, 2014:

More than 1
3 years or
year but les: more but les: 5 years ol
One year
or less than 3 years than 5 years more Total
(dollars in thousands)
Time deposit: $416,48¢ $ 107,68 $ 50,50¢ $ 2 $574,68:
FHLB borrowing (1) 12,70¢ 1,16¢€ 451 1,42¢ 15,752
Subordinated capital no 90C 1,80(C 1,80( 45C 4,95(
Junior subordinated debentu — — — 25,00( 25,00(
Total $430,09' $ 110,65( $ 52,76( $26,87¢ $620,38:

(1) Fixed rate mortgageratched borrowings with rates ranging from 0% t@5%, and maturities ranging from 2015 through 2
averaging 1.02%

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related data presdwtezin have been prepared in accordance withdéierally accepted accounting princig
which require the measurement of financial positéord operating results in historical dollars with@ensidering changes in the rela
purchasing power of money over time due to inflatio

We have an asset and liability structure that geesally monetary in nature. As a result, interaseés have a more significant impact on
performance than the effects of general levelsiftdtion. Periods of high inflation are often acqmmied by relatively higher interest rates,
periods of low inflation are accompanied by relalyvlower interest rates. As market interest raiss or fall in relation to the rates earnec
our loans and investments, the value of thesesadseteases or increases respectively.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

To minimize the volatility of net interest incomadaexposure to economic loss that may result fioetdating interest rates, we manage
exposure to adverse changes in interest ratesghrasset and liability management activities witgiridelines established by our As
Liability Committee (“ALCO”). The ALCO, which is comprised of senior managemeptesentatives, has the responsibility for appigpwainc
ensuring compliance with asset/liability managenmaiicies. Interest rate risk is the exposure teeask changes in the net interest income
result of market fluctuations in interest ratese ThLCO, on an ongoing basis, monitors interest aaté liquidity risk in order to impleme
appropriate funding and balance sheet strategiasalyement considers interest rate risk to be ost gignificant market risk.

We utilize an earnings simulation model to analgeé interest income sensitivity. We then evaluaimptial changes in market interest r
and their subsequent effects on net interest incdiine model projects the effect of instantaneousaments in interest rates of both 100
200 basis points that are sustained for one yessuriptions based on the historical behavior ofdeyosit rates and balances in relatic
changes in interest rates are also incorporatedtire model. These assumptions are inherently taioeand, as a result, the model ca
precisely measure future net interest income aripety predict the impact of fluctuations in mark#erest rates on net interest income. Ac
results will differ from the moded’ simulated results due to timing, magnitude aeduency of interest rate changes as well as chan
market conditions and the application and timingarfious management strategies.

Our interest sensitivity profile was liability sétige at December 31, 2014 and asset sensitiveeae@ber 31, 2013. Given an instantan
100 basis point increase in interest rates our basiterest income would decrease by an estinta@4d at December 31, 2014 compared
an increase of 2.5% at December 31, 2013.

The following table indicates the estimated impartinet interest income under various interest saémarios for the year ended Decembe
2014, as calculated using the static shock modsagh:

Change in Future
Net Interest Income

Percentage
Dollar
Change Change
(dollars in thousand:
+ 200 basis point $(1,619) (5.86)%
+ 100 basis point (86¢) (3.1%)

We did not run a model simulation for decliningeirgst rates as of December 31, 2014, because tleedF&eserve federal funds target ri
currently stands between 0.00% to 0.25%. Therefarther shortterm rate reductions are not practical. As we iimget strategies to mitige
the risk of rising interest rates in the futureegb strategies will lessen our forecasted “base’ ceet interest income in the event of no inte
rate changes.

Our interest sensitivity at any point in time wbk affected by a number of factors. These factarside the mix of interest sensitive assets
liabilities as well as their relative pricing schiek. It is also influenced by market interest satteposit growth, loan growth, decay rates
prepayment speed assumptions.

The following table sets forth the amounts of mieiest-earning assets and intetesdring liabilities outstanding at December 31,£0thict
we anticipate, based upon certain assumptiongpiace or mature in each of the future time perisitewn. The projected repricing of as
and liabilities anticipates prepayments and schegtitdte adjustments, as well as contractual megsitiinder an interest rate unchanged sce
within the selected time intervals. While we be#iesuch assumptions are reasonable, we cannot aggutbat assumed repricing rates
approximate our actual future activity.
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Volume Subject to Repricing Within

Non-
0-90 91-181 182365 1-5 Over 5 Interest
Days Days Days Years Years Sensitive Total
(dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Federal funds sold and short-term
investments $ 66,01: $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 66,01
Investment securitie 30,63¢ 6,78¢ 16,66¢ 85,79t 85,71¢ 7,51¢ 233,11¢
FHLB stock 7,328 — — — 7,328
Loans held for sal 8,92¢ — — — — — 8,92¢
Loans, net of allowanc 226,68t 62,46¢ 94,29¢ 174,68t 66,86¢ (19,369 605,63!
Fixed and other asse — — — — — 96,97¢ 96,97¢
Total asset $339,58: $ 69,25( $110,96! $260,48: $152,58. $ 85,12¢ $1,017,98
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Interest-bearing checking, savings, and
money market accoun $237,25( $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 237,25
Certificates of depos 116,90¢ 101,88! 195,41: 159,57¢ 89¢ — 574,68:
Borrowed funds 43,47 182 36¢ 2,28¢ 73€ — 47,04
Other liabilities — — — — — 125,55( 125,55(
Stockholder' equity — — — — — 33,46¢ 33,46¢
Total liabilities and stockholders’
equity $397,63( $102,06° $ 195,78 $161,86: $ 1,63t $159,01! $1,017,98
Period gay $(58,049) $(32,81) $ (84,81%) $ 98,61¢ $150,94¢
Cumulative gay $(58,049  $(90,86¢)  $(175,68)  $(77,06) $ 73,88¢
Period gap to total asse (5.70% (3.22)% (8.39)% 9.65% 14.8%
Cumulative gap to total asse (5.70% (8.99% (17.26% (7.570)% 7.2€%
Cumulative interest-earning assets to
cumulative intere-bearing liabilities 85.4(% 81.82% 74.7% 91.01% 108.6(%

Our one-year cumulative gap position as of DecerlteP014 was negative $ 175.7 million or 17.3%otél assets. This is a oy positiol
that is continually changing and is not necessandicative of our position at any other time. Aggp analysis has inherent shortcom
because certain assets and liabilities may not momgortionally as interest rates change.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat
The following consolidated financial statements agybrts are included in this section:
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Fifargeporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,£012013
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss{Lfor the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 20132ah2
Consolidated Statements of Change in Stockholdeysity for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2848,2012
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PBIB

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

The management of Porter Bancorp, Inc. is resptin$dy establishing and maintaining adequate irglenontrol over financial reportin
Internal control over financial reporting is defthén Rule 13at5(1) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeoAd934 as a proce
designed by, or under the supervision of; our mpimicexecutive and principal financial officers aeffected by the board of directc
management and other personnel, to provide reaaaburance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordance With generally accepted accounting principles iaotides those policies and proced
that:

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in re#se detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@ctions and dispositions of our assets;

Provide reasonable assurance that transaction®e@weded as necessary to permit preparation ofdiahstatements in accordance with |
generally accepted accounting principles, and ¢batreceipts and expenditures are being made anc¢ordance with authorizations of
management and directors; and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsedisposition of our assets that cc
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or détenisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our ateomtrol over financial reporting as of DecemBg&y 2014. In making this assessm
management used the criteria set forth by the Caomendf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwayn@sion (“COSO”)in the 199;
Internal Controlintegrated Framework. Based on that assessmerielieve that, as of December 31, 2014, our intecnatrol over financi:
reporting is not effective based on those crité8ee “Item 9A. Controls and Procedurés” further discussion of the material weaknesatez
to controls over the initial recording of an otheal estate owned transaction at fair value lesstoosell. This annual report does not includ
attestation report of our registered public accimgnfirm regarding internal controls over financi@porting. Managemerst'report was n
subject to attestation by our registered publicoaating firm pursuant to rules of the Securitiesl &xchange Commission that permit u
provide only management’s report in this annuabrep

/s/ John T. Taylor /s/ Phillip W. Barnhouse
John T. Taylor Phillip W. Barnhouse
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office

March 30, 2015
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Crowe Horwath LLP

C['OWE Horwath Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Porter Bancorp, Inc.
Louisville, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Porter Bancorp, Inc. as of Decemhe2@14 and 2013, and the rele
consolidated statements of operations, comprehemsoome (loss), changes in stockholdexglity, and cash flows for each of the three y
in the period ended December 31, 2014. These ddasad financial statements are the responsibdftthe Companys management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thegesobidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to havewere we engaged to perform, an audit of iterimal control over financial reportir
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigrénglit procedures that are appropriate it
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsaiyternal control over financial reportii
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aud@udes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgpahe amounts and disclosures in
financial statements. An audit also includes assggbe accounting principles used and signifiegsttmates made by management, as w
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@maWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaarferred to above present fairly, in all materé&spects, the financial position of Po
Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 tladesults of its operations and its cash floarsefach of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.Segally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemlean® been prepared assuming the Company will asm@és a going concern. As discu
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statemettts, Company has incurred substantial losses id,22013 and 2012, largely as a resu
asset impairments resulting from theengaluation of fair value and ongoing operating eges related to the high volume of other real €
owned and non-performing loans. In addition, thenBany’s bank subsidiary is not in compliance with a ratpry enforcement order isst
by its primary federal regulator requiring, amonbew things, increased minimum regulatory capidibs as well as being involved in vari
legal proceedings in which the Company disputesristfactual allegations against the Company. fiddal losses, adverse outcomes f
legal proceedings or the continued inability to pbmwith the regulatory enforcement order may resubdditional adverse regulatory acti
These events raise substantial doubt about the @wyigability to continue as a going concern. Maragnts plans with regard to the
matters are also discussed in Note 2 to the cafaeli financial statements. The consolidated fighratatements do not include
adjustments that might result from the outcomehis tincertainty.

Crowe Horwath, LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
March 30, 2015
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PORTER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
(Dollar amounts in thousands except share data)

Assets
Cash and due from ban
Interest bearing deposits in bar
Cash and cash equivalel
Securities available for sa
Securities held to maturity (fair value of $44,4981 $42,947, respectivel
Loans held for sal
Loans, net of allowance of $19,364 and $28,12feaetively
Premises and equipme
Other real estate ownt
Federal Home Loan Bank sto
Bank owned life insuranc
Accrued interest receivable and other as

Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Deposits

Nonr-interest bearin

Interest bearini

Total deposit:

Repurchase agreeme;
Federal Home Loan Bank advan
Accrued interest payable and other liabilit
Subordinated capital no
Junior subordinated debentu

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note :
Stockholder equity

Preferred stock, no p

Series A - 0 and 35,000 issued and outstandingiidlagion preference of $0 and $35 million,

respectively
Series B- 40,536 and 0 issued and outstanding, respect

Series C - 0 and 317,042 issued and outstandiggjdation preference of $0 and $3.6 million,

respectively
Series C- 64,580 and 0 issued and outstanding, respecit

Series E - 6,198 and 0 issued and outstandingjdadjon preference of $6.2 million and $0,

respectively

Series F - 4,304 and 0 issued and outstandingjdagjon preference of $4.3 million and $0,

respectively
Total preferred stockholde equity

Common stock, no par, 86,000,000 shares authorize890,514 and 12,840,999 shares issued and

outstanding, respective
Additional paic¢in capital
Retained defici
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I

Total common stockholde' equity (deficit)
Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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2014 2013
$ 14,16¢ $ 7,46
66,01 103,66
80,18 111,13
190,79: 163,34
42,32t 43,61
8,92¢ 14¢
605,63 681,20
19,50; 19,98
46,19° 30,89:
7,32: 10,07:
9,167 8,911
7,93¢ 6,82:
$1,017,98  $1,076,12
$ 114,91 $ 107,48
811,93: 880,21
926,84 987,70
1,341 2,47
15,75: 4,49;
10,64( 14,67
4,95( 5,85(
25,00( 25,00
984,52  1,040,19
— 35,00
2,22¢ —
— 3,28:
3,55z —
1,64 —
1,127 —
8,55: 38,28
113,23 112,23
21,44 20,88
(107,59) (130,18}
(2,179 (5,299
24 91 (2,357)
33,46t 35,93
$1,017,98  $1,076,12
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PORTER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31,
(Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data)

Interest incom:
Loans, including fee
Taxable securitie
Tax exempt securitie
Federal funds sold and otf

Interest expens
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank advani
Junior subordinated debentu
Subordinated capital no
Federal funds purchased and ot

Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Non-interest incom
Service charges on deposit accol
Bank card interchange fe
Income from bank owned life insuran
Other real estate owned rental incc
Net gain on sales of securiti
Income from fiduciary activitie
Other

Nonr-interest expens
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy and equipme
Loan collection expens
Other real estate owned expel
FDIC insuranc
State franchise and deposit !
Professional fee
Communication:
Insurance expens
Postage and delivel
Data processing expen
Advertising
Other

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense (bene!

Net loss

Less:
Dividends and accretion on preferred st
Effect of exchange of preferred stock for commartk
Earnings (loss) allocated to participating seces

Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehsl|
Basic and diluted income (loss) per common s

See accompanying notes.
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2014 2013 2012
$33,09C $38,01f $52,91¢
4,94¢ 3,70¢ 3,387
93¢ 93z 887
542 574 591
39,510  43,22¢ 57,72¢
8,867 10,13 14,62:
124 157 207
612 622 671
18¢ 221 26€
3 6 7
9,798 11,14 15,77+
20,71¢ 32,08 41,95
7,10( 70C 40,25(
22,61¢ 31,38 1,70¢
1,98¢ 2,05¢ 2,23¢
76¢ 71¢ 727
27€ 534 312
25€ 39¢ 42C
92 727 3,23¢
— 517 1,171
702 97¢ 1,47¢
4,07¢ 5,91¢ 9,59(
15,65¢  15,50: 16,64¢
3,497 3,58¢ 3,647
2,99¢ 4,707 2,44;
5,83¢ 4,51¢ 10,54¢
2,27: 2,37¢ 2,83t
1,44¢ 1,94¢ 2,17¢
2,771 1,897 1,98¢
752 711 71C
57¢ 64€ 372
407 42° 454
1,10¢ 184 96
562 30¢ 154
1,55¢ 2,09t 2,23(
39,43¢  38,89( 44.29;
(12,739 (1,58  (32,99)
(1,589 — (65)
(11,155 (1,580  (32,93)
2,362 2,07¢ 1,92¢

(36,102 — —
3,15¢ (267 (1,429
$19,42¢ $(3,399 $(33,43)
$ 15¢ $ (029 $ (2.89
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PORTER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

2014 2013 2012
Net loss $(11,155 $(1,58€) $(32,937)
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gain (loss) on securitis
Unrealized gain (loss) arising during the per 4,61 (9,08 (4,335
Reclassification of amount realized through s 92 723 3,23¢
Net unrealized gain/(loss) recognized in compreiveriacome 4,70¢ (8,35 (1,099
Tax effect (1,587%) — —
Other comprehensive income (lo 3,121  (8,35%) (1,099
Comprehensive los $ (8,034 9$(9,944) $(34,03)

See accompanying notes.

64



Table of Contents

Shares

PORTER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'
Years Ended December 31,

(Dollar amounts in thousands except share andhaee slata)

EQUITY

Amount

Common

Preferred

Series
A

Series
B

Series
C

Series
D

Series Series

E F

Preferred

Common

Series

Common Series A

B

Series Series

C

D

Series
E

Series
F

Additional

Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Deficit

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive

Income(Loss)

Total

Balances,
December {
2011

Issuance o
unvested
stock

Forfeited
unvested
stock

Stocl-basec
compensatic
expense

Net loss

Net change it
accumulated
other
comprehensiv
income, net
of taxes

Dividends or
Series A
preferred
stock

Accretion of
Series A
preferred
stock
discount

11,824,47

191,14(

(13,19)

35,00(

317,04:

$112,23t $ 34,66 $

$3,28: $

$

19,84

44z

$ (91,656 $

(32,93)

(1,750)

(179

(1,099

4,16¢ $ 82,52¢

44z
(32,93)

(1,099

(1,750

Balances,
December !
2012

Issuance o
unvested
stock

Forfeited
unvested
stock

Stocl-basec
compensatic
expense

Net loss

Net change it
accumulated
other
comprehensiv
income, net
of taxes

Dividends or
Series A
preferred
stock

Accretion of
Series A
preferred
stock

discount

12,002,42

875,56¢

(36,99)

35,00(

317,04

$112,23¢ $ 34,84( $

— 16C

$328: $

$

20,28:

604

$(126,51) $

(1,919

(160)

(8,359

3,068 $ 47,19(

604
(1,586)

(8,359

(1,919

Balances,
December {
2013

Issuance o
unvested
stock

Forfeited
unvested
stock

Stocl-basec
compensatia
expense

Net loss

Net change it
accumulated
other
comprehensiv
income, net
of taxes

Effect of
exchange o
preferred

12,840,99

288,88t

(60,807

35,00(

317,04:

$112,23¢ $ 35,000 $

$3,28: $

$

20,887 $(130,18) $

55¢

(11,159

3,121

(5,299 $ 35,93

55E
(11,155

3,121



stock

for common

stock 1,821,421 (35,000 40,53¢ (317,04} 64,58( 6,19¢ 4,30: 1,00z (35,000 2,22¢ (3,287 3,55: 1,64¢ 1,127 — 36,10 — 7,37
Dividends or

Series A

preferred

stock — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — (2,367) — (2,367)
Balances,

December {

2014 14,890,51 —  40,53¢ — 64,58( 6,19¢ 4,30¢ $11323t$ — $222¢ $ — $3,55. $1,64« $1,127 $ 21,44. $(107,59) $ (2,172) $ 33,46¢

See accompanying notes.
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PORTER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash foperating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for loan losse
Net amortization on securitit
Stocl-based compensation expel
Tax benefit from OCI componer
Net gain on sales of loans originated for ¢
Loans originated for sa
Proceeds from sales of loans originated for
Net (gain) loss on sales of other real estate ov
Net write-down of other real estate own
Net realized gain on sales of investment secul
Earnings on bank owned life insurance, net of pupamexpens:
Net change in accrued interest receivable and @it
Net change in accrued interest payable and othigitities

Net cash from operating activiti

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of available for sale securi
Sales of available for sale securit
Maturities and prepayments of available for satigtes
Calls of held to maturity securiti¢
Proceeds from mandatory redemption of Federal Hooa@ Bank stocl
Proceeds from sale of other real estate ov
Improvements to other real estate ow
Loan originations and payments, |
Purchases of premises and equipment
Net cash from investing activitit
Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposi
Net change in repurchase agreem
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank adva
Advances from Federal Home Loan Be
Repayment of subordinated capital n

Net cash from financing activitie

Net change in cash and cash equival
Beginning cash and cash equivale

Ending cash and cash equivale

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Interest paic
Income taxes paid (refunde
Supplemental nc-cash disclosure
Transfer from loans to other real est
Financed sales of other real estate ow
Transfer from available for sale to held to majusiecurities
AOCI component of transfer from available for s@ldeld to maturity
Transfer of loans to loans held for sale at falug:
Effect of accrued and unpaid dividends on prefestedk redemptio

See accompanying notes.
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2014 2013 2012
$(11,155) $ (1,586 $ (32,937
1,73¢ 2,017 2,28¢
7,10( 70C 40,25(
1,61¢ 2,13¢ 3,33t
55¢ 604 447
(1,582 — —
(53) (87) (33¢)
(2,525) (4,035 (16,365
2,73( 4,46¢ 16,82
(30€) 132 1,67:
4,25¢ 2,46¢€ 7,15¢
(92) (729) (3,236)
(25€) (519 (292)
(1,574) 1,36¢ 16,15(
98¢ 2,58¢ 791
1,42t 9,52¢ 35,74¢
(45,80) (72,819 (162,840
6,251 8,061 93,19¢
15,57: 26,50¢ 48,80(
1,00( — —
2,74¢ — —
13,08¢ 30,77: 21,94(
— — (2)
26,92: 139,54 167,27:
(529) (281) (511)
19,25 131,79 167,85
(60,869  (77,35) (258,709
(1,129 (164) 89¢€
(23,76%) (1,117) (1,517)
35,02t — —
(900) (1,125) (675)
(51,63)  (79,75)  (259,99)
(30,95)  61,56: (56,390)
111,13 49 57. 105,96:
$80,18( $111,13: $ 4957:
$ 947¢ $1071: $ 15,40:
— — (12,726
$ 32,33t $2060¢ $ 33,52
— 15 541
— 44,93 —
— (1,28)) —
8,92¢ — —
7,37t — —
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PORTER BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidatia — The consolidated financial statements include P&#amcorp, Inc. (Company) and
subsidiary, PBI Bank (Bank). The Company owns &4 @@terest in the Bank.

The Company provides financial services througloffices in Central Kentucky and Louisville. Itsimary deposit products are check
savings, and term certificate accounts, and itsi@ny lending products are residential mortgage,engial, agricultural, and real estate lo
Substantially all loans are collateralized by sfieétems of collateral including business assetsnmercial real estate, and residential
estate. Commercial loans are expected to be rdpaiu cash flow from operations of businesses. Tlageno significant concentrations
loans to any one industry or customer. Howeverioensrs' ability to repay their loans is dependent on tha estate and general econo
conditions in the area. Other financial instrumentsch potentially represent concentrations of itreidk include deposit accounts in ot
financial institutions and federal funds sold.

Use of Estimates— To prepare financial statements in conformity wittS. generally accepted accounting principles, rgament make
estimates and assumptions based on available iafmmm These estimates and assumptions affect niuts reported in the financ
statements and the disclosures provided, and fudsidts could differ.

Cash and Cash Equivalents- For the purpose of presentation in the statemdrtash flows, the Company considers all cash anouaits du
from depository institutions as well as interestifrey deposits in banks that mature within one yead are carried at cost to be ¢
equivalents. The Bank is required to maintain ayeraserve balances with the Federal Reserve Badik bouis.

Interest Bearing Deposits in Banks- Interest bearing deposits in banks mature withie y@ar and are carried at cost. At December 314,
approximately $9.8 million of interest bearing dsip®in banks were pledged to a secure letteraafitissued by a third party for the benefi
the Bank.

Securities— Debt securities are classified as held to matuanitgt carried at amortized cost when managementlegsasitive intent and abili
to hold them to maturity. Debt securities are dfees as available for sale when they might be dmddore maturity. Equity securities w
readily determined fair values are classified aailalle for sale. Securities available for sale aagied at fair value, with unrealized hold
gains and losses reported in other comprehensieenia.

Interest income includes amortization of purchasenium or discount. Premiums and discounts on gesiare amortized on the lewdkld
method anticipating prepayments on mortgage baskedrities. Gains and losses on sales are recordéte trade date and determined u
the specific identification method.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-deanp impairment (“OTTI")on at least a quarterly basis, and more frequentier
economic or market conditions warrant such an exaln. For securities in an unrealized loss pasjttmanagement considers the extent
duration of the unrealized loss, and the financ@adition and neaterm prospects of the issuer. Management also ses@dether it intends
sell, or it is more likely than not that it will equired to sell, a security in an unrealized lpgsition before recovery of its amortized «
basis. If either of the criteria regarding intemtrequirement to sell is met, the entire differefie#ween amortized cost and fair valu
recognized as impairment through earnings. For debdrities that do not meet the aforementionadrai the amount of impairment is s
into two components as follows: 1) OTTI relatecttedit loss, which must be recognized in the inceta¢ement and 2) OTTI related to o
factors, which is recognized in other comprehengieeme. The credit loss is defined as the diffeechetween the present value of the
flows expected to be collected and the amortizest basis. For equity securities, the entire amafnimpairment is recognized throt
earnings.

Loans Held for Sale— Loans held for sale include residential mortgagsooriginated for sale into the secondary mankdtlaans transferr
from held for investment. Held for investment lodhat have been transferred to held for sale amgedaat lower of cost or fair value. T
credit component or any write down upon transfdneta for sale is reflected in charge-offs to theveance for loan losses.

Residential mortgage loans originated and interfdedale in the secondary market are carried atawer of aggregate cost or fair value
determined by outstanding commitments from investblet unrealized losses, if any, are recorded ealumtion allowance and chargec
earnings.

Mortgage loans held for sale are generally soldh wérvicing rights released. If sold with servicirgained, the carrying value of mortg
loans sold is reduced by the amount allocated @ostrvicing right. Gains and losses on sales otgage loans are based on the diffen
between the selling price and the carrying valuthefrelated loan sold.
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Mortgage banking derivatives used in the ordinaoyrse of business consist of mandatory forwardssatmntracts and rate lock lIc
commitments. Forward contracts represent futurensitiments to deliver loans at a specified price datk and are used to manage interes
risk on loan commitments and mortgage loans heldséte. Rate lock commitments represent commitmienfsnd loans at a specific re
These derivatives involve underlying items, suclngerest rates, and are designed to transfer Siskstantially all of these instruments ex
within 60 days from the date of issuance. Notioa@lounts are amounts on which calculations and patgreee based, but which do
represent credit exposure, as credit exposurmitelil to the amounts required to be received at.pai

We adopted FASB ASC topic 81%)erivative and Hedging”during the first quarter of 2009. Our commitmemtsieliver loans and our r:
lock loan commitments were insignificant at yead.en

Loans — Loans that management has the intent and abilityold for the foreseeable future or until maturity payoff are reported at 1
principal balance outstanding, net of deferred l&ees and costs, and an allowance for loan losstsest income is accrued on the un
principal balance. Loan origination fees, net aftaie direct origination costs, are deferred antbgmized in interest income using the leve
yield method without anticipating prepayments. Taeorded investment in loans includes the outstangrincipal balance and unamorti
deferred origination costs and fees.

Interest income on mortgage and commercial loads@ontinued at the time the loan is 90 days dekmt unless the loan is well collaterali
and in process of collection. Consumer and creatit toans are typically charged off no later th@rd@ys past due. Past due status is bas
the contractual terms of the loan. In all casesnsoare placed on nonaccrual or charged off aadieedate if collection of principal or inter
is not expected.

All interest accrued but not received for loanscpth on nonaccrual is reversed against interestriecdnterest received on such loar
accounted for on the cash-basis or ecesbvery method, until qualifying for return to acal. Loans are returned to accrual status whethe
principal and interest amounts contractually dwetapught current and future payments are reaspiaaklred.

Allowance for Loan Losses— The allowance for loan losses is a valuation alleveafor probable incurred credit losses. Loan losag
charged against the allowance when managemenvesltbe uncollectability of a loan balance is conéd. Subsequent recoveries, if any
credited to the allowance. We estimate the allowaraance required using past loan loss experigheejature and volume of the portfa
information about specific borrower situations asstimated collateral values, economic conditiomg] ather factors. Allocations of t
allowance may be made for specific loans, but titi#eeallowance is available for any loan thatpur judgment, should be charged off.

The allowance consists of specific and general @orapts. The specific component relates to loansateaindividually classified as impair:
A loan is impaired when, based on current infororataind events, it is probable that the Company lvéllunable to collect all amounts |
according to the contractual terms of the loan ement. Loans for which the terms have been modifiedlting in a concession, and for wt
the borrower is experiencing financial difficultjese considered troubled debt restructurings ¢amsbified as impaired.

Factors considered in determining impairment inelpdyment status, collateral value, and the prdibabf collecting scheduled principal a
interest payments when due. Loans that experigrgignificant payment delays and payment shortfgiserally are not classified as impai
We determine the significance of payment delayspayanent shortfalls on case-bgse basis, taking into consideration all of thewrnstance
surrounding the loan and the borrower, including léngth of the delay, the reasons for the delesy borrowers prior payment record, and
amount of the shortfall in relation to the prindipad interest owed.

If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowanseallocated so that the loan is reported, neti@ptesent value of estimated future cash 1
using the loars existing rate or at the fair value of collatéfaepayment is expected solely from the collaterakrge groups of smaller balai
homogeneous loans, such as consumer and residerdiadstate loans, are collectively evaluatedrfgrairment, and accordingly, they are
separately identified for impairment disclosuresoubled debt restructurings are separately idestifior impairment disclosures and
measured at the present value of estimated futash flows using the loas’effective rate at inception. If a troubled dedstructuring i
considered to be a collateral dependent loan, dhe Is reported at the fair value of the collateFdr troubled debt restructurings 1
subsequently default, we determine the amounts#rie in accordance with the accounting policytfierallowance for loan losses.
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The general component covers non-impaiehs and is based on historical loss experienfiestad for current factors. The historical |
experience is determined by portfolio segment andbdsed on our actual loss history experienced theemmost recent three years v
weighting towards the most recent periods. Thisadbss experience is supplemented with other @oan factors based on the risks pre
for each portfolio segment. These economic factoctude consideration of the following: changeslémding policies, procedures, ¢
practices; effects of any change in risk selectma underwriting standards; national and local eotn trends and conditions; indus
conditions; trends in volume and terms of loangegience, ability and depth of lending management ather relevant staff; levels of ¢
trends in delinquencies and impaired loans; leselnd trends in charge-offs and recoveries; afetef of changes in credit concentrations.

A portfolio segment is defined as the level at wahém entity develops and documents a systematibadelogy to determine its allowance
loan losses. We identified the following portfoBegments: commercial, commercial real estate, eaal real estate, consumer, agricultt
and other.

» Commercial loans depend on the strength of thesimigis of the related borrowers and the succe$iseaf businesses. Commert
loans are advances for equipment purchases, optide working capital, or to meet other financimgeds of business enterpri:
These loans may be secured by accounts receivabémtory, equipment or other business assetsnEiabinformation is obtaine
from the borrowers to evaluate their ability toagphe loans

» Commercial real estate loans are affected by tb& lbcommercial real estate market and the locai@my. Commercial real est
loans include loans on properties occupied by theolwers and on properties for commercial purpoggsnstruction ar
development loans are a component of this segrméesse loans are generally secured by land undeslafament or homes a
commercial buildings under construction. Appraisaks obtained to support the loan amount. Finamtiafmation is obtained fro
the borrowers and/or the individual project to et cash flows sufficiency to service the d

» Residential real estate loans are affected bydbal residential real estate market, local econaany, for variable rate mortgac
movement in indices tied to these loans. For ovacenpied residential loans, the borroweepayment ability is evaluated throt
a review of credit scores and debt to income raft@s nonewner occupied residential loans, such as rentdlastate, financi
information is obtained from the borrowers andfoe individual project to evaluate cash flows suéincy to service the de
Appraisals are obtained to support the loan am«

e Consumer loans depend on local economies. Consloanes are generally secured by consumer assetsydube unsecured. \
evaluate the borrowe’ repayment ability through a review of credit scaiad an evaluation of debt to income rat

e Agriculture loans depend on the industries tiedhtesse loans and are generally secured by livestwoks, and/or equipment, |
may be unsecured. We evaluate the borrowesayment ability through a review of credit scoegsl an evaluation of debt
income ratios

e Other loans include loans to municipalitiesre secured by stock, and overdrafts. For munidigels, we evaluate the borrowers
revenue streams as well as ability to repay formega funds. For loans secured by stock, we evalilet market value of the st
securing the loan in relation to the loan amouner@rafts are funded based on pstablished criteria related to the deposit acc
relationship.

We analyze key relevant risk characteristics fahgaortfolio segment and have determined that ldarsch segment possess similar ge
risk characteristics that are analyzed in connaatiith our loan underwriting processes and prooeslun determining the allocated allowal
we utilize weighted average loss rates for the plagte years most heavily weighting the currentry&€mmercial real estate qualita
adjustment considerations include due to trendsimmarkets for underlying collateral values arsitsirelated to tenant rents and for econ
factors such as decreased sales demand, elevatutary levels, and declining collateral valuessiBential real estate loan considerat
include macro factors such as unemployment rategds$ in vacancy rates, and home value trends.cohamercial portfolio qualitatiy
adjustments are related to industry concentratéomsgeographical market. Our agricultural, consyraed other portfolios are less signific
in terms of size and risk is assessed based osntiadler dollar size of these loans and the moreyigghical areas where the collater:
located.

Transfers of Financial Assets— Transfers of financial assets are accounted fagadess, when control over the assets has been wéhrep
Control over transferred assets is deemed to lrersigred when the assets have been isolated frer@ampany, the transferee obtains
right (free of conditions that constrain it fronkitag advantage of that right) to pledge or exchahgetransferred assets, and the Company
not maintain effective control over the transferasdets through an agreement to repurchase theme bikéir maturity.

Other Real Estate Owned- Assets acquired through or instead of loan forecsre initially recorded at fair value less esti@d costs to st
when acquired, establishing a new cost basis. Tagsets are subsequently accounted for at the lofaest or fair value, less estimated ¢
to sell. If fair value declines subsequent to ftosare, a valuation allowance is recorded througiease. Costs after acquisition are expensec
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Premises and Equipment— Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipmenstated at cost less accumulated depreciationdiBgs an
related components are depreciated using the stdig method with useful lives ranging from 5 toa&ars. Furniture, fixtures and equiprn
are depreciated using the straight-line or acceddrmethod with useful lives ranging from 3 to Ansse

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Stock— The Bank is a member of the FHLB system. Membegsrequired to own a certain amoun
stock based on the level of borrowings and othetofa, and may invest in additional amounts. FHit&k is carried at cost, classified ¢
restricted security, and periodically evaluated ifopairment. Because this stock is viewed as l@mgtinvestment, impairment is basec
ultimate recovery of par value. Both cash and sttigidends are reported as income.

Intangible Assets— Intangible assets with definite useful lives areodtimed over their estimated useful lives to thestimated residual valu
Other intangible assets consist of core deposingible assets arising from whole bank and braeduaisitions. They are initially measurec
fair value and then are amortized on an accelemtstraight-line basis over their estimated usk#els, which range from 7 to 10 years.

Bank Owned Life Insurance— The Bank has purchased life insurance policiesestainn key executives. Company owned life insuras
recorded at the amount that can be realized uhdeinsurance contract at the balance sheet dateh vehthe cash surrender value adjuste
other charges or other amounts due that are prellisettiement.

Long-Term Assets— Premises and equipment, other intangible asants,other longerm assets are reviewed for impairment when e
indicate their carrying amount may not be recovierédom future undiscounted cash flows. If impaijrdte assets are recorded at fair value.

Repurchase Agreements- Substantially all repurchase agreement liabilitegresent amounts advanced by various custometarities an
pledged to cover these liabilities, which are rmtered by federal deposit insurance.

Benefit Plans — Employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expenséhés amount of matching contributions. Deferred cengation an
supplemental retirement plan expense allocatebehefits over years of service.

Stock-Based Compensatior Compensation cost is recognized for unvested sto@ds issued to employees, based on the fair wdlthes
awards at the date of grant. The market price ef Glorporatiors common stock at the date of grant is used fdricesd stock award
Compensation cost is recognized over the requieedice period, generally defined as the vestingoperFor awards with graded vesti
compensation cost is recognized on a straightdasés over the requisite service period for there@mtwvard.

Income Taxes— Income tax expense is the total of the current yeamme tax due or refundable and the change iardaf tax assets a
liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities #ne expected future tax amounts for the tempat#igrences between carrying amounts an
bases of assets and liabilities, computed usingtedaax rates. A valuation allowance, if neededuces deferred tax assets to the an
expected to be realized.

A tax position is recognized as a benefit onlyt ii“more likely than not'that the tax position would be sustained in a tean@nation, with
tax examination being presumed to occur. The ammatgnized is the largest amount of tax benefit th greater than 50% likely of be
realized on examination. For tax positions not mmgethe “more likely than nottest, no tax benefit is recorded. The Company neizet
interest and/or penalties related to income taxamatn income tax expense.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments— Financial instruments include dffilance sheet credit instruments, suc
commitments to make loans and commercial lettersredlit, issued to meet custonfarancing needs. The face amount for these i
represents the exposure to loss, before considetsipmer collateral or ability to repay. Such figi@l instruments are recorded when the)
funded.

Comprehensive Loss- Comprehensive loss consists of net income (losd)adher comprehensive loss. Other comprehensie ifasude
unrealized gains and losses on securities avaifabkale, which are also recognized as a sepeoat@onent of equity.

Preferred Stock —In December 2014, we completed a re@sh equity exchange transaction with the accrditeestors who acquired all
our issued and outstanding Series A Preferred Shieom UST in a public auction. We acquired andcedlad all of the issued and outstanc
Series A Preferred Shares, the accrued divideratedh, all of the issued and outstanding Seriese@®Ped Shares, and warrants to purc
798,915 shares of common stock together havingygregate book value of approximately $45.7 millionexchange, we issued common
preferred shares having a fair value of approxitgai®.6 million. The effect of this exchange tractian was to increase common stockholder:
equity by approximately $36.1 million, and totadadtholders’ equity by $7.4 million.
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In the exchange transaction, we issued 1,821,428 shares, 40,536 mandatorily convertible SeBieBreferred Shares and 64,
mandatorily convertible Series D Preferred Shandsch automatically converted into 4,053,600 comnsbiares and 6,458,000 neating
common shares after shareholder approval on Fgb25ar2015. We also issued 6,198 Series E Pref&hedes and 4,304 Series F Prefe
Shares, both of which series are not convertitiie @mmon shares, have a liquidation preferenc&l @00 per share, and are entitled to ¢
noncumulative annual dividend if and when declafeties E and Series F Preferred Shares rank geniand have liquidation and divide
preferences over, our common shares and non-votingnon shares.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share- Basic earnings (loss) per common share are nemadgoss) attributable to common sharehol
divided by the weighted average number of commameshoutstanding during the period. Diluted eammifhgss) per common share include
dilutive effect, if any, of additional potential memon shares issuable under stock options and warfaarnings (loss) and dividends per s
are restated for all stock splits and dividendsulgh the date of issue of the financial statements.

Earnings (Loss) Allocated to Participating Securites —Our issued and outstanding Series C Preferred Staskautomatically convertik
into common stock at such time as the holder tagettith its affiliates beneficially owned less th@r®% of the then outstanding comr
shares of the company. Our Series B and Seriesalabarily convertible preferred stock convertedéommon and nonvoting common shi
after shareholder approval on February 25, 2015.aWe have issued and outstanding unvested comimamessto employees and direc
through our stock incentive plan. Earnings (los® alocated to these participating securities thas® their percentage of total issued
outstanding shares.

Loss Contingencies- Loss contingencies, including claims and legalaadiarising in the ordinary course of businessrererded as liabilitie
when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amau range of loss can be reasonably estimated K®te 24 for more specific disclosure.)

Dividend Restriction — Banking regulations require maintaining certainisdgevels and may limit the dividends paid by tBank to th
Company or by the Company to shareholders. (See Nofor more specific disclosure.)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — Fair values of financial instruments are estimatisthg relevant market information and o
assumptions. Fair value estimates involve uncditgimnd matters of significant judgment regardirigrest rates, credit risk, prepayments,
other factors, especially in the absence of broadkets for particular items. Changes in assumptioris market conditions could significar
affect the estimates. (See Note 19 for more spedi§iclosure.)

Reclassifications— Some items in the prior year financial statemergseweclassified to conform to the current presemtaReclassificatior
had no effect on prior year net loss or stockhaldequity.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards— In January 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standalpidate 2014-04, ReceivablesT+oublec
Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subtopic 31): Reclassification of Residential Real Estatdaeralized Consumer Mortgage Loans u
Foreclosure. The amendments in this ASU clarifyt #rain substance repossession or foreclosure §cand a creditor is considered to t
received physical possession of residential re@lt@property collateralizing a consumer mortgagan] upon either (1) the creditor obtair
legal title to the residential real estate propegtgn completion of a foreclosure or (2) the bomowonveying all interest in the residential
estate property to the creditor to satisfy thanltlarough completion of a deed in lieu of foreclesor through a similar legal agreem
Additionally, the amendments require interim anduwal disclosure of both (1) the amount of foreatbeesidential real estate property hel
the creditor and (2) the recorded investment inrsaarer mortgage loans collateralized by residentiall estate property that are in the pro
of foreclosure according to local requirements feé tpplicable jurisdiction. The amendments in th&U are effective for the Compas
beginning January 1, 2015 and are not expectedve & material impact on the Company'’s financateshents.

In May 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standards Up@ft1409, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topig)60he ASU creates
new topic, Topic 606, to provide guidance on rewenecognition for entities that enter into contsaaiith customers to transfer good:
services or enter into contracts for the transfenanfinancial assets. The core principle of thédgoce is that an entity should recog
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goodseorices to customers in an amount that refléetsonsideration to which the entity exp
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or sesviAdditional disclosures are required to prowidentitative and qualitative informati
regarding the nature, amount, timing, and uncdstaofi revenue and cash flows arising from contradth customers. The new guidanc
effective for annual reporting periods, and interieporting periods within those annual periods,it@gg after December 15, 2016. E:
adoption is not permitted. Management is curreethaluating the impact of the adoption of this guoia on the Company’ financia
statements.
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In August 2014, the FASB amended existing guidaetaed to the disclosures about an ergigbility to continue as a going concern. TI
amendments are intended to define management'smsibflity to evaluate whether there is substard@mibt about an organizatienability tc
continue as a going concern and to provide relaethote disclosures. These amendments provideago@to an organizatiosmmanagemer
with principles and definitions that are intendedréduce diversity in the timing and content ofctisures that are commonly provided
organizations in the financial statement footnotdgee amendments are effective for annual periodsngrafter December 15, 2016, and inte
periods within annual periods beginning after Delseri5, 2016. Early application is permitted fonaal or interim reporting periods -
which the financial statements have not previobslgn issued. The effect of adopting this standartt expected to have a material effec
the Company'’s operating results or financial caodit

NOTE 2 — GOING CONCERN CONSIDERATIONS AND FUTURE PLANS

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped on a going concern basis, which contempldtesrealization of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course lfsiness for the foreseeable future. However etrents and circumstances described ir
Note create substantial doubt about the Con’s ability to continue as a going concern.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we reponted lass of $11.2 million. This loss was attriléaprimarily to loan loss provision of $
million, OREO expense of $5.8 million resulting fmofair value writedowns driven by new appraisals and reduced markediices, an
ongoing operating expense, along with $3.0 milliodoan collection expenses. We also had lowerimterest margin due to lower aver.
loans outstanding, loans re-pricing at lower ratas] the level of noperforming loans in our portfolio. After deductiofe dividends an
accretion on preferred stock of $2.4 million, a#lting losses to participating securities of $3.2liom, and the effect of the exchange
preferred stock for common stock of $36.1 millieret income attributable to common shareholders $#2s4 million for the year end
December 31, 2014, compared with a net loss at#iithel to common shareholders of $3.4 million f@ ylear ended December 31, 2013.

At December 31, 2014, we continued to be involvedarious legal proceedings in which we disputenttagerial factual allegations against
After conferring with our legal advisors, we bekewe have meritorious grounds on which to previile do not prevail, the ultimate outco
of any one of these matters could have a matatiadrae effect on our financial condition, result®perations, or cash flows. These matter:
more fully described in Note 24 — “Contingencies”.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we reportegtaloss to common shareholders of $3.4 milliohisTloss coupled with tl
comprehensive loss for the year reduced sharetsolelguity to $35.9 million, from $47.2 million atettend of 2012. This reduction v
attributable primarily to OREO expense of $4.5 imillresulting from fair value writdowns driven by new appraisals and reduced mag
prices, net loss on sales, and ongoing operatipgrese, along with $4.7 million in loan collectioxpenses. The reduction was also attribut
to a reduction in the fair value of securities 8t4million, net, as well as the accrual of dividerand accretion to preferred shareholde
$2.1 million. We also had lower net interest mardyire to lower average loans outstanding, loansiogag at lower rates, and the level of non
performing loans in our portfolio. Net loss to commmshareholders of $3.4 million, for the year enBedtember 31, 2013, compares with
loss to common shareholders of $33.4 million faaryended December 31, 2012.

In June 2011, the Bank agreed to a Consent Ordartine FDIC and KDFI in which the Bank agreed, amaother things, to improve as
quality, reduce loan concentrations, and maintami@imum Tier 1 leverage ratio of 9% and a minimtwmtal risk based capital ratio
12%. The Consent Order was included in our CurRegort on & filed on June 30, 2011. In October 2012, the Bantered into a revis
Consent Order with the FDIC and KDFI again agredmgnaintain a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of @d a minimum total risk bas
capital ratio of 12%. The Bank also agreed thi#ttshould be unable to reach the required capitagls, and if directed in writing by the FD
then the Bank would within 30 days develop, adoywt enplement a written plan to sell or merge itsetb another federally insured financ
institution or otherwise immediately obtain a capihvestment into the Bank sufficient to fully ni¢lee capital requirements. We have not |
directed by the FDIC to implement such a plan.

We expect to continue to work with our regulatovsvard capital ratio compliance. The revised Cong@rder also requires the Bank
continue to adhere to the plans implemented inoesp to the June 2011 Consent Order, and inclidesubstantive provisions of the J
2011 Consent Order. The revised Consent Order mcdisded in our Current Report onkBfiled on September 19, 2012. As of Decembe
2014, the capital ratios required by the Consede®©were not met.
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In order to meet these capital requirements, thar@®f Directors and management are continuingviuate strategies to achieve
following objectives:

* Increasing capital through a possible public offgror private placement of common stock to new exidting shareholders. \
have engaged a financial advisor to assist ourdiathis evaluation

» Continuing to operate the Company and Bank in & safd sound manner. This strategy will require ausetiuce our lendir
concentrations, remediate r-performing loans, and reduce other noninterestresgéhrough the disposition of ORE

« Evaluating and implementing improvements to ioternal processes and procedures, distributidatmfr, and worlflow to ensur
we have adequately and appropriately deployed ressun an efficient manner in the current envirenir

e Executing on our commitment to improve credit giyadind reduce loan concentrations and balance skke

. We have reduced our loan portfolio significantlgrfr $1.3 billion at December 31, 2010 to $625.0iorillat December 3
2014.

. We have reduced our construction and developioans to less than 75% of total risksed capital at December 31, 2!
and have now been in compliance with the ConsedeCfor eleven quarter

. We have reduced our non-owner occupied commereal estate loans, construction and developrwamts, and multi-
family residential real estate loans Compliancéhwlie Consent Order requires those loans représsithan 250% of tot
risk-based capital. These loans represented 262%talf riskbased capital at December 31, 2014, down from 28
December 31, 201

» Executing on our commitment to sell other realtestavned and reinvest in quality income producisgets

. The remediation process for loans secured by tateehas led the Bank to acquire significant e¢lOREO since 201
The Bank acquired $20.6 million, $33.5 million, $aImillion, and $90.8 million during 2013, 2012,120 and 201(
respectively. For the year ended December 31, 20&4cquired $32.3 million of ORE(

. We have incurred significant losses in disposinghis real estate. We incurred losses totaling $2il6on, $9.3 million
$42.8 million, and $13.9 million in 2013, 2012, 20knd 2010, respectively, from sales at less ¢gaarying values and f:
value writedowns attributable to declines in appraisal vaaretiand changes in our pricing strategies. Dutiegyear ende
December 31, 2014, we incurred OREO losses tot&ithg million comprised of $4.3 million in fair weé writedowns fron
declining values as evidenced by new appraisalsetdced marketing prices in connection with olesatrategies, offs
by $306,000 in net gain on sales of ORI

. To ensure we maximize the value we receive uporséhe of OREO, we continually evaluate sales oppities. Procees
from the sale of OREO totaled $13.1 million durithg year ended December 31, 2014 and $30.8 mil$iag,5 million
$26.0 million and $25.0 million during the yearsled December 31, 2013, 2012, 2011, and 2010, resglgc

. At December 31, 2014, the OREO portfolio consistEd0% construction, development, and land assetapared to 62%
December 31, 2013. Commercial real estate reped of the OREO portfolio at December 31, 201hgared witl
19% at December 31, 201341family residential properties represent 17% & @REO portfolio at December 31, 2!
compared with 16% at December 31, 2013, and rfautily properties represent 11% of the OREO poidfoh
December 31, 2014, compared to 1% at December03B.

Bank regulatory agencies can exercise discretioenwan institution does not meet the terms of a emnsrder. Based on individt
circumstances, the agencies may issue mandatagtigies, impose monetary penalties, initiate changenanagement, or take more ser
adverse actions such as require an institutioeltas merge itself into another institution or ubg the Bank to be taken into receivership.

Liquid assets were $1.9 million at December 31 2@®&lince the Bank is unlikely to be in a positiorpay dividends to the parent company
the foreseeable future, cash inflows for the paaeatlimited to earnings on investment securiases of investment securities, and intere
deposits with the Bank. These cash inflows alonth whe liquid assets held at December 31, 2014 haesled to cover ongoing opera
expenses of the parent company which are forecagtegproximately $1.0 million for 2015. Parent @amy liquidity could be improve
through a sale of common or preferred shares.

Effective with the fourth quarter of 2011, we begieferring interest payments on the junior subatdid debentures relating to our t
preferred securities. Deferring interest paymentstiee junior subordinated debentures resulted oteferral of distributions on our trt
preferred securities.

If we defer distributions on our trust preferredggties for 20 consecutive quarters, we must phglederred distributions in full or we will t
in default. Our deferral period expires in the dhiuarter of 2016. Deferred distributions on owsstrpreferred securities, which totaled ¢
million as of December 31, 2014, are cumulative] anpaid distributions accrue and compound on sabkequent payment date. If as a
of a default we become subject to any liquidatdiesolution or winding up, holders of the trustfpreed securities will be entitled to rece
the liquidation amounts to which they are entitlegtluding all accrued and unpaid distributionsfobe any distribution can be made to
shareholders. In addition, the holders of our Selieand Series F Preferred Shares will be entidegceive liquidation distributions totali



$10.5 million before any distribution can be madl¢hie holders of our common shares.
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These financial statements do not include any adgists that may result should the Company be urtalilentinue as a going concern.

NOTE 3 — SECURITIES

The fair value of available for sale and held taurmiéy securities and the related gross unrealgaids and losses recognized in accumu
other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(in thousands)
December 31, 201.
Available for sale

U.S. Government and federal agel $ 35,72t $ 30¢ $ (590 $ 35,44!
Agency mortgag-backed: residentit 121,98! 1,97(C (357) 123,59¢
State and municip: 11,69( 722 (8 12,40«
Corporate bond 18,081 853 (252 18,68¢
Other debt securitie 572 86 — 65¢

Total available for sall $188,05¢ $ 3,93¢ $ (1,20) $190,79:

Held to maturity

State and municip: $ 42,32t $ 2,17 $ — $ 44,49¢

Total held to maturit $ 42,32t $ 2,17 $ — $ 44,49¢

December 31, 201:
Available for sale

U.S. Government and federal agel $ 31,02¢ $ 284 $ (1,449 $ 29,86¢
Agency mortgag-backed: residentiz 102,43! 45¢ (2,950 100,94:
State and municip: 12,96¢ 60¢ (28) 13,54¢
Corporate bond 18,00: 76¢ (610) 18,16
Other debt securitie 57z 60 — 632

Total debt securitie 165,00( 2,17¢ (4,032 163,14
Equity 13t 62 — 197

Total available for sal $165,13! $ 2,241 $ (4,037 $163,34-

Held to maturity

State and municip: $ 43,61: $ 3 $ (669 $ 42,94,

Total held to maturit $ 43,61 $ 3 $ (669 $ 42,94

Sales and calls of available for sale securitieevas follows:

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Proceed: $6,251 $8,061 $93,19¢
Gross gain: 132 873 3,54:
Gross losse — 15C 307

The tax provision related to these net gains assd®realized on sales were $46,000, $253,00%Jahdnillion, respectively.
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The amortized cost and fair value of our debt séearare shown by contractual maturity. Expectedurities may differ from actual maturit
if borrowers have the right to call or prepay ohatigns with or without call or prepayment penalti®scurities not due at a single maturity ¢
mortgage-backed, are shown separately.

December 31, 201.

Amortized
Fair
Cost Value
(in thousands)
Maturity
Available for sale
Within one yea $ 15,73¢ $ 15,74¢
One to five year 14,17 15,05¢
Five to ten year 35,59: 35,72¢
Beyond ten yeat 572 65€
Agency mortgag-backed: residenti 121,98! 123,59¢
Total $188,05¢ $190,79:
Held to maturity
One to five year $ 8,87¢ $ 9,25¢
Five to ten year 29,32% 30,83:
Beyond ten year 4,12 4,40¢
Total $ 42,32¢ $ 44,49¢

Securities pledged at yeand 2014 and 2013 had carrying values of approxiy&i80.8 million and $84.2 million, respectivebnd wer
pledged to secure public deposits and repurchasemgnts.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we held securiisged by the state of Kentucky or municipalitieshie state of Kentucky having a b¢
value of $19.1 million and $21.1 million, respeeli. Additionally, at December 31, 2014 and 2018, lveld securities issued by the stat
Texas or municipalities in the state of Texas hgarbook value of $4.4 million at each period ehtdyearend 2014 and 2013, there were
other holdings of securities of any one issuerepthan the U.S. Government and its agencies, @naount greater than 10% of stockholder:
equity.

Securities with unrealized losses at yead 2014 and 2013, aggregated by investment cagtegdrlength of time that individual securities &
been in a continuous unrealized loss positionaar®llows:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Fair Fair
Description of Securitie: Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
(in thousands)
2014
Available for sale
U.S. Government and federal age! $777¢ $ (6C) $1868: $ (53() $26,45¢ $ (590
Agency mortgac-backed: residenti: 6,96( (12 17,93¢ (345) 24,89¢ (357)
State and municip: 56¢ (8) — — 56¢ (8)
Corporate bond 4,88¢ (119 1,66( (133) 6,544 (252)
Total temporarily impaire: $20,19: $ (199 $38,27¢ $ (1,009 $58,47( $ (1,207)
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Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealizec Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Fair Fair
Description of Securitie: Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
(in thousands)
Available for sale
U.S. Government and federal agel $24,12¢ $ (1,449H $ — $ — $ 24,12¢ $ (1,449
Agency mortgac-backed: residenti: 58,25’ (1,672 10,34« (27¢) 68,60 (1,950
State and municipi 45¢ (28 — — 45¢ (28
Corporate bond 11,31 (610 — — 11,31: (610
Total temporarily impaire: $94,15° $ (3,759 $10,34« $ (278 $104,50: $ (4,03
Held to maturity
State and municip: $39,74: $ (6549 $1031 $ (14 $ 40,77+ $ (66%)
Total temporarily impaire: $39,74: $ (6549 $1031 $ (14 $40,77¢ $ (66%)

There were no held to maturity securities in areafized loss position at December 31, 2014.

The Company evaluates securities for other-tlemmporary impairment at least on a quarterly basisi, more frequently when economic
market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideré given to the length of time and the extentvhich the fair value has been less
cost, the financial condition and nearm prospects of the issuer, underlying creditliguaf the issuer, and the intent and ability bk
Company to retain its investment in the issueraf@eriod of time sufficient to allow for any anfiated recovery in fair value. In analyzing
issuers financial condition, the Company may consider thbethe securities are issued by the federal gwwent or its agencies, whet
downgrades by bond rating agencies have occuttedsdctor or industry trends and cycles affectiregissuer, and the results of reviews o
issuers financial condition. As of December 31, 2014, agement does not believe any securities in oufgiarwith unrealized losses shoi
be classified as other than temporarily impairethi time. Management currently intends to holdseturities with unrealized losses u
recovery, which for fixed income securities mayabenaturity.

NOTE 4 — LOANS

Loans at year-end by class were as follows:

2014 2013
(in thousands)

Commercia $ 60,93¢ $ 52,87¢
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 33,17: 43,32¢

Farmland 77,41¢ 71,18¢

Other 175,45: 232,02¢
Residential Real Estat

Multi -family 41,89 46,85¢

1-4 Family 197,27¢ 228,50!
Consume 11,347 14,36¢
Agriculture 26,96¢ 19,19¢
Other 537 98C

Subtotal 624,99¢ 709,32¢
Less: Allowance for loan loss (19,369 (28,129

Loans, ne $605,63" $681,20:
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The following table presents the activity in thibatance for loan losses by portfolio segment feryear ended December 31, 2014:

Residentia
Commercial
Real
Commercial Real Estate Estate Consumel  Agriculture Other Total
(in thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 3221 $ 1641« $ 7,762 $ 41€ $ 30t $ 6 $28,12
Provision for loan losse (690 6,39 1,36¢ 25 31 (25) 7,10(
Loans charged o (1,099 (13,84¢) (4,099 (33%) (30) (19) (19,426
Recoveries 614 1,96¢ 75¢ 16€ 13 45 3,56¢
Ending balanci $ 204€ $ 1093 $ 5781 $ 274 $ 31¢ $ 7 $19,36¢

The following table presents the activity in thivadance for loan losses by portfolio segment fer year ended December 31, 2013:

Residentia
Commercial
Real
Commercial Real Estate Estate Consumel  Agriculture Other Total
(in thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 4402 $ 34,76¢ $ 16,238 $ 857 $ 403 $ 15 $56,68(
Provision for loan losse 43E 1,691 (1,26)) 66 (222) 9 70C
Loans charged o (2,829 (21,176 (7,709 (773) (12¢) — (32,609
Recoveries 1,212 1,131 491 26€ 252 — 3,352
Ending balanc: $ 3221 $ 1641 $ 7,76z $ 41 $ 30 $ 6 $28,12¢

The following table presents the activity in thivadance for loan losses by portfolio segment fer year ended December 31, 2012:

Residentia
Commercial
Real
Commercial Real Estate Estate Consumel  Agriculture Other Total
(in thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 4207 $ 33,02¢ $ 14210 $ 79z $ 328 $ 14 $5257¢
Provision for loan losse 3,85( 23,27t 10,88 1,07( 1,17(C 1 40,25(
Loans charged o (3,789 (22,36¢€) (9,07)) (1,230 (1,269 — (37,519
Recoverie: 12¢ 83E 20& 12t 72 — 1,36¢
Ending balanc: $ 4402 $ 34,76¢ $ 16,23 $ 857 $ 402 $ 15 $56,68(

The following table presents the balance in thevedince for loan losses and the recorded investimndoans by portfolio segment and base
the impairment method as of December 31, 2014:

Residentia
Commercial
Real
Commercial Real Estate Estate Consumel  Agriculture Other Total
(in thousands)
Allowance for loan losses
Ending allowance balance attributable to loz

Individually evaluated for impairmel $ 33 % 491 $ 227 $ 1 $ — $ $ 752

Collectively evaluated for impairme 2,01z 10,44( 5,56( 273 31¢ 7 18,61:

Total ending allowance balan $ 2046 $ 1093 $ 5781 $ 274 % 31¢ $ 7 $ 19,36/
Loans:

Loans individually evaluated for impairme $ 2,022 $ 48,14 $ 21,38 $ 61 $ 26:  $1272 $ 71,99:

Loans collectively evaluated for impairme 58,91« 237,90: 217,78! 11,28¢ 26,70 41F 553,00t

Total ending loans balan $ 60,93t $ 286,04 $239,16¢ $11,34° $ 26,96¢ $537 $624,99¢
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The following table presents the balance in thevedince for loan losses and the recorded investindoans by portfolio segment and base
the impairment method as of December 31, 2013:

Residentia
Commercial
Real
Commercial Real Estate Estate Consumel  Agriculture Other Total
(in thousands)
Allowance for loan losses
Ending allowance balance attributable to lo:
Individually evaluated for impairme! $ 29C $ 234 % 8271 $ 9 $ — $— $ 3,471
Collectively evaluated for impairme 2,931 14,06¢ 6,93¢ 407 30E 6 24,65
Total ending allowance balan $ 3221 $ 1641« $ 7,762 $ 41 $ 308 $ 6 $ 28,12/
Loans:
Loans individually evaluated for impairme $ 499 $ 9433( $ 49,51 $ 93 $ 32z $631 $149,88:
Loans collectively evaluated for impairme 47,88¢ 252,21 225,85: 14,27: 18,871 34¢ 559,44
Total ending loans balan $ 52878 $ 346,54. $ 27536 $ 1436¢ $ 19,19¢ $98C $709,32¢

Impaired Loans
Impaired loans include restructured loans and loamsnonaccrual or classified as doubtful, wherebjlection of the total amount
improbable, or loss, whereby all or a portion @& tban has been written off or a specific allowafcdoss had been provided.

The following table presents information relateddans individually evaluated for impairment by sdaof loan as of and for the year er
December 31, 2014:

Allowance
Unpaid Cash
Principal For Loan Average Interest Basis
Recorded Losses Recorded Income Income
Balance Investment Allocated Investment Recognize! Recognize!

(in thousands)
With No Related Allowance Recorded

Commercia $ 1,34¢ $ 921 $ — $ 1,11 $ 55 $ 55
Commercial real estat

Constructior 10¢€ 27 — 21 — —

Farmlanc 1,84( 1,542 — 2,51¢ 75 75

Other 4,78¢ 1,47¢ — 1,28t 12¢ 12¢
Residential real estat

Multi-family 80 80 — 147 — —

1-4 Family 8,332 6,31¢ — 8,091 22¢ 22¢
Consume 95 29 — 14 — —
Agriculture 27¢ 268 — 2717 3 3
Other 51 51 — 54 13 13

Subtotal 16,91: 10,70¢ — 13,52 50C 50C

With An Allowance Recorded:

Commercia 1,345 1,101 33 2,10¢ 32 —
Commercial real estat

Constructior 4,60¢ 4,073 — 6,01: 28 —

Farmlanc 5,45¢ 3,512 38 3,74 — —

Other 49,10¢ 37,51 45% 52,50( 92t —
Residential real estat

Multi-family 4,26¢ 4,26¢ 91 5,94¢ 18C —

1-4 Family 11,95¢ 10,71¢ 13¢€ 16,41¢ 52¢ —
Consume 32 32 1 49 3 —
Agriculture — — — — — —
Other 31€ 71 — 201 3 —

Subtotal 77,08( 61,28¢ 752 86,97 1,69¢ —
Total $93,99: $ 71,99¢ $ 752 $ 100,49: $ 2,19¢ $ 50C
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The following table presents information relateddans individually evaluated for impairment by sdaof loan as of and for the year er
December 31, 2013:

Allowance
Cash
Unpaid For Loan Average Interest Basis
Principal Recorded Losses Recorded Income Income
Balance Investment Allocated Investment Recognizel Recognize!
(in thousands)
With No Related Allowance Recorded:;
Commercia $ 2,131 $ 153 $ — $ 162 $ 30 $ 30
Commercial real estat
Constructior 64 38 — 467 164 164
Farmland 4,07¢ 3,89¢ — 4,25¢ 26¢€ 26¢
Other 1,56¢ 1,40¢ — 1,72¢ 367 36¢€
Residential real estat
Multi -family 444 39z — 541 3 3
1-4 Family 11,01 10,08: — 11,53: 11t 11€
Consumel 9 9 — 21 — —
Agriculture 401 322 — 213 — —
Other 14 13 — 10 11 11
Subtotal 19,71¢ 17,69: — 20,39( 95¢ 95¢
With An Allowance Recorded:
Commercia 3,73¢ 3,462 29C 3,90¢ 99 —
Commercial real estat
Constructior 10,40¢ 9,264 21¢ 20,17: 88 —
Farmland 6,11% 4,23¢ 65 5,57¢ 37 —
Other 94,50¢ 75,48¢ 2,062 77,72¢ 1,32¢ —
Residential real estat
Multi -family 13,88: 12,117 39:¢ 13,12 20¢€ —
1-4 Family 31,325 26,92( 434 27,75t 557 —
Consumel 84 84 9 134 3 —
Agriculture — — — 2 — —
Other 861 61€& — 53¢ 17 —
Subtotal 160,92: 132,19: 3,471 148,93 2,33¢ —
Total $180,63¢ $149,88: $ 3,471 $169,32: $ 3,291 $ 95¢
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The following table presents information relateddans individually evaluated for impairment by sdaof loan as of and for the year er
December 31, 2012:

Allowance
Cash
Unpaid For Loan Average Interest Basis
Principal Recorded Losses Recorded Income Income
Balance Investment Allocated Investment Recognizel Recognize!
(in thousands)
With No Related Allowance Recorded:
Commercia $ 146( $ 123« $ — $ 1637 $ 5 % 4
Commercial real estat
Constructior 1,15¢ 1,10¢ — 1,74¢ 2 2
Farmland 4,44¢ 4,44¢ — 4,70¢ 57 57
Other 2,13¢ 1,892 — 3,43¢ 3 3
Residential real estat
Multi -family 643 643 — 91C — —
1-4 Family 13,53¢ 13,15¢ — 11,29 56 56
Consume 70 70 — 21¢ 8 5
Agriculture 45 45 — 36€ 2 —
Other — — — — — —
Subtotal 23,49¢ 22,59¢ — 24,31( 13¢ 127
With An Allowance Recorded:
Commercia 4,10¢ 4,062 263 3,964 16¢ 27
Commercial real estat
Constructior 26,64¢ 25,45¢ 1,54: 19,51« 34¢ 5
Farmland 8,557 6,45¢ 734 5,79¢ 43 2
Other 100,28¢ 86,56: 13,76¢ 83,08’ 2,011 18t
Residential real estat
Multi -family 14,90¢ 14,90¢ 1,64: 11,18: 46¢€ —
1-4 Family 32,83t 28,09: 2,99¢ 27,40« 787 9
Consume) 142 142 68 29 — —
Agriculture 10 10 5 6 — —
Other 524 524 11 53¢ 17 —
Subtotal 188,01¢ 166,20¢ 21,03 151,51¢ 3,84: 22¢
Total $211,51( $188,80¢ $21,03: $17582( $ 3,97¢ $ 35E
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Troubled Debt Restructuring

A troubled debt restructuring (TDR) is where ther@any has agreed to a loan modification in the fofra concession for a borrower whi
experiencing financial difficulty. The majority dfie Companys TDRs involve a reduction in interest rate, a dafeof principal for a state
period of time, or an interest only period. All TBRre considered impaired and the Company hasaédldceserves for these loans to reflec
present value of the concessionary terms grantdtetoustomer.

The following table presents the types of TDR loawdifications by portfolio segment outstanding &®ecember 31, 2014 and 2013:

TDRs TDRs Not
Performing to Performing to Total
Modified Terms Modified Terms TDRs

(in thousands)
December 31, 201.

Commercia
Rate reductiol $ 14 $ — $ 14
Principal deferra — 86¢ 86¢

Commercial Real Estat
Constructior

Rate reductiol 26¢ 3,37¢ 3,647
Farmlanc
Principal deferra — 2,36t 2,36t
Other
Rate reductiol 8,622 13,89 22,51¢
Principal deferra 671 — 671
Residential Real Estat
Multi-family
Rate reductiol 4,26¢ — 4,26¢
1-4 Family
Rate reductiol 8,112 — 8,112
Consume
Rate reductiol 32 — 32
Total TDRs $ 21,98t $ 20,50° $42,49:
December 31, 201.
Commercia
Rate reductiol $ 1,93¢ $ — $ 1,93:
Principal deferra — 86¢ 86¢

Commercial Real Estat
Constructior

Rate reductiol 27¢ 6,34% 6,62(
Principal deferra 49¢ — 49¢
Farmlanc
Rate reductiol 15C — 15C
Principal deferra — 2,36¢ 2,36¢
Other
Rate reductiol 22,45 21,23t 43,69:
Principal deferra 691 — 691
Interest only paymen 2,43¢ 1,48¢ 3,92¢
Residential Real Estat
Multi-family
Rate reductiol 4.35¢ 6,65k 11,00¢
Interest only paymen 641 — 641
1-4 Family
Rate reductiol 10,31: 7,95¢ 18,27(
Consume
Rate reductiol 84 — 84
Other
Rate reductiol 511 — 511
Total TDRs $ 44,34¢ $ 46,91¢ $91,26:
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At December 31, 2014 and 2013, 52% and 49%, respbctof the Company TDRs were performing according to their modifietms. Th
Company allocated $579,000 and $2.9 million as efdnber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, in rese@oveustomers whose loan terms t
been modified in TDRs. The Company has committetetal no additional amounts to customers as of Dbee 31, 2014, and additio
amounts totaling $261,000 as of December 31, 20TB$tomers with outstanding loans that are ciass#s TDRs.

Management periodically reviews renewals/modifmasi of previously identified TDRs, for which theneas no principal forgiveness,
consider if it is appropriate to remove the TDRsslfication. If the borrower is no longer experigmgc financial difficulty and th
renewal/modification did not contain a concessignaterest rate or other concessionary terms, nemagt considers the potential remov:
the TDR classification. If deemed appropriate, TRER classification is removed as the borrower hamplied with the terms of the loan at
date of renewal/modification and there was a realsienexpectation that the borrower would continuedmply with the terms of the lo
subsequent to the date of the renewal/modificatiothis instance, the TDR was originally considegerestructuring in a prior year as a re
of a modification with an interest rate that wa$ cmmmensurate with the risk of the underlying loadditionally, TDR classification can
removed in circumstances in which the Company per$oa non-concessionary meadification of the loan at terms that were consdeo b
at market for loans with comparable risk. Managenesipects the borrower will continue to perform enthe remodified terms based on 1
borrower’s past history of performance.

No TDR loan modifications occurred during the tweemonths ended December 31, 2014. The followinkg tatesents a summary of the ty
of TDR loan modifications by portfolio type thataored during the twelve months ended Decembe?@13:

TDRs TDRs Not
Performing to Performing to Total
Modified Terms Modified Terms TDRs

(in thousands
December 31, 201:
Commercia
Rate reductiol $ 34 $ — $ 34
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior

Rate reductiol — 1,291 1,291
Principal deferra 49¢ — 49¢
Other
Rate reductiol 38t — 38E
Residential Real Estat
1-4 Family
Rate reductiol 2,14¢ — 2,14t
Consume
Rate reductiol 84 — 84
Total TDRs $ 3,147 $ 1,291 $4,43¢

As of December 31, 2013, 71% of the CompanyDRs that occurred during 2013 were performingdnordance with their modified tert
The Company has allocated $345,000 in reserveasimmers whose loan terms have been modified d@®@. For modifications occurri
during the twelve months ended December 31, 20E3post-modification balances approximate the poédifitation balances.

During 2013, approximately $1.3 million of TDRs defted on their restructured loan and the defactuored within the 12 month peri
following the loan modification. The defaults inZwere all construction loans. A default is coesidl to have occurred once the TDR is
due 90 days or more or it has been placed on namglcc
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Non-performing Loans
Non-performing loans include impaired loans and smdildance homogeneous loans, such as residentigagerand consumer loans, thai
collectively evaluated for impairment.

The following table presents the recorded investniemonaccrual and loans past due 90 days aridostibccrual by class of loan as
December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Loans Past
Due 90 Days
And Over Still
Nonaccrual Accruing
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in thousands)
Commercia $ 1,97¢ $ 2,88¢ $— $—
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior 3,831 8,52¢ — —
Farmland 5,05¢ 7,84¢ — —
Other 26,89: 48,44 — —
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family 80 7,513 — —
1-4 Family 8,92t 26,09¢ 151 23C
Consume 30 9 — 2
Agriculture 263 322 — —
Other 122 12C — —
Total $47,17¢ $101,76° $151 $232

The following table presents the aging of the rdedrinvestment in past due loans by class as ofidker 31, 2014 and 2013:

90 Days Total
30-59 60-89 And Over Past Due
Days Days And
Past Due Past Due Past Due Nonaccrual Nonaccrual

(in thousands)
December 31, 201:
Commercia $ 86 $ — $ — $ 197¢ $ 2,06/
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior — — — 3,831 3,831

Farmland 40C 14 — 5,05¢ 5,46¢

Other 241 31¢ — 26,89: 27,45
Residential Real Estat

Multi -family — — — 80 80

1-4 Family 3,12¢ 601 151 8,92¢ 12,80:

Consume 10¢ 47 — 30 18€

Agriculture — — — 263 263

Other — — — 122 122

Total $ 3,96( $ 98C $ 151 $ 47,17 $ 52,26¢
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90 Days Total
30-59 60- 89 And Over Past Due
Days Days And
Past Due Past Due Past Due Nonaccrual Nonaccrual

(in thousands)
December 31, 201.

Commercia $ 15¢ $ 12¢ $ — $ 2,88¢ $ 3,16
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior 261 — — 8,52¢ 8,78¢
Farmland 484 41 — 7,84¢ 8,36¢
Other 4,37 — — 48,44 52,82:
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family 1,181 — — 7,51: 8,69¢
1-4 Family 4,05¢ 577 23C 26,09¢ 30,96¢
Consume 14t 34 2 9 19C
Agriculture 35 — — 322 357
Other — — — 12C 12C
Total $10,69¢ $ 77F $ 232 $101,76° $113,47(

Credit Quality Indicators

We categorize all loans into risk categories agindtion based upon original underwriting. Thereaftve categorize loans into risk categc
based on relevant information about the abilitybofrowers to service their debt such as curreraniiial information, historical payme
experience, credit documentation, public infornmtiand current economic trends. Additionally, loans analyzed continuously through
internal and external loan review processes. Bogrovelationships in excess of $500,000 are routirmbalyzed through our cre
administration processes which classify the lo@®aredit risk. The following definitions are dsfer risk ratings:

Watch — Loans classified as watch are those loans whicle leyperienced a potentially adverse developmenttwhecessitates increa
monitoring.

Special Mention— Loans classified as special mention do not havefahe characteristics of substandard or doulitfahs. They have one
more deficiencies which warrant special attentind ahich corrective action, such as acceleratel@édidn practices, may remedy.

Substandard — Loans classified as substandard are those loars alétar and defined weaknesses such as a highiraged positiol
unfavorable financial ratios, uncertain repaymemirses or poor financial condition which may jeafize the repayment of the debt
contractually agreed. They are characterized byli$tnct possibility that we will sustain somedes if the deficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful — Loans classified as doubtful are those loans whae characteristics similar to substandard loaswith an increased risk tt
collection or liquidation in full is highly questiable and improbable.
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Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyndividually as part of the above describedcess are considered to be “Pasatec
loans. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and basete most recent analysis performed, the riskgmaty of loans by class of loans it
follows:

Special
Pass Watch Mention Substandarc Doubtful Total
(in thousands)

December 31, 201.

Commercia $ 49,44C $ 506 $ — $ 643 $ — $ 60,93¢
Commercial Real Estat

Constructior 25,26¢ 2,99( — 4,917 — 33,17:

Farmland 61,67: 7,92: — 7,82 — 77,41¢

Other 111,42¢ 21,017 3,747 39,26: — 175,45:
Residential Real Estat

Multi -family 31,52¢ 6,03¢ — 4,32¢ — 41,89

1-4 Family 145,45( 23,92¢ 131 27,76¢ — 197,27¢

Consume 10,11¢ 537 311 384 — 11,347

Agriculture 25,81¢ 704 — 44¢ — 26,96¢

Other 41t — — 122 — 537

Total $461,12t $68,20( $4,18¢ $ 91,48: $ — $624,99¢

Special
Pass Watch Mention Substandarc Doubtful Total

(in thousands)
December 31, 201:

Commercia $3543¢ $ 8517 $ 32¢ $ 8594 $ — $ 52,87¢
Commercial Real Estat
Constructior 16,70¢ 10,77: 2,277 13,57: — 43,32¢
Farmland 46,90¢ 9,121 1,73¢ 13,42 — 71,18¢
Other 93,327 51,52: 734 86,44: — 232,02¢
Residential Real Estat
Multi -family 16,50¢ 17,32( — 13,03 — 46,85¢
1-4 Family 130,83 43,78¢ 784 53,10:¢ — 228,50"
Consume 12,71¢ 96¢ 6 672 — 14,36¢
Agriculture 16,74: 1,80z — 65E — 19,19¢
Other 35C 51C — 12C — 98C
Total $369,52¢ $144,31¢ $5,86F $ 189,61t $ — $709,32¢

In December 2014, the Company identified and temaél certain substandard accruing loans to loaltsfhr sale. The loans were transfe
to held for sale at the lower of cost or fair valliee Company identified $10.7 million of loansskll and recorded a $1.8 million charge tc
allowance for loan losses to reduce the loan bakme the estimated fair value. Loans held for satil $8.9 million at December 31, 20
comprised of $6.0 million in commercial real est&®.9 million in 1-4 family residential real estand $1.0 million in multiamily real estat
Approximately $4.5 million of these loans were elfied as TDRs prior to transfer to loans held $ate. These loans were not past di
December 31, 2014.
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NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Year-end premises and equipment were as follows:

2014 2013
(in thousands)
Land and building: $24,71: $ 24,67
Furniture and equipme 17,64: 17,211
42,35: 41,88¢
Accumulated depreciatic (22,845 (21,907
$ 19,50% $ 19,98t

Depreciation expense was $940,000, $1,043,000 345,000 for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

NOTE 6 — OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

Other real estate owned (OREO) is real estate samjais a result of foreclosure or by deed in lietoeclosure. It is classified as real es
owned until such time as it is sold. When propé&tscquired as a result of foreclosure or by dedeu of foreclosure, it is recorded at its
market value less cost to sell. Any wrdewn of the property at the time of acquisitionclgarged to the allowance for loan losses. (
incurred in order to perfect the lien prior to fdasure may be capitalized if the fair value ld®s ¢ost to sell exceeds the balance of the Ic
the time of transfer to OREO. Examples of eligibtests to be capitalized are payments of delinqpeoperty taxes to clear tax liens
payments to contractors and subcontractors to oleahanics’ liens. Subsequent reductions in fdiresare recorded as non-interest expense.

To determine the fair value of OREO for smalleraosingle family homes, we consult with internehk estate sales staff and external rea
investors, and appraisers. If the internally evi@danarket price is below our underlying investmienthe property, appropriate writlwns
are taken. For larger dollar residential and conemaéreal estate properties, we obtain a new apakaif the subject property or have staff f
our special assets group or in our centralizedapardepartment evaluate the latedfilmappraisal in connection with the transfer they rea
estate owned. We typically obtain updated appsiwéhin five quarters of the anniversary date whership unless a sale is imminent.

The following table presents the major categorfe@REO at the period-ends indicated:

2014 2013
(in thousands)

Commercial Real Estat

Construction, land development, and other | $18,74¢ $19,19¢

Farmland 66< 69t

Other 14,86( 6,06¢
Residential Real Estat

Multi -family 4,98¢ 24¢

1-4 Family 7,99¢ 4,91¢

47,26 31,12:

Valuation allowanct (1,06€) (230

$46,19: $30,89:

Activity relating to the other real estate ownetlation allowance during the years indicated ifodews:

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Beginning balanc $ 23C $1,15¢ $ 1,667
Provision to allowanc 4,25¢ 2,46¢ 7,15¢
Write-downs (3,419) (3,390 (7,667)
Ending balanci $ 1,06¢ $ 23C $1,15¢
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Activity relating to other real estate owned durthg years indicated is as follows:

OREO Activity
OREO as of January

Real estate acquire

Valuation adjustments for declining market val
Improvements

Net gain (loss) on sa

Proceeds from sale of propert

OREO as of December

Expenses related to other real estate owned include

Net (gain) loss on sal¢

Provision to allowanc

Operating expens
Total

NOTE 7 — INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Acquired intangible assets were as follows as afysnd:

Amortized intangible asset
Core deposit intangible

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

$ 30,89: $ 43,67 $ 41,44¢

32,33¢ 20,60¢ 33,52¢

(4,255 (2,466 (7,159

— — 1

30€ (132) (1,672

(13,089 (30,787 (22,48))

$ 46,19° $ 30,89: $ 43,671

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

$ (30€) $ 132 $ 1,672

4,25¢ 2,46¢ 7,15¢

1,89( 1,91¢ 1,728

$5,83¢ $4,51¢€ $10,54¢

2014 2013
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
(in thousands)

$ 4,18: $ 3,40¢ $ 4,18: $ 3,00¢

Aggregate amortization expense was $397,000, $82&0d $467,000 for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respéytive

Estimated aggregate amortization expense for iftténgssets for each of the next five years ioHsvis (in thousands):

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
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NOTE 8 — DEPOSITS

The following table shows deposits by category:

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Nor-interest bearin $ 114,91( $ 107,48t
Interest checkin 91,08¢ 84,62¢
Money marke 109,73« 79,34¢
Savings 36,43( 36,29:
Certificates of depos 574,68: 679,95.
Total $ 926,84 $ 987,70

Time deposits of $250,000 or more were approxirgekd,399,000 and $39,763,000 at year-end 2014218, respectively.

Scheduled maturities of total time deposits forheafcthe next five years are as follows (in thowsin

Total

2015 $416,48t
2016 95,50¢
2017 12,17¢
2018 10,22:
2019 40,28¢
Thereaftel 2

$574,68:

NOTE 9 — SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

Securities sold under agreements to repurchasgnarecing arrangements that mature within two yeAtsnaturity, the securities underlyi
the agreements are returned to the Company. Sesusibld under agreements to repurchase are sebyradency, mortgageacked, an
municipal securities. Information concerning setiesisold under agreements to repurchase is suredaas follows:

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Balance at ye-end $1,341 $2,47( $2,634
Average daily balance during the y $2,25¢ $3,11: $2,08¢
Average interest rate during the y 0.15% 0.2(% 0.3%%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $3,47: $4,747 $2,63¢
Weighted average interest rate at -end 0.14% 0.17% 0.25%
Fair value of securities sold under agreementspianchase at ye-end $1,341 $2,47( $2,634
NOTE 10 — ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK
At year-end, advances from the Federal Home Loark Beere as follows:
2014 2013

(in thousands)
Monthly amortizing advances with fixed rates frofd@% to 5.25% and maturitie
ranging from 2015 through 2033, averaging 1.02%2fi#4 and 3.07% for 201 $15,75: $4,49:

Each advance is payable per terms on agreemehntawitepayment penalty. No prepayment penalties weurred during 2013 or 2014. 1
advances were collateralized by approximately $83dillion and $138.4 million of first mortgage locarunder a blanket lien arrangemet
yearend 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our borrowing cipas based on the market value of the underlypfedged loans rather than
unpaid principal balance of the pledged loans. abalability of our borrowing capacity could be edfed by our financial position and
FHLB could require additional collateral or, amasther things, exercise its rights to deny a fundiqguest, at its discretion. Additionally,
new advances are limited to a one year maturitless. At December 31, 2014, our additional borrgwéapacity with the FHLB was $1:
million.
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Scheduled principal payments on the above duriagéxt five years and thereafter (in thousands):

Advance:
2015 $12,70¢
2016 62t
2017 541
2018 26¢€
2019 18t
Thereaftel 1,42¢

$15,75:

At yearend 2014, the Company had a $5.0 million federatiuline of credit available on a secured basimfeocorrespondent institutic
however, the availability of this line could beeffed by our financial position.

NOTE 11 — SUBORDINATED CAPITAL NOTE

The subordinated capital note issued by the Batateid $5.0 million at December 31, 2014. The netarisecured, bears interest at the |
threemonth LIBOR floating rate plus 300 basis pointsd ayualifies as Tier 2 capital. Principal paymentss225,000 plus interest are ¢
quarterly. Scheduled principal payments of $900080year are due each of the next five years $480,000 due thereafter. The note mat
July 1, 2020. The interest rate on this note wad%.and 3.25% at December 31, 2014 and 2013, rixsggc

NOTE 12 — JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

The junior subordinated debentures are redeeméabplar grior to the maturity dates of February 1&34 April 15, 2034, and March 1, 2037
the option of the Company as defined within thesttrindenture. The Company has the option to deferést payments on the jur
subordinated debentures from time to time for &oplemot to exceed twenty (20) consecutive quarléayments are deferred, the Compar
prohibited from paying dividends on its preferraslaommon shares. Effective with the fourth quaceR011, we began deferring intel
payments on the junior subordinated notes whichltes in a deferral of distributions on our truséferred securities. Therefore, future ¢
dividends on our common stock are subject to tiar payment of all deferred distributions on ouwrstrpreferred securities. Dividends accl
and unpaid on our junior subordinated debenturdei $2.2 million at December 31, 2014. A sumnrihe junior subordinated debentt
is as follows:

Junior End of 20
Subordinated Quarter
Issuance Debt Owed Deferral Maturity

Description Date Interest Rate (1) To Trust Period Date (2)
Porter Statutory Trust Il 02-13-200¢ 3-month LIBOR +2.85¢ $ 5,000,000 09-18-201€ 02-13-203¢
Porter Statutory Trust Ii 04-15-200¢  3-month LIBOR + 2.79¢ 3,000,001 09-18-201€ 04-15-203¢
Porter Statutory Trust I' 12-14-200¢€ 3-month LIBOR + 1.67¢ 14,000,00 09-01-201€¢ 03-01-2037
Ascencia Statutory Trusl 02-13-200¢ 3-month LIBOR + 2.85¢ 3,000,001 09-1S-201€ 02-13-203¢

$25,000.00

(1) As of December 31, 2014, th-month LIBOR was 0.26%
(2) The debentures are callable at our option at gréicipal amount plus accrued intere

NOTE 13 — OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

401(K) Plan— The Company 401(k) Savings Plan allows employeestribute up to the annual limits as determingdhe Internal Reveni
Service, which is matched equal to 50% of the fi€4t of compensation contributed. The Company,satliscretion, may make an additic
contribution. Total contributions made by the Compé#o the plan totaled approximately $187,000, $008 and $148,000 in 2014, 2013
2012, respectively.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan- The Company has created a supplemental executivernent plan covering certain execu
officers. Under the plan, the Company pays eacticgzant, or their beneficiary, a specific definbdnefit amount over 10 years, begint
with the individuals retirement or early termination of service faaigens other than cause. A liability is accruedtierobligation under the
plans. The expense incurred for the plan was $082,887,000 and $151,000 for the years ended Desme®ih 2014, 2013 and 20
respectively. The related liability was $1,341,080,348,000 and $1,338,000 at December 31, 20143 2Bd 2012, respectively, anc
included in other liabilities on the balance sheets
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The Company purchased life insurance on the ppatts of the plan. The cash surrender value dhsilirance policies was $9,167,000
$8,911,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respéctincome earned from the cash surrender valukfeoinsurance totaled $276,0
$534,000, and $312,000 for the years ended Decedibe2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The incasmecorded as other nomteres
income.

NOTE 14 — INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) was as follows:

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Current $ — $ — $ (65
Deferred 2,151 9,48¢ 754
Net operating los (6,65)) (20,430 (12,58)
Change in valuation allowan 2,917 941 11,827
$(1,589) $ — $ (69
Effective tax rates differ from federal statutoage of 35% applied to income (loss) before incoaxes due to the following.
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Federal statutory rate times financial statemecttrime (loss $(4,45%) $(555) $(11,549

Effect of:
Valuation allowanct 2,917 941 11,821
Tax-exempt incom (319 (329 (3149
Nontaxable life insurance incon (97) (180 (202
Other, ne 374 11€ 73
Total $(1,587) $— $ (65

Year-end deferred tax assets and liabilities weretd the following.
December 31 December 31
2014 2013

(in thousands
Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss car-forward $ 32,11 $ 25,46(
Allowance for loan losse 6,77 9,84:
Other real estate owned w-down 10,00( 9,47¢
Alternative minimum tax credit car-forward 692 692
Net assets from acquisitio 66¢ 644
Other than temporary impairment on securi 46 89
Net unrealized loss on securit — 1,067
New market tax credit car-forward 20¢ 20¢
Nonaccrual loan intere 95¢ 911
Amortization of no-compete agreemer 14 16
Other 1,371 1,64(
52,84! 50,04¢
Deferred tax liabilities

FHLB stock dividend: 92¢ 1,27¢
Fixed asset 264 33:
Originated mortgage servicing rigt 53 75

Net unrealized gain on securiti 57¢ —
Other 373 57(
2,197 2,25¢
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allow: 50,64¢ 47,79¢
Valuation allowanct (50,649 (47,799

Net deferred tax ass $ — $ —
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Our estimate of the realizability of the deferrad &sset is dependent on our estimate of projdatack levels of taxable income. In analy:
future taxable income levels, we considered alllence currently available, both positive and negaased on our analysis, we establist
valuation allowance for all deferred tax assetsfd3ecember 31, 2011. The valuation allowance ramgi effect as of December 31, 2014.

The calculation for the income tax provision or éftngenerally does not consider the tax effectshanges in other comprehensive incom
OCI, which is a component of stockholdeesjuity on the balance sheet. However, an excei@novided in certain circumstances, suc
when there is a full valuation allowance againgtdeferred tax assets, there is a loss from comgnaperations and there is income in o
components of the financial statements. In suchse,cpraax income from other categories, such as chamg€xdl, must be considered
determining a tax benefit to be allocated to thes [éfom continuing operations. For the year endedeinber 31, 2014, this resulted in ¢
million of income tax benefit allocated to contingi operations. The December 31, 2014 tax benefgnirely due to gains in ott
comprehensive income that are presented in cuopsarations in accordance with applicable accourdgtagdards.

The Company does not have any beginning and endimgcognized tax benefits. The Company does noeaxthe total amount
unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increasalecrease in the next twelve months. There weriterest and penalties recorded ir
income statement or accrued for the year endeddleee31, 2014 related to unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to fdd&ral income tax and the Company is subjeotdome tax in the state of Kentucky. -
Company is no longer subject to examination byniguduthorities for years before 2011.

NOTE 15 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Loans to principal officers, directors, significaftareholders, and their affiliates in 2014 weré#lsws (in thousands):

Beginning balanc $1,09:¢
New loans 11
Loans to directors who did not stand fc-election (29¢)
Repayment (90¢)
Ending balanc $ —

Deposits from principal officers, directors, sigoént shareholders, and their affiliates at yemd- 2014 and 2013 were $307,000
$1.4 million, respectively.

Our loan participation totals include participatilmans sold to The Peoples Bank, Mt. Washington Hmel Peoples Bank, Taylorsville. 1
Estate of J. Chester Porter, one of our signifishareholders, and Mr. Portetrother and former director, William G. Porteacke own a 50¢
interest in Lake Valley Bancorp, Inc., the pareolding company of The Peoples Bank, Taylorsvillenkicky. The Estate of J. Chester P«
owns an interest of approximately 37.0% and Mriétty brother, William G. Porter, owns an interest ppraximately 3.0% in Crossroe
Bancorp, Inc., the parent holding company of ThepRes Bank, Mount Washington, Kentucky.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $3.2 million oftipgration loans sold to these banks. As of Decemlie 2013, we had $4.9 million
participation loans sold to these banks. At Decer8tie2014, $527,000 of loan participations sol®P&mples Bank, Taylorsville, and $527,
sold to Peoples Bank, Mt. Washington were on nonatcThere were no participation loans purchasexh these banks at December 31, :
or 2013.

The Bank entered into a Real Estate Listing angh&htg Management Agreement with Hogan Developmem@any, an entity in which ¢
director, W. Glenn Hogan, has an ownership intetéster this agreement, Hogan Development Compagista the Bank in onboardi
managing, and selling the BaskOREO. The agreement is periodically reviewed evaluated by the independent members of our ,
Committee. The Bank paid real estate managemesofe®221,000 and $207,000 and real estate safesissions of $64,000 and $773,00
Hogan Development Company in 2014 and 2013, reispéct
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In December 2014, we completed a r@sh equity exchange transaction with the accrditeestors who acquired all of our issued
outstanding Series A Preferred Shares from UST pulalic auction. The investors included W. Glenngdio and Michael T. Levy, bc
directors of the Company, as well as Patriot Firerfeartners L.P. and Patriot Financial Partnerslied L.P. (the “Patriot Funds”funds fo
whom a director of the Company, W. Kirk Wycoff, ees as general partner. Mr. Hogan exchanged 5/08@®s of Series A Preferred Stc
and was issued 17,143 shares of mandatorily cablee®eries B Preferred Stock, 885 shares of S&riBseferred Stock, and 1,405 share
Series F Preferred Stock. Mr. Levy exchanged 7%0eshof Series A Preferred Stock, and was issu&dl23 common shares, 133 share
Series E Preferred Stock, and 211 shares of Serigreferred Stock. The Patriot Funds exchanged8%6ares of Series A Preferred St
317,042 shares of Series C Preferred Stock, and?@33varrants to purchase neoting common shares, and was issued 6,250 shé
mandatorily convertible Series B Preferred Stoek580 shares of mandatorily convertible Series &d?Pred Stock, and 3,486 shares of S
E Preferred Stock. After shareholder approval obré&y 25, 2015, Mr. Hogas'17,143 shares of Series B Preferred Stock carueéntc
1,714,300 common shares and the Patriot FundseSeriPreferred Stock converted into 625,000 comsiames. The Patriot FundSeries [
Preferred Stock converted into 6,458,000 non-votimgmon shares.

NOTE 16 — PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCK PURCHASE WARRANTS

On November 21, 2008, we issued to the U.S. Trga@m000 shares of our Series A Preferred Stockaamdrrant to purchase up to 330,56
our common shares for $15.88 per share in exchiEmgaggregate consideration of $35.0 million. Tharrant is exercisable and has ayHa
term. The Series A Preferred Stock qualified as Tieapital and was entitled to receive cumulatash dividends quarterly at an annual ra
5% for the first five years, and 9% beginning inMdmber 2013. The Series A Preferred Stock wasvating (except when required by le
and redeemable at $1,000 per share plus accrueddutipidends.

In 2010, we completed a $32.0 million private plaeat to accredited investors. In the transactiomslved, the Company issued (i) 2,465,
common shares, (ii) 317,042 Series C PreferredeShand (iii) warrants to purchase 1,163,045 wating common shares at a price of $1.
per share.

The Series C Preferred Shares had no voting rigixisept when required by law), had a liquidatioaference over our common shares,
dividend rights equivalent to our common shareghEgeries C Preferred Share would have automaticativerted into 1.05 common share
transferred by the holder in certain transactionadcordance with the policy of the Federal Reserve

In December 2014, we completed a r@sh equity exchange transaction with the accrditeestors who acquired all of our issued
outstanding Series A Preferred Shares from UST julaic auction. We acquired and cancelled allh#f issued and outstanding Serie
Preferred Shares, the accrued dividends therebaf tile issued and outstanding Series C Prefédteates, and warrants to purchase 79¢
shares of common stock together having an aggrégate value of approximately $45.7 million. In eaclge, we issued common and prefe
shares having a fair value of approximately $9.8ioni The effect of this exchange transaction waicrease common stockholdeesjuity
by approximately $36.1 million, and total stockhextsl equity by $7.4 million.

In the exchange transaction, we issued 1,821,428nmm shares, 40,536 mandatorily convertible SeBieRreferred Shares and 64,
mandatorily convertible Series D Preferred Shandsch automatically converted into 4,053,600 comnsbiares and 6,458,000 neating
common shares after shareholder approval on Fgb25ar2015. We also issued 6,198 Series E Pref&hedes and 4,304 Series F Prefe
Shares, both of which series are not convertilie @®@mmon shares, have a liquidation preferencl @00 per share, and are entitled to ¢
noncumulative annual dividend if and when declafeties E and Series F Preferred Shares rank deniand have liquidation and divide
preferences over, our common shares and non-votingnon shares.

NOTE 17 — CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS

Banks and bank holding companies are subject tolatayy capital requirements administered by feldeamking agencies. Capital adequ
guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt eotive action regulations involve quantitative meas of assets, liabilities, and certain off
balancesheet items calculated under regulatory accoungiragtices. Capital amounts and classifications @s® subject to qualitati
judgments by regulators. Failure to meet capitglirements can initiate regulatory actir

On June 24, 2011, the Bank entered into a ConsedegrQvith the FDIC and the Kentucky Department ofafcial Institutions. The const
order requires the Bank to complete a managemedy sto maintain Tier 1 capital as a percentagmial assets of at least 9% and a total
based capital ratio of at least 12%, to developaa [ reduce our risk position in each substandas®t in excess of $1 million, to comp
board review of the adequacy of the allowance danllosses prior to quarterly Call Report submissido adopt procedures which streng
the loan review function and ensure timely and esteugrading of credit relationships, to chaogiall assets classified as loss, to devel
plan to reduce concentrations of construction aadebpment loans to not more than 75% of total biaked capital and n@mwner occupie
commercial real estate loans to not more than 260¢6tal risk based capital, to limit asset growdmo more than 5% in any quarter or 1
annually, to not extend additional credit to anyrbwer classified substandard unless the boardirettbrs adopts prior to the extensic
detailed statement giving reasons why the exterisiam the best interest of the bank, and to naotade or pay any dividend without the p
consent of our regulators. We are also restriatewh faccepting, renewing, or rollirger brokered deposits without the prior receipa efaive
on a case-by-case basis from our regulators.
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On September 21, 2011, we entered into a Writtereément with the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Lduissuant to the Agreement, we m
formal commitments to use our financial and manag#mesources to serve as a source of strengtthéoBank and to assist the Banl
addressing weaknesses identified by the FDIC aadKDFI, to pay no dividends without prior writtepgoval, to pay no interest or princi
on subordinated debentures or trust preferred sesuwithout prior written approval, and to subrait acceptable plan to maintain suffic
capital.

In October 2012, the Bank entered into a reviseds€ot Order with the FDIC and KDFI again agreemghintain a minimum Tier 1 levere
ratio of 9% and a minimum total risk based capiitib of 12%. The Bank cannot be considered wafiitalized while under the Consent Or
The Bank also agreed that if it should be unabledah the required capital levels, and if direétedriting by the FDIC, then the Bank wo!
within 30 days develop, adopt and implement a amiplan to sell or merge itself into another fetlgiiasured financial institution or otherwi
immediately obtain a capital investment into theaBaufficient to fully meet the capital requirementVe have not been directed by the F
to implement such a plan.

The revised Consent Order also requires the Bamlodinue to adhere to the plans implemented ipaese to the June 2011 Consent O
and includes the substantive provisions of the R0l Consent Order. As of December 31, 2014, #pétal ratios required by the Cons
Order were not met.

The following table shows the ratios and amount§ief 1 capital and total capital to riskljusted assets and the leverage ratios for |
Bancorp, Inc. and the Bank at the dates indicatetlafs in thousands):

For Capital
Adequacy
Actual Purposes
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2014:
Total risk-based capital (to ri- weighted asset:
Consolidatec $73,59¢ 10.61%  $55,48: 8.0(%
Bank 73,17¢ 10.5% 55,38: 8.0C
Tier | capital (to ris-weighted asset:
Consolidatec 46,45¢ 6.7(C 27,74 4.0C
Bank 59,43¢ 8.5¢ 27,69 4.0C
Tier | capital (to average asse
Consolidatec 46,45¢ 4.51 41,19: 4.0C
Bank 59,43¢ 5.7¢ 41,14 4.0C
For Capital
Adequacy
Actual Purposes
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2013
Total risk-based capital (to ri-weighted asset:
Consolidatec $80,20: 11.09%  $58,17¢ 8.0(%
Bank 83,05¢ 11.4¢ 58,06+ 8.0C
Tier | capital (to ris-weighted asset:
Consolidatec 53,37: 7.34 29,08¢ 4.0C
Bank 67,89’ 9.3t 29,03: 4.0C
Tier | capital (to average asse
Consolidatec 53,37: 4.9t 43,15¢ 4.0C
Bank 67,89" 6.2¢ 43,22 4.0C
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The Consent Order requires the Bank to achievenihenum capital ratios presented below:

Actual as of Ratio Required by
December 31, 2014 Consent Order
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total capital to risk-weighted assets $73,17¢ 10.5%  $83,07- 12.0(%
Tier | capital to average ass: 59,43¢ 5.7¢ 92,57 9.0C

At December 31, 2014, the Bank’s Tier 1 leverag® naas 5.78% and its total ridkased capital ratio was 10.57%, which are belowo#h
minimum capital ratio and the 12% minimum capitdlo required by the Consent Order. Bank regulatggncies can exercise discretion v
an institution does not meet the terms of a Con€eder. Based on individual circumstances, the eigsmrmay issue mandatory directi
impose monetary penalties, initiate changes in igpament, or take more serious adverse actions.

Kentucky banking laws limit the amount of divideritiat may be paid to a holding company by its sliasy banks without prior approv
These laws limit the amount of dividends that mayphid in any calendar year to current ygaet income, as defined in the laws, comk
with the retained net income of the preceding twarg, less any dividends declared during thoseg®riThe Bank has agreed with its prin
regulators to obtain their written consent priodexlaring or paying any future dividends. As actical matter, the Bank cannot pay divide
for the foreseeable future.

NOTE 18 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVI TIES

Some financial instruments, such as loan commitsdimes of credit and letters of credit are isstedeet customeinancing needs. The
are agreements to provide credit or to supporictheit of others, as long as conditions establishetthe contract are met, and usually t
expiration dates. Commitments may expire withouhgpeused. Off-balanceheet risk to credit loss exists up to the face warhof thes
instruments, although material losses are not igatied. The same credit policies are used to makh sommitments as are used for lo
including obtaining collateral at exercise of tloenenitment.

The Company holds instruments, in the normal coafsmisiness, with clients that are considerednfoie guarantees. Standby letters of ci
guarantees are issued in connection with agreemeade by clients to counterparties. Standby leticsedit are contingent upon failure of
client to perform the terms of the underlying cantr The Company evaluates each credit requestsofustomers in accordance v
established lending policies. Based on these etiahgsand the underlying policies, the amount afuieed collateral (if any) is establish
Collateral held varies but may include negotiablruments, accounts receivable, inventory, prgpetant and equipment, income produt
properties, residential real estate, and vehidlbs. Companys access to these collateral items is generalabkshed through the maintena
of recorded liens or, in the case of negotiabl&umsents, possession. No liability is currentlyabdished for the standby letters of credit.

The contractual amounts of financial instrumenthwif-balance-sheet risk at year end were asvi@io

2014 2013
Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
Rate Rate Rate Rate
(in thousands)
Commitments to make loal $11,79( $ 7,84 $ 3,12¢ $ 5,751
Unused lines of cred 13,07¢ 35,56: 11,81« 40,72
Standby letters of crec 96¢€ 1,35¢ 99t 1,50¢

Commitments to make loans are generally made fooge of one year or less.

NOTE 19 — FAIR VALUES

Fair value is the exchange price that would beivedefor an asset or paid to transfer a liabiligki{ price) in the principal or mc
advantageous market for the asset or liabilityrinoederly transaction between market participamghe measurement date. We use va
valuation techniques to determine fair value, idelg market, income and cost approaches. Therthere levels of inputs that may be use
measure fair values:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assetBadilities in active markets that an entity hag #bility to access as of 1
measurement date, or observable inputs.
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Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Léwvgrices, such as quoted prices for similar assetiabilities, quoted prices
markets that are not active, and other inputsatabbservable or can be corroborated by observadket data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect aritgrs own assumptions about the assumptions that mpaketipants would u:
in pricing an asset or liability.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure dhievmay fall into different levels of the fair ual hierarchy. When that occurs, we classify
fair value hierarchy on the lowest level of inpiat is significant to the fair value measuremeng ¥8ed the following methods and signific
assumptions to estimate fair value.

Securities: The fair values of securities available for sale determined by obtaining quoted prices on natipnmakognized securiti
exchanges, if available. This valuation methodassified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchygr Becurities where quoted prices are
available, fair values are calculated on marketgsriof similar securities, or matrix pricing, whisha mathematical technique used wi
in the industry to value debt securities withouyirey exclusively on quoted prices for the spec#ecurities but rather by relying on
securities’ relationship to other benchmark quosedurities. Matrix pricing relies on the securitieslationship to similarly trade
securities, benchmark curves, and the benchmardKifige securities. Matrix pricing utilizes obsebta market inputs such as benchn
yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quoteseisspreads, twsided markets, benchmark securities, bids, off@fgrence data, a
industry and economic events. In instances wheskdorquotes are used, these quotes are obtainednfiarket makers or brokelealer
recognized to be market participants. This valuatiethod is classified as Level 2 in the fair vabierarchy. For securities where quc
prices or market prices of similar securities ao¢ available, fair values are calculated using aisted cash flows or other mar
indicators. This valuation method is classified_asel 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Discountedicélsws are calculated using sprea
swap and LIBOR curves that are updated to incotpdoss severities, volatility, credit spread aptianality. During times when tradi
is more liquid, broker quotes are used (if avadald validate the model. Rating agency and ingustsearch reports as well as def:
and deferrals on individual securities are reviewed incorporated into the calculations.

Impaired Loans: An impaired loan is evaluated at the time the lsaidentified as impaired and is recorded at failue less costs to st
Fair value is measured based on the value of thate@l securing the loan and is classified asel&vin the fair value hierarchy. F
value is determined using several methods. Gegethb fair value of real estate is determined Base appraisals by qualified licen:
appraisers. These appraisals may utilize a singligation approach or a combination of approachelsiding comparable sales and
income approach.

Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisat@se by the appraisers to adjust for differencéwdsn the comparable sales
income data available. These routine adjustmetsrade to adjust the value of a specific propestgtive to comparable properties
variations in qualities such as location, size, ambme production capacity relative to the subjeaperty of the appraisal. St
adjustments are typically significant and resulaibevel 3 classification of the inputs for detemmg fair value.

We routinely apply an internal discount to the eabf appraisals used in the fair value evaluatioouo impaired loans. The deduction:
the appraisal take into account changing busiressrs and market conditions, as well as potewmtihle impairment in cases where
appraisal date predates a likely change in madtedidons. These deductions range from 10% forineuteal estate collateral to 25%
real estate that is determined (1) to have a thiding market or (2) to be specialized collatefals is in addition to estimated discot
for cost to sell of six to ten percent.

We also apply discounts to the expected fair vafieollateral for impaired loans where the likelgsolution involves litigation 1
foreclosure. Resolution of this nature generallsutes in receiving lower values for real estatelatetal in a more aggressive si
environment. We have utilized discounts rangingnfri0% to 33% in our impairment evaluations whenliagple.

Impaired loans are evaluated quarterly for addiéiampairment. We obtain updated appraisals on gnt@s securing our loans wt
circumstances are warranted such as at the timenefval or when market conditions have signifigastianged. This determinatior
made on a property-hyroperty basis in light of circumstances in theduker economic climate and our assessment of dettoio of ree
estate values in the market in which the propestipcated. The first stage of our assessment iegolmanagemerst’inspection of tr
property in question. Management also engagesnmearsations with local real estate professionalestors, and market participant:
determine the likely marketing time and value rafyethe property. The second stage involves apsassent of current trends in
regional market. After thorough consideration oésh factors, management will either internally eatd fair value or order a n
appraisal.

95



Table of Contents

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO): OREO is evaluated at the time of acquisition @edorded at fair value as determinec
independent appraisal or internal evaluation lest t sell. Our quarterly evaluations of OREOQ ifapairment are driven by prope
type. For smaller dollar single family homes, wasult with internal real estate sales staff anérmedl realtors, investors, and apprais
Based on these consultations, we determine askingspfor OREO properties we are marketing for .siilthe internally evaluated f:
value is below our recorded investment in the priyp@ppropriate write-downs are taken.

For larger dollar commercial real estate propertres obtain a new appraisal of the subject properthave staff in our special as:
group or centralized appraisal department evaligdatest irfile appraisal in connection with the transfer they real estate owned.
some of these circumstances, an appraisal is inepsoat quarter end, and we must make our bestatstiof the fair value of tl
underlying collateral based on our internal evatuaiof the property, review of the most recent ajgal, and discussions with
currently engaged appraiser. We generally obtadtatgnl appraisals within five quarters of the armsigey date of ownership unless a
is imminent.

We routinely apply an internal discount to the eabf appraisals used in the fair value evaluatibous OREOQO. The deductions to
appraisal take into account changing business fa@nd market conditions, as well as potential afapairment in cases where
appraisal date predates a likely change in maieditons. These deductions range from 10% forineuteal estate collateral to 25%
real estate that is determined (1) to have a thiding market or (2) to be specialized collateFalis is inaddition to estimated discou
for cost to sell of six to ten percent.

Financial assets measured at fair value on a liegupasis are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2014 Usi
(in thousands)

Quoted Prices In Significant Other Significant

Active Markets for Unobservable
Observable
Carrying Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Available for sale securitie

U.S. Government and federal agel $ 35,44 $ — $ 35,44 $ —

Agency mortgag-backed: residentiz 123,59¢ — 123,59¢ —

State and municip: 12,40« — 12,40« —

Corporate bond 18,68¢ — 18,68¢ —
Other debt securitie 65€ — — 65€
Total $190,79: $ = $ 190,13: $ 65¢&
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013 Usil
(in thousands)

Quoted Prices In Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Unobservable
Observable
Carrying Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Available for sale securitie
U.S. Government and federal age! $ 29,86¢ $ — $ 29,86¢ $ —
Agency mortgag-backed: residentic 100,94: — 100,94: —
State and municip: 13,54¢ — 13,54¢ —
Corporate bond 18,16: — 18,16: —
Other debt securitie 632 — — 632
Equity securitie! 197 197 — —
Total $163,34- $ 197 $ 162,51! $ 632

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Ledeirihg 2014 or 2013.

The table below presents a reconciliation of adkeés measured at fair value on a recurring basgig g#gnificant unobservable inputs (Leve
for the periods ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Other Debt
Securities
2014 2013
~(in thousands
Balances of recurring Level 3 assets at Janui $632 $61€
Total gain (loss) for the perio
Included in other comprehensive income (l¢ _ 26 14
Balance of recurring Level 3 assets at Decemb $65¢ $632

Our other debt security valuation is determine@rimally by calculating discounted cash flows udimg securitys coupon rate of 6.5% and
estimated current market rate of 8.0% based upemtirent yield curve plus spreads that adjustvédatility, credit risk, and optionality. W
also consider the issuer(s) publicly filed finahaidormation as well as assumptions regardinglittedihood of deferrals and defaults.

Financial assets measured at fair value on a nmumiag basis are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2014 Usil
(in thousands)

Quoted Prices In Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Unobservable
Carrying Observable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Impaired loans:
Commercia $ 1,06¢ $ — $ — $ 1,06¢
Commercial real estat
Constructior 4,072 — — 4,07:
Farmland 3,47¢ — — 3,47¢
Other 37,05¢ — — 37,05¢
Residential real estat
Multi-family 4,17¢ — — 4,17¢
1-4 Family 10,58 — — 10,58
Consumel 31 — — 31
Agriculture — — — —
Other 71 — — 71
Other real estate owned, net
Commercial real estat
Constructior 18,32t — — 18,32¢
Farmland 654 — — 654
Other 14,52¢ — — 14,52¢
Residential real estat
Multi-family 4,87¢ — — 4.87¢
1-4 Family 7,81¢ — — 7,81¢

97



Table of Contents

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013 Usi
(in thousands)

Quoted Prices In Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Unobservable
Carrying Observable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Impaired loans:
Commercia $ 3,172 $ — $ — $ 3,172
Commercial real estat
Constructior 9,04¢ — — 9,04¢
Farmland 4,17¢ — — 4,17<
Other 73,42¢ — — 73,42¢
Residential real estat
Multi -family 11,72« — — 11,72¢
1-4 Family 26,48¢ — — 26,48¢
Consumel 75 — — 75
Agriculture — — — —
Other 61¢ — — 61€
Other real estate owned, net
Commercial real estat
Constructior 19,057 — — 19,057
Farmland 69C — — 69C
Other 6,01¢ — — 6,01¢
Residential real estat
Multi -family 24¢ — — 24¢
1-4 Family 4,88( — — 4,88(

Impaired loans, which are measured for impairmasimgithe fair value of the collateral for collateslependent loans, had a carrying amou
$61.3 million, with a valuation allowance of $75200 at December 31, 2014, resulting in an additipnavision for loan losses for the y
ended December 31, 2014 of $5.2 million. At Decen3de 2013, impaired loans had a carrying amourk#2.2 million, with a valuatic
allowance of $3.5 million, at December 31, 2013uttng in no additional provision for loan losgesthe year ended December 31, 2013.

Other real estate owned, which is measured abthierlof carrying or fair value less costs to dedig a net carrying amount of $46.2 millio
of December 31, 2014, compared with $30.9 milliorbacember 31, 2013. Wrigswns of $4.3 million and $2.5 million were recodder
other real estate owned for the years ended Deaedih@014 and 2013, respectively.
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The following table presents qualitative informatiabout level 3 fair value measurements for finanicistruments measured at fair value -

non-recurring basis at December 31, 2014:

Valuation Range (Weighted
Fair Value Technique(s) Unobservable Input(s) Average)
(in thousand:
Impaired loans — Commercial $ 1,066 Market value approach Adjustment for 16% -32% (24%

Impaired loans — Commercial real estate$  44,60¢

Impaired loans — Residential real estate $ 14,75¢

Other real estate owned — Commercia $ 33,50¢
real estate

Other real estate ownedResidential ree $ 12,69:

estate

Sales comparison approach

Income approac
Sales comparison approach

Sales comparison approact

Income approac

Sales comparison approact

receivables and inventory
discounts

Adjustment for
differences between
the comparable sali

Discount or capitalization ra

Adjustment for
differences between
the comparable sali

Adjustment for differences
between the comparable
sales

Discount or capitalization ra

Adjustment for differences
between the comparable
sales

0% - 62% (14%)

8% - 9% (8%)
0% - 39% (11%)

0% - 45% (18%)

9% - 20% (13%)
0% - 15% (6%)

The following table presents qualitative informatiabout level 3 fair value measurements for finalnicistruments measured at fair value -

non-recurring basis at December 31, 2013:

Valuation
Technique(s)

Unobservable Input(s)

Range (Weighted
Average)

Fair Value
(in thousand:
Impaired loans — Commercial $ 3,17¢
Impaired loans — Commercial real $ 86,64¢
estate
Impaired loans Residential real ests $ 38,21(

Other real estate owned — Commercial $ 25,76¢
real estate

Other real estate owned — Residential $ 5,12¢

real estate

Market value approach

Sales comparison approach

Sales comparison approa

Sales comparison approach

Income approach

Sales comparison approach

99

Adjustment for receivable
and inventory discoun

Adjustment for
differences between the
comparable sale

Adjustment for
differences between thi
comparable sale

Adjustment for
differences between the
comparable sale

Discount or capitalization
rate

Adjustment for differences
between the comparable
sales

16% -32% (24%

0% - 69% (20%)

0% - 68% (15%)

3% - 51% (22%)

7% - 16% (11%)

2% - 54% (11%)
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Carrying amount and estimated fair values of fimaniostruments were as follows at year-end 2014:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2014 Usil

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands
Financial assel
Cash and cash equivale $ 80,18( $ 49,007 $ 31,17 $ — $ 80,18(
Securities available for sa 190,79: — 190,13¢ 65¢ 190,79:
Securities held to maturii 42,32 — 44,49¢ — 44,49¢
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 7,32 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Loans held for sal 8,92¢ — 8,92¢ — 8,92¢
Loans, ne 605,63! — — 615,91« 615,91«
Accrued interest receivab 3,50¢ — 1,38¢ 2,11« 3,50¢
Financial liabilities
Deposits $926,84: $114,91( $804,50¢ $ — $919,41¢
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 1,341 — 1,341 — 1,341
Federal Home Loan Bank advant 15,75: — 15,75¢ — 15,75¢
Subordinated capital not: 4,95( — — 4,76¢ 4,76¢
Junior subordinated debentu 25,00( — — 14,21« 14,21«
Accrued interest payab 2,85¢ — 751 2,10 2,85¢

Carrying amount and estimated fair values of fimaniostruments were as follows at year-end 2013:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013 Usii

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands
Financial assel
Cash and cash equivalel $111,13¢ $106,88! $ 4,24¢ $ — $111,13¢
Securities available for sa 163,34 197 162,51! 632 163,34
Securities held to maturii 43,61: — 42,947 — 42,94
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 10,07z N/A N/A N/A N/A
Loans held for sal 14¢ — 14¢ — 14¢
Loans, ne 681,20: — — 695,99 695,99¢
Accrued interest receivab 3,891 — 1,34: 2,54¢ 3,891
Financial liabilities
Deposits $987,70! $107,48t¢ $879,70° $ — $987,19:
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 2,47( — 2,47( — 2,47(
Federal Home Loan Bank advan 4,49; — 4,49¢ — 4,49t
Subordinated capital not: 5,85( — — 5,58¢ 5,58¢
Junior subordinated debentu 25,00( — — 13,52¢ 13,52¢
Accrued interest payab 2,53t — 1,042 1,49: 2,53t

The methods and assumptions used to estimatediaie are described as follows:
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amounts of cash and sherta instruments approximate fair values and aessified as either Level 1 or Level
Noninterest bearing deposits are Level 1 wherdasdst bearing due from bank accounts and fed faaldsare Level 2.
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(b) FHLB Stock
It is not practical to determine the fair valuegFbiLB stock due to restrictions placed on its trarsbility.
(c) Loans, Net

Fair values of loans, excluding loans held for sate estimated as follows: For variable rate |ddwas reprice frequently and with
significant change in credit risk, fair values besed on carrying values resulting in a Level 3gifacation. Fair values for other loans
estimated using discounted cash flow analysesgusierest rates currently being offered for loanth similar terms to borrowers
similar credit quality resulting in a Level 3 cld&stion. Impaired loans are valued at the lowércost or fair value as descrit
previously. The methods utilized to estimate thevalue of loans do not necessarily represenbarpece.

(d) Loans Held for Sale

The fair value of loans held for sale is estimdiaded upon binding contracts and quotes from fhartly investors resulting in a Leve
classification.

(e) Deposits

The fair values disclosed for namierest bearing deposits are, by definition, eqaahe amount payable on demand at the reportite
resulting in a Level 1 classification. The carryiagounts of variable rate interest bearing depegifgoximate their fair values at
reporting date resulting in a Level 2 classificati&air values for fixed rate interest bearing ddgcare estimated using a discounted
flows calculation that applies interest rates autyebeing offered on certificates to a schedulagdregated expected monthly matur
on time deposits resulting in a Level 2 classifat

(f) Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
The carrying amounts of borrowings under repurcla@seements approximate their fair values resultirggLevel 2 classification.
(g) Other Borrowings

The fair values of the ComparsyFHLB advances are estimated using discountedftaglanalyses based on the current borrowing
resulting in a Level 2 classification.

The fair values of the Comparsysubordinated capital notes and junior subordihdebentures are estimated using discounted cas
analyses based on the current borrowing ratesrfolas types of borrowing arrangements resultingibevel 3 classification.

(h) Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable

The carrying amounts of accrued interest approxanfait value resulting in a Level 2 or Level 3 dlfisation based on the level of
asset or liability with which the accrual is assted.

NOTE 20 — STOCK PLANS AND STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has two stock incentive plans. On Fagra3, 2006, the Company adopted the Porter Bantoc. 2006 Stock Incentive Pl
In May 2013, shareholders approved an amendmethietplan to increase the number of shares autlibfareissuance by 800,000 shares
May 2014, shareholders approved an amendment tBltheto increase the number of shares authorimegs$uance by 300,000 shares.
2006 Plan now permits the issuance of up to 1,mBghares of the Compasycommon stock upon the grant of stock awards. f
December 31, 2014, the Company had issued andandisy 770,440 unvested shares net of forfeitunelsvasting under the stock incen
plan. Shares issued under the plan vest annualtheanniversary date of the grant over three noyears. The Company has 533,271 st
remaining available for issue under the plan.

On May 15, 2006, the Board of Directors approvesl Borter Bancorp, Inc. 2006 Né&wployee Directors Stock Ownership Incentive F
which was approved by holders of the Company’sngptommon stock on June 8, 2006. On May 16, 204Rlehs of the Compang’voting
common stock voted to further amend the 2006 Hoployee Directors Stock Ownership Incentive Plamaward restricted shares havir
fair market value of $25,000 annually to each nopleyee director, and to increase the number ofeshssuable under the DirectoRlar
from 100,000 shares to 400,000 shares. In May 20&4PRlan was further amended to increase the nuaflshares issuable to 700,000 sh:
Unvested shares are granted automatically undepléimeat fair market value on the date of granteest on December 31 in the year of gi
To date, the Company has issued and outstandirs 5y@vested shares, net of forfeitures and vestingponemployee directors. .
December 31, 2014, 301,512 shares remain availabissuance under this plan.
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The fair value of the 2014 unvested shares issu&uniployees was $113,000, or $0.93 per weightegtage share. The fair value of the Z
unvested shares issued to directors was $150,000.90 per weighted-average share. The Compamyded $555,000 and $604,000 of stock
based compensation during the 2014 and 2013, rdspgcto salaries and employee benefits. We ekpelstantially all of the unvested sh:
outstanding at the end of the period will vest adtw to the vesting schedule. No deferred tax fiemas recognized related to this expe
for either period.

The following table summarizes unvested share iacts of and for the periods indicated for thecRtincentive Plan:

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Grant Grant

Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning 787,42¢ $ 1.5€ 153,31t $ 5.97
Grantec 122,22( 0.9¢ 693,21 1.1¢
Vested (133,22) 2.2C (22,119 12.1¢
Forfeited (5,979 4.21 (36,99) 6.2z
Outstanding, endin 770,44( $ 1.3t 787,42¢ $ 1.5€

The following table summarizes unvested share igtas of and for the periods indicated for the NEmployee Directors Stock Owners
Incentive Plan:

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Grant Grant

Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning 47,42¢ $ 1.6 80,07¢ $ 1.77
Grantec 166,66¢ 0.9C 182,35! 0.8t
Vested (154,22:) 0.9¢ (215,00%) 1.01

Forfeited (54,827) 1.2¢ — —
Outstanding, endin 5,052 $ 1.6 47 ,42¢ $ 1.6

Unrecognized stock based compensation expenseddtatinvested shares for 2015 and beyond is dstinaa follows (in thousands):

2015 $371
2016 268
2017 50
2018 —

2019 & thereafte —
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NOTE 21 — EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The factors used in the basic and diluted earniegshare computation follow:

Net loss

Less:
Preferred stock dividenc
Effect of preferred stock exchan
Accretion of Series A preferred stock disco
Income (loss) attributable to unvested shi
Income (loss) attributable to participating

preferred share
Net income (loss) attributable to common
shareholders, basic and dilut

Basic
Weighted average common shares including unve
common shares and participating preferred shares
outstanding
Less:
Weighted average unvested common sh
Weighted average Series B preferred sh
Weighted average Series C preferred sh
Weighted average Series D preferred sh
Weighted average common shares outstan

Basic income (loss) per common sh
Diluted

Add: Dilutive effects of assumed exercises of
common and Preferred Series C stock warr

Weighted average common shares and potential
common share

Diluted income (loss) per common sh

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands, except share and per share dat
$ (11,159 $ (1,586 $ (32,93)
2,362 1,91¢ 1,75(C
(36,109 — —
— 16C 17¢
1,43t (171 (482)
1,72¢ (96) (947)
$ 19,42¢ $ (3,399 $ (3343)
14,230,93 12,722,78 12,248,93
904,20t 595,15( 169,32¢
299,85! — —
308,26¢ 332,89 332,89
477,71¢ — —
12,240,88 11,794,73 11,746,71
$ 1.5¢ $ (0.29 $ (2.85)
12,240,88 11,794,73 11,746,71
$ 1.5¢ $ (0.29 $ (2.85)

The Company had no outstanding stock options aeméer 31, 2014, 2013 or 2012. A warrant for thecpase of 330,561 shares of
Companys common stock at an exercise price of $15.88 wiéstanding at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012vbhatnot included in t
diluted EPS computation as inclusion would haventmdidilutive. Additionally, warrants for the purchase650,544 and 1,449,459 share
nonvoting common stock at an exercise price of $1@&5share were outstanding at December 31, 2012@Hh8] respectively, but were

included in the diluted EPS computation as inclosimuld have been anti-dilutive.
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NOTE 22 — PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL | NFORMATION

Condensed financial information of Porter Bancarp Is presented as follows:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel

Securities available for sa

Investment in banking subsidia

Investment in and advances to other subsidii
Other asset

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Debt

Accrued expenses and other liabilit

Shareholder equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years ended December 31,

Interest incom

Dividends from subsidiarie

Other income

Interest expens

Other expens

Loss before income tax and undistributed subsidiazgme
Income tax expens

Equity in undistributed subsidiary income (lo

Net loss

104

2014

$ 53
19

44

(631)
(1,765)
(2,280)

13
(8,862)
$(11,15Y

2014 2013
(in thousands)
$ 1,27¢ $ 1,81
65¢ 82¢
58,091 63,81
7€ 77€
73C 74(C
$61,53¢ $67,97¢
$25,77¢ $25,77"
2,29¢ 6,26¢
33,46¢ 35,93
$61,53¢ $67,97¢
2013 2012
(in thousands)
$ 82 $ 114
2C 21
96¢€ 72
(642) (692)
(2,062) (1,459
(1,639 (1,939
— 864
52 (30,13()
$(1,580  $(32,93)
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31,

2014
First quartel
Second quarte
Third quartel
Fourth quarte

2013
First quartel
Second quarte
Third quartel

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $(11,155 $(1,58€) $(32,93)
Adjustments
Equity in undistributed subsidiary (income) Ic 8,86: (52 30,13(
Gain on sale of asse (44) (727) —
Tax expense from OCI compone| 13 — —
Change in other asse (26) (240) (22)
Change in other liabilitie 1,04( 83: 77€
Other 591 64C 47€
Net cash (used in) operating activit (719 (1,132 (1,569
Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in subsidiaris — — —
Sales of securitie 17¢ 1,95: —
Net cash (used in) from investing activit 17¢ 1,952 —
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid on preferred sto — — —
Dividends paid on common sto — — —
Net cash (used in) financing activiti — — —
Net change in cash and cash equival (540 82( (1,569
Beginning cash and cash equivale 1,81¢ 99t 2,56¢
Ending cash and cash equivale $ 1,27¢ $1,81¢ $ 99t
NOTE 23 — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
Earnings (Loss)
Per Common Share
Provision
Net Interest For Net
Interest Loan OREO Income
Income Income Losses Expense¢ (Loss) Basic (1  Diluted (1)
(in thousands, except per share date
$9897 $ 7300 $ — $ 66z $ (287) $(0.0§ $ (0.09)
10,16¢ 7,61¢ 6,30( 774 (6,234 @ (0.59) (0.59)
9,81« 7,33 — 56C (849 (0.12) (0.12)
9,63¢ 7,467 80C 3,84: (3,789 ) 1.91 1.91
$11,25¢ $ 8,29¢ $ 45C $ 791 $ (69 $(0.09 $ (0.09
11,16¢ 8,352 — 1,657 (1,309 (0.19) (0.1
10,54 7,84¢ 25( 66¢ 29¢ (0.01) (0.09)
10,25¢ 7,58¢ — 1,39¢ (506) (0.09) (0.09)

1)

(2)
(3)

Fourth quarte
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The sum of the quarterly net income (loss) per estfbasic and diluted) differs from the annual meibme (loss) per share (basic
diluted) because of the differences in the weiglaedrage number of common shares outstanding adaimmon shares used in
quarterly and annual computations as well as diffees in rounding
The $6.2 million loss for the second quarter wasarily due to provision for loan losses expens&@&®B million.
The $3.8 million loss for the fourth quarter wasyarily due to elevated OREO expenses of $3.8 onil
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NOTE 24 — CONTINGENCIES

We are defendants in various legal proceedinggadtibn is subject to inherent uncertainties anthvorable rulings could occur. We rec
contingent liabilities resulting from claims agdins when a loss is assessed to be probable arahtbent of the loss is reasonably estim:
Assessing probability of loss and estimating prédddsses requires analysis of multiple factorsluding in some cases judgments abou
potential actions of third party claimants and ¢euRecorded contingent liabilities are based enbiisst information available and actual lo
in any future period are inherently uncertain. €otly, we have accrued approximately $2.1 millietated to ongoing litigation matters
which we believe liability is probable and reasdpagstimable. Accruals are not made in cases whaldity is not probable or the amot
cannot be reasonably estimated. We disclose legdiers when we believe liability is reasonably jjussand may be material to «
consolidated financial statements.

Signature Point Litigation.On June 18, 2010, three real estate developmenpamies filed suit in Kentucky state court agaihgt Bank an
Managed Assets of Kentucky (“MAKY”)Signature Point Condominiums LLC, et al. v. PBI Baat al., Jefferson Circuit Court, Case No 10
CI1-04295. On July 16, 2013, a jury in Louisville, Kecky returned a verdict against the Bank, awardiggplaintiffs compensatory dama
of $1,515,000 and punitive damages of $5,500,00@ dase arose from a settlement in which the Ban&ed to release the plaintiffs
guarantors from obligations of more than $26 milli@lated to a real estate project in LouisvillbeTplaintiffs were granted a right of fi
refusal to repurchase a tract of land within thajqmt. In exchange, the plaintiffs conveyed thd essate securing the loans to the Bank. /
plaintiffs declined to exercise their right of finefusal, the Bank sold the tract to the thirdtypaPlaintiffs alleged the Bank had knowledg:
the third party offer before the conveyance ofltved by the Plaintiffs to the Bank. Plaintiffs aged claims of fraud, breach of fiduciary d
breach of the duty of good faith and fair dealitgytious interference with prospective businessaathge and conspiracy to commit fre
negligence, and conspiracy against the Bank.

After conferring with its legal advisors, the Banélieves the findings and damages are excessivearithry to law, and that it has meritori
grounds on which it has moved to appeal. The Bahkitice of Appeal was filed on October 25, 2018eAa number of procedural issues v
resolved, the Bank filed its appellate brief on t8epber 30, 2014. Appelleebrief was filed on December 1, 2014. We will ¢one¢ to defen
this matter vigorously. Although we have made mmris in our consolidated financial statementdtar selfinsured matter, the amount of
legal accrual is less than the original amounthef damages awarded, plus accrued interest. Theatétioutcome of this matter could ha
material adverse effect on our financial conditi@sults of operations or cash flows.

SBAV LP Litigation. On December 17, 2012, SBAV LP filed a lawsuit agathe Company, the Bank, J. Chester Porter anébMaBouvetts
in New York state court. The proceeding was remdeddew York federal district court on January 2613, and on February 27, 2013, SE
LP filed an Amended Complaint. On July 10, 201% Mew York federal district court granted the deff@mts’ motion to transfer the case
federal district court in KentuckySBAV LP v. Porter Bancorp, et. aCjv. Action 3:13-CV710 (W.D.KY). The Amended Complaint allege
violation of the Kentucky Securities Act and neglig misrepresentation against all named defendantsbreach of contract against Pc
Bancorp alone. The plaintiff seeks damages in aouamin excess of $4,500,000, or the differencevben the $5,000,016 purchase price
the value of the securities when sold by the pl&jnplus interest at the applicable statutory ratests and reasonable attornefexs. O
September 13, 2013, defendants filed a motiongmiis all claims in the complaint for pleading daéls and for failure to state a claim u
which relief may be granted. On March 25, 2014 jtidge ruled that SBAV had failed to state a claigainst the Bank and dismissed the E
from the case. The claims against the CompanyE#tate of J. Chester Porter and Ms. Bouvette reiaaihhave proceeded to discovery
April 21, 2014, the Company filed a third-party qalaint for contribution against SBAY’ investment adviser, the Clinton Group, Inc.
September 16, 2014, the Court dismissed the ThartRComplaint, but held that, if proven, Clinterérrors in conducting due diligence r
lessen any recovery available to SBAV. Discovergastinuing. On February 9, 2015, the parties jpinéquested the Court to vacate
current trial date of October 20, 2015 to providelitional time for discovery and motion practicetlie case. We dispute the material fac
allegations made in SBAV’s complaint and intendiédend against SBAV'’s claims vigorously.

Miller’s Health System Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Rl&n December 26, 2013, the United States Departofdrabor (“DOL”) filed &
lawsuit against the Bank in U.S. District Court foe Northern District of Indiandhomas E. Perez, Secretary of the United Statesfrapn
of Labor v. PBI Bank, IndCiv. Action 3:13-CV-1400PPS). The complaint alleges that in 2007 the Banlthe capacity of trustee for 1
Miller's Health System’s Inc. Employee Stock OwrépsPlan, authorized the alleged imprudent andbgadl purchase of the stock of Miller’
Health Systems, Inc. (“Miller’'s Health”) in 2007rf§40 million, a price allegedly far in excess bé tstocks fair market value. The suit a
alleges, among other things, that the Bank apprd$6 seller financing for the transaction at anessive rate of interest. On March
2014, the Bank filed its answer, disputing the matdactual allegations of the complaint. On Adr), 2014, the Bank filed a thifghrty
complaint against Milles Health seeking to enforce its indemnity rightsweell as third party claims for contribution aggtimamed directo
and officers of Millers Health. On March 12, 2015, the parties agreeskttie the litigation, subject to the executionaofvritten settleme
agreement. The Bank has agreed to a settlementguaymost of which has either been previously rekfor or will be paid from insuran
proceeds. We do not anticipate the settlement isflitigation will have a material adverse effect the Company financial condition ¢
operating results.
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AIT Laboratories Employee Stock Ownership PlaOn August 29, 2014, the United States Departmenrtadior (“DOL”) filed a lawsui
against the Bank and Michael A. Evans in the U.iStrBt Court for the Southern District of IndiarEhomas E. Perez, Secretary of the Ur
States Department of Labor v. PBI Bank, Inc. andhdel A. EvangCase No. 1:14-CV-01429-SERJD). The complaint alleges that in 20
the Bank, in the capacity of trustee for the AlTbbeatories Employee Stock Ownership Plan, authdrthe alleged imprudent and dislc
purchase of the stock of AIT Holdings, Inc. in 2009 $90 million, a price allegedly far in excedstloe stock’s fair market value. The Bagk’
responsive pleading was filed on November 4, 2dishuting the material factual allegations thatehbeen made by the DOL. Discovery i
the early stages. We intend to defend against DOaisns vigorously.

United States Department of Justice Investigati@n October 17, 2014, the United States Departmehisiice (the “DOJ"hotified the Ban
that the Bank was the subject of an investigatitto possible violations of federal laws, includiragnong other things, possible violati
related to false bank entries, bank fraud and g&sufraud. The investigation concerns allegatitmes Bank personnel engaged in prac
intended to delay or avoid disclosure of the Bargset quality at the time of and following the tgdiStates Treasusy/purchase of preferr
stock from the Company in November 2008. The Baitkrespond to and cooperate with any requestsriimrmation from DOJ. At this tin
the investigation is ongoing, and DOJ has madeeterdhination whether to pursue any action in théena
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on &ounting and Financial Disclosure
None
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg effective disclosure controls and procedues defined under Rules 1Ba(e) an
15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. ADetember 31, 2014, an evaluation was performeeéruthe supervision and with 1
participation of management, including the Chieé&égixtive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of tefectiveness of the design and oper:
of our disclosure controls and procedures.

Management determined that a material weaknessedxis the Company’ internal control over financial reporting at J@te 2014. Th
Company utilized information to record the fair walof other real estate owned at June 30, 2014hwhis obtained prior to taking posses
of commercial real estate through a settlementesgeat with a contentious borrower on June 24, 2€dther than promptly obtaining n
information material to the fair value of the prajes before the filing of the financial statemeassof and for the three and six month pel
ended June 30, 2014. We determined, after thegfdinthose financial statements, that our initstireate of fair value was significantly higl
than the actual fair value as it was not based upenbest information available. Based upon théatesent of the Comparsg/financia
statements as of and for the three and six monibdsended June 30, 2014, the Company determhadcbtir internal controls for record
other real estate owned at estimated fair valug dests to sell did not in this instance estakbdishaccurate initial book value and were
effective. Our management, overseen by the Audih@itee, worked throughout the fourth quarter of£2@ implement controls, procedu
and processes to remediate this control weakness.

These enhanced controls, procedures, and processviements include:

» The Special Assets Group promptly and thoroughiyergs new information material to the fair valueté property and analyzes |
assumptions relevant to the fair value conclusiod eost to sell estimate. New information includest it not limited to, updatt
appraisals, site visits performed by the SpeciglefsGroup, and discussions with current ten

» Personnel, including senior management, consult thié Special Assets Group and external expertd) ag property managem
professionals, to evaluate the new information nedteéo the fair value of the property includingnoparable sales, income ¢
expenses, and other relevant valuation fac

» Finance and accounting personnel engage in detdilzlissions regarding valuation issues and rewidver real estate ownt
including additions, with the Special Assets Grolmughout each reporting period and through thiseguent period up to the fili
of the financial statement

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we took stepseteolve the material weakness by changing ouralsntprocedures, and processe:
recording other real estate owned at estimatedvédire less cost to sell, as discussed above. Hwttanding the steps taken during the fc
quarter of 2014, the identified material weaknedls mot be considered remediated until the new powres have been in operation fi
sufficient period of time to be tested and detepditby management to be operating effectively. Basedaur evaluation and the rea
described above, management, including our ChietHtve Officer and our Chief Financial Officernabuded that our disclosure controls
procedures were not effective as of the end ofpexdod covered by this report. ManagemeriReport on Internal Control Over Finan
Reporting is set forth under Item 8 “Financial 8taénts and Supplementary Dataliere were no other changes in our internal comivel
financial reporting that occurred during the yeaded December 31, 2014 that have materially affeaie are reasonably likely to materi
affect, our internal control over financial repaodgi

Item 9B. Other Information
None

PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.

We have adopted a code of ethics applicable taChigf Executive Officer and our senior financiafioérs, which is posted on our websit
http://www.pbibank.com If we amend or waive any of the provisions of @ede of Ethics applicable to our Chief Executiificer or senio
financial officers, we intend to disclose the ameedt or waiver on our website. We will provide ttygerson without charge, upon reque
copy of this Code of Ethics. You can request a cbpycontacting Porter Bancorp, Inc., Chief Finah&#ficer, 2500 Eastpoint Parkw:
Louisville, Kentucky, 40223, (telephone) 502-499a83

Additional information required by this Item 10dsnitted because we are filing a definitive proxgtement pursuant to Regulation 14A o
before April 30, 2015, which includes the requiiatbrmation. The required information containeddar proxy statement is incorpora
herein by reference.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is omitteetcause we are filing a definitive proxy statenmmsuant to Regulation 14A on or bef
April 30, 2015, which includes the required infotina. The required information contained in our)yratatement is incorporated hereir
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

The information required by this Item 12 is omitteecause we are filing a definitive proxy statenmmmsuant to Regulation 14A on or bef
April 30, 2015, which includes the required infotina. The required information contained in ouryratatement is incorporated hereir
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.

The information required by this Item 13 is omitteetcause we are filing a definitive proxy statenmmsuant to Regulation 14A on or bef
April 30, 2015, which includes the required infotioa. The required information contained in our)prestatement is incorporated hereir
reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service:

The information required by this Item 14 is omitteecause we are filing a definitive proxy statenmmmsuant to Regulation 14A on or bef
April 30, 2015, which includes the required infotina. The required information contained in ouryratatement is incorporated hereir
reference.

109



Table of Contents

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(@) 1 The following financial statements are includedhis Form 1(-K:
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&01201:
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssiLfor the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 20132ah2
Consolidated Statements of Change in Stockhc' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2848,201%
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2014, 2013, and z
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing

(a) z List of Financial Statement Schedu

Financial statement schedules are omitted becheseformation is not applicabl

(@) ¢ List of Exhibits

The Exhibit Index of this report is incorporatedreference. The compensatory plans or arrangeraquoired to be filed as
exhibits to thisForm 1(-K pursuant to Iltem 15(c) are noted with an asteriské Exhibit Index
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Comgplaass duly caused this report to
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

PORTER BANCORP, INC.

March 30, 2015 By: /s/ John T. Taylo
John T. Taylo
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf of
registrant and in the capacities indicated.

/s/ John T. Taylor Chief Executive Officer March 30, 2015
John T. Taylol

/s/ Phillip W. Barnhouse Chief Financial Officer March 30, 2015
Phillip W. Barnhous:t

s/ W. Glenn Hogan Director March 30, 2015
W. Glenn Hogat

/s/ Michael T. Levy Director March 30, 2015
Michael T. Levy

/sl Bradford T. Ray Director March 30, 2015
Bradford T. Ray

/s/ N. Marc Satterthwaite Director March 30, 2015
N. Marc Satterthwait

/s! W. Kirk Wycoff Director March 30, 2015
W. Kirk Wycoff
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Exhibit No. (1)
3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1+

10.2+

10.3+

10.4+

10.5+

10.6+

10.7

10.8
10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

21.1
23.1
311
31.2

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporationeddflarch 2, 2015. Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed Mhar2, 2015 is
incorporated by referenc

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Porter Bancorp,Hrhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed May 22, 2014 is hbye
incorporated by reference. Bylaws dated NovembeRB05. Exhibit 3.2 to Form S-1 Registration Stagam
(Reg. No. 33-133198) filed April 11, 2006 is incorporated byenefnce

Warrant to purchase up to 299,829 shares. ExhibitotForm 8-K filed November 24, 2008 is incorgechby
reference

Securities Purchase Agreement between Porter Baynlewr. and Patriot Financial Partners, L.P. am@opurchasers
named therein, dated as of June 30, 2010. ExHihlt tb the Registrant’s Current Report on Form fidd with the
SEC on July 7, 2010 is incorporated by refere

Porter Bancorp, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Planmasraled and restated as of March 26, 2014. Exhibit tb
Registration Statement (Reg. No. 333-202749) filedch 13, 2015 is incorporated by reference. AppeBdo
Definitive Proxy Statement filed April 28, 2014ircorporated by referenc

Form of Porter Bancorp, Inc. Restricted Stock Awagiteement. Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed Novemi8, 2012
is incorporated by referenc

Porter Bancorp, Inc. 2006 Non-Employee DirectockiOwnership Incentive Plan, as amended and egstet of
March 26, 2014. Exhibit 10.1 to Form S-8 RegistnatStatement (Reg. No. 333-202746) filed March2D3,5 is
incorporated by reference. Appendix A to DefinitReoxy Statement filed April 28, 2014 is incorpadby reference

Porter Bancorp, Inc. 2014 Incentive CompensationuBdPlan incorporated by reference in the Defiaifiroxy
Statement filed April 28, 201-

Form of Ascencia Bank (now PBI Bank) Supplementadutive Retirement Plan. Exhibit 10.5 to
Form &1 Registration Statement (Reg. No. -133198) filed April 11, 2006 is incorporated byeefnce

Form of Amendment to PBI Bank Supplemental ExeeuRetirement Plan. Exhibit 10.7 to Form 10-K filddrch 29,
2009 is incorporated by referen:

Consent Order with Federal Deposit Insurance Catjmor and Kentucky Department of Financial Institas dated
June 24, 2011. Exhibit 99.1 Form &K filed June 30, 2011 is incorporated by referel

Employment Agreement with John T. Taylor (Exhilttb Form &K filed August 6, 2012 is incorporated by referel

Employment Agreement with John R. Davis (Exhibitll® Form 8-K filed September 25, 2012 is incogted by
reference

Employment Agreement with Joseph C. Seiler (ExHibitl to Form 10-Q filed August 8, 2013 is incoted by
reference

Employment Agreement with Phillip W. Barnhouse (iBxh10.2 to Form 10-Q filed August 8, 2013 is imgorated by
reference

Description of Exchange Agreements dated Novem®g2014, between Porter Bancorp, Inc. and holde8edes A
Preferred Stock is incorporated by reference tm 1301 tcForm ¢-K filed November 24, 201«

Form of Exchange Agreement dated November 19, 28dtdyeen Porter Bancorp, Inc. and holders of Séyies
Preferred Stock. Exhibit 10.1 Form ¢-K filed November 24, 2014 is incorporated by refege

List of Subsidiaries of Porter Bancorp, li

Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP, Independent Regidt&nablic Accounting Firn
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantExchange Act Rules 1-14 or 15¢14
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawot Exchange Act Rules 1-14 or 15+14
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32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantExchange Act Rules 1-14(b) or 15+14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 13
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot Exchange Act Rules 1-14(b) or 15+14(b) and U.S.C. Section 13
99.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuao Section 30.15 of the U.S. Treasury’s Intefimal Rule on TARP

Standards for Compensation and Corporate Govern

99.2 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuao Section 30.15 of the U.S. Treasury’s Intefimal Rule on TARP
Standards for Compensation and Corporate Govern

101 The following financial statements from the Qxamy’s Annual Report on Form 10K for the year enBedember 31, 2011,
formatted in XBRL: (i) Consolidated Balance SheétsConsolidated Statements of Operations, @ignsolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Consaii&tatements of Changes in Stockholders’ EquijyCénsolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, (vi) Notes to Consoldi&ieancial Statement

+  Management contract or compensatory plan or arraage
(1) The Company has other long-term debt agreentbatsmeet the exclusion set forth in Section 6[{&{kiii)(A) of Regulation S-K.The
Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of suokeagents to the Securities and Exchange Commisgiom request

113



Direct Subsidiary

PBI Bank

Ascencia Statutory Trust
Porter Statutory Trust
Porter Statutory Trust Ii
Porter Statutory Trust I’
PBIB Corporation, Inc

Indirect Subsidiary
PBI Title Services, LLC

Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF PORTER BANCORP, INC.

Jurisdiction of Organization Does Business A
Kentucky PBI Bank
Connecticu Ascencia Statutory Trusi
Connecticu Porter Statutory Trust
Connecticu Porter Statutory Trust Ii
Connecticu Porter Statutory Trust I
Kentucky PBIB Corporation, Inc
Jurisdiction of Organization Does Business A Parent Entity
Kentucky PBI Title Services, LLC PBI Bank



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-188988; 333-189003:3R746 and 333-202749 on Form S
8 of Porter Bancorp, Inc. of our report dated Ma36h 2015 with respect to the consolidated findratetements of Porter Bancorp, Inc., wi
report appears in this Annual Report on Form 10FRarter Bancorp, Inc. for the year ended DecerdtieR014.

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLF

Louisville, Kentucky
March 30, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

PORTER BANCORP, INC .
RULE 13A-14(A) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFF ICER

I, John T. Taylor, Chief Executive Officer of Pari@ancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkhe Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgitate a material fact necessary tor
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstr@and procedures |
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedwe caused such disclosure controls and procedorde designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by ot
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financeparting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting arlde preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and pres@mtéds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registramfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloség@sed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden!
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbmiver financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sgmifrole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: March 30, 2015 /s/ John T. Taylo
John T. Taylol
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

PORTER BANCORP, INC .
RULE 13A-14(A) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFF ICER

[, Phillip W. Barnhouse, Chief Financial Officer Bbrter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkhe Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgitate a material fact necessary tor
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstr@and procedures |
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedwe caused such disclosure controls and procedorde designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by ot
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financeparting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting arlde preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and pres@mtéds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registramfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloség@sed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden!
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbmiver financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sgmifrole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: March 30, 2015 /s/ Phillip W. Barnhous
Phillip W. Barnhous:t
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1
SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104&Paorter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Companyfr the annual period ended Decembel
2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report;)John T. Taylor, Chief Executive Officer of -
Company, do hereby certify, in accordance with 18.0. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fiérof the Sarbanegdxley Act of 2002
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSafction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SgearExchange Act of 1934,
amended; an

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mess, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company

PORTER BANCORP, INC

Dated: March 30, 2015 By: /s/ John T. Taylo
John T. Taylol
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2
SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104&Paorter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Companyfr the annual period ended Decembel
2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @a@sion on the date hereof (the “Report;)Phillip W. Barnhouse, Chief Financial Offic
of the Company, do hereby certify, in accordandb @8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant¢tdh 906 of the Sarban&xley Act o
2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SeearExchange Act of 193
as amended; ar

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company

PORTER BANCORP, INC

Dated: March 30, 2015 By: /s/ Phillip W. Barnhous
Phillip W. Barnhous:t
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 99.1

PORTER BANCORP, INC.
TARP CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Note: This Certification covers the portion of themost recently completed fiscal year of Porter Bangp, Inc. that was a TARP period
specifically, January 1, 2014 through the last dayf the TARP period, December 4, 2014, the date Patt Bancorp, Inc. and the
Treasury completed the disposition of Porter Bancgg, Inc.’s TARP securities.

I, John T. Taylor, Chief Executive Officer of Par@ancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that:

(1) The compensation committee (the “Compensatiom@ittee”) of the Board of Directors (the “Boardi) the Company has met at least even
months during the prior fiscal year with the semisk officers of the Company to discuss and eualsg&nior executive officer compensation plans
employee compensation plans and the risks thess plase to the Company;

(2) The Compensation Committee has identified amitdd the features in the senior executive officempensation plans that could lead se
executive officers to take unnecessary and excessics that could threaten the value of the Comphas identified any features in the emplc
compensation plans that pose risks to the Compam/has limited those features to ensure that ¢mep@ny is not unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(3) The Compensation Committee has reviewed at &asy six months the terms of each employee cosgi®n plan and identified and limited
features in the plan that could encourage the méatipn of reported earnings of the Company to enhahe compensation of an employee;

(4) The Compensation Committee will certify to thesviews;

(5) The Compensation Committee will provide a nireadescription of how it limited the features(ihsenior executive officer compensation p
that could lead senior executive officers to takmacessary and excessive risks that could thre@envalue of the Company, (ii) emplo
compensation plans to ensure that the Companytismecessarily exposed to risks, and (iii) emptogempensation plans that could encourag
manipulation of reported earnings of the Compangribance the compensation of an employee;

(6) The Company has required that all bonusesntiete awards, and incentive compensation of théosexxecutive officers and next twenty
highly compensated employees be subject to a poovier recovery or “clawbackby the Company if the payments were based on radi
inaccurate financial statements or any other matgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(7) The Company has prohibited any golden parachbayenent to the senior executive officers and #net five most highly compensated employ
For this purpose, a golden parachute payment ispagynent triggered by involuntary termination wihwithout cause; bankruptcy, insolvency
receivership of the Company; or a change in comtftthe Company;

(8) The Company has limited bonuses, retention dsyaand incentive compensation paid to or accryednbployees to whom the bonus payn
limitation applies;

(9) The Company will permit a ndsinding shareholder resolution on the senior exeewfficer compensation disclosures provided uritlerFeder:
securities laws in accordance with any guidandesrand regulations promulgated by the SEC;

(10) The Company and its employees have compligl thie excessive or luxury expenditures policydafined in the regulations and guida
established under section 111 of EESA; and anyresqeethat, pursuant to the policy, required approfvthe Board of Directors, a committee of
Board of Directors, a senior executive officeraarexecutive officer with a similar level of respdaility were properly approved;

(11) The Company will disclose the amount, natare justification for the offering of any perquestwhose total value exceeds $25,000 for ee
the employees subject to the bonus payment liroitati

(12) The Company will disclose whether the Compahg, Board, or the Compensation Committee has etjagcompensation consultant, anc
services the compensation consultant or any aéileovided;

(13) The Company has prohibited any tax gnggs-on compensation to the senior executive offieerd the next twenty most highly compens
employees;

(14) The Company has substantially complied with esmpensation requirements set forth in the ageegimetween the Company and the Trea
as may have been amended,;

(15) The Company has submitted to Treasury a cdmpled accurate list of the senior executive offi@nd the twenty next most highly compens
employees for the current fiscal year with the senior executive officers ranked in descending rooddevel of annual compensation, and with
name, title, and employer of each senior executffieer and most highly compensated employee idiedtiand,

(16) The officer certifying understands that a kimgyvand willful false or fraudulent statement madeconnection with the certification may
punished by fine, imprisonment or both.

Dated: March 30, 2015 By: /s/ John T. Taylo
John T. Taylol
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 99.2

PORTER BANCORP, INC.
TARP CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Note: This Certification covers the portion of themost recently completed fiscal year of Porter Banap, Inc. that was a TARP period
specifically, January 1, 2014 through the last dapf the TARP period, December 4, 2014, the date Pert Bancorp, Inc. and the Treasun
completed the disposition of Porter Bancorp, Inc.’STARP securities.

I, Phillip W. Barnhouse, Chief Financial Officer Bbrter Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that

(1) The compensation committee (the “Compensatiom@ittee”) of the Board of Directors (the “Boardi) the Company has met at least even
months during the prior fiscal year with the semisk officers of the Company to discuss and eualsg&nior executive officer compensation plans
employee compensation plans and the risks thess plase to the Company;

(2) The Compensation Committee has identified amitdd the features in the senior executive officempensation plans that could lead se
executive officers to take unnecessary and excessics that could threaten the value of the Comphas identified any features in the emplc
compensation plans that pose risks to the Compam/has limited those features to ensure that ¢mep@ny is not unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(3) The Compensation Committee has reviewed at ®asy six months the terms of each employee cosgi®n plan and identified and limited
features in the plan that could encourage the méatipn of reported earnings of the Company to enhahe compensation of an employee;

(4) The Compensation Committee will certify to thesviews;

(5) The Compensation Committee will provide a nireadescription of how it limited the features(ihsenior executive officer compensation p
that could lead senior executive officers to takeacessary and excessive risks that could thredenvalue of the Company, (i) emplo
compensation plans to ensure that the Companytismecessarily exposed to risks, and (iii) emptogempensation plans that could encourag
manipulation of reported earnings of the Compangribance the compensation of an employee;

(6) The Company has required that all bonusesntiete awards, and incentive compensation of théosexxecutive officers and next twenty
highly compensated employees be subject to a poovior recovery or “clawbackby the Company if the payments were based on ra#l
inaccurate financial statements or any other matgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(7) The Company has prohibited any golden parachbayenent to the senior executive officers and #net five most highly compensated employ
For this purpose, a golden parachute payment ispagynent triggered by involuntary termination wihwithout cause; bankruptcy, insolvency
receivership of the Company; or a change in comtftthe Company;

(8) The Company has limited bonuses, retention dsyaand incentive compensation paid to or accryednbployees to whom the bonus payn
limitation applies;

(9) The Company will permit a ndoinding shareholder resolution on the senior exeewfficer compensation disclosures provided uritlerFeder:
securities laws in accordance with any guidandesrand regulations promulgated by the SEC;

(10) The Company and its employees have compligl thie excessive or luxury expenditures policydafined in the regulations and guida
established under section 111 of EESA; and anyresqeethat, pursuant to the policy, required approfvthe Board of Directors, a committee of
Board of Directors, a senior executive officeraarexecutive officer with a similar level of respdaility were properly approved;

(11) The Company will disclose the amount, natare justification for the offering of any perquestwhose total value exceeds $25,000 for ee
the employees subject to the bonus payment liroitati

(12) The Company will disclose whether the Compahg, Board, or the Compensation Committee has etjagcompensation consultant, anc
services the compensation consultant or any aéileovided;

(13) The Company has prohibited any tax gngss-on compensation to the senior executive offieerd the next twenty most highly compens
employees;

(14) The Company has substantially complied with esmpensation requirements set forth in the ageegimetween the Company and the Trea
as may have been amended;

(15) The Company has submitted to Treasury a cdmpled accurate list of the senior executive offi@nd the twenty next most highly compens
employees for the current fiscal year, with the-senior executive officers ranked in descending oodidéevel of annual compensation, and with
name, title, and employer of each senior executffieer and most highly compensated employee idiedtiand,

(16) The officer certifying understands that a kimgyvand willful false or fraudulent statement madeconnection with the certification may
punished by fine, imprisonment or both.

Dated: March 30, 2015 By: /s/ Phillip W. Barnhous
Phillip W. Barnhoust
Chief Financial Office




